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COSH was first established in 1987. It is a statutory body
vested with functions, as set out in the “Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health Ordinance” (Cap. 389), to protect
and improve the health of the community by:

1. Informing and educating the public on the harm of
smoking and its adverse effects on health;

2. Conducting and coordinating research into the cause,
prevention and cure of tobacco dependence;

3. Advising the Government, community health
organizations or any public body on matters relating to
smoking and health.

Under such a charter, COSH has taken up the role as an
active player and commentator on all issues relating
to tobacco control. We aim to act within our charter in
response to the changing local environment as it affects the
promotion of tobacco and the epidemic caused by smoking.
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Mr Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
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Mr Antonio KWONG, a qualified solicitor, is a
businessman. He joined COSH in 2009. He is the
Chairman of the Information & Research Committee and
Legislation Committee, Vice-chairman of the Executive
Committee and also member of the Community Liaison
Committee and Education & Publicity Committee.
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Ms Yolanda NG is a Councilor of Wan Chai District and
actively involved in public services. She joined COSH in
2008 and is the Chairman of the Executive Committee
and Community Liaison Committee and also member
of the Education & Publicity Committee, Information &
Research Committee and Legislation Committee.
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Prof Johnnie CHAN is the Deputy
Commissioner (Operations) of
Auxiliary Medical Service. He joined
COSH in 2009 and is the Chairman
of the Education & Publicity
Committee and is a member of the
Executive Committee, Community
Liaison Committee and Legislation
Committee.
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Dr Daisy DAl is the ex-Chief Manager
(Primary & Community Services) of
Hospital Authority. She joined COSH
in 2009 and is a member of the
Information & Research Committee.
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Ms Ada HO is a businesswoman
and founded a social enterprise.
She joined COSH in 2014 and is a
member of the Education & Publicity
Committee.
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Ms HSU Siu-man is a registered
social worker in youth organization.
She joined COSH in 2014 and is a
member of the Education & Publicity
Committee.
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Dr Cindy LAl is the Deputy Director
of Department of Health. She joined
COSH as an ex-officio member
in 2012 and is a member of the
Executive Committee.
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Dr Susie LUM is the President of The
Provisional Hong Kong Academy of
Nursing Limited. She joined COSH
in 2013 and is a member of the
Education & Publicity Committee.
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Dr MAK Yiu-kwong is a secondary
school principal. He joined COSH
in 2012 and is a member of the
Community Liaison Committee,
Education & Publicity Committee,
Information & Research Committee
and Legislation Committee.
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Ms Grace NG is the Assistant Director
of Information Services Department.
She joined COSH as an ex-officio
member in 2014 and is a member of
the Education & Publicity Committee.
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Ms Gigi PANG is the director of
Evergreen Education Foundation and
actively involved in public services,
especially in the development of
youth and sports. She joined COSH in
2014.
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Dr David SUN is a dentist. He joined
COSH in 2011 and is a member of the
Community Liaison Committee.
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Dr Joyce TANG is a doctor. She joined
COSH in 2012 and is a member of the
Information & Research Committee
and Legislation Committee.

Z & Member

EWE % E MH
Mr Jackson WONG
Fan-foung, MH

=EMEEERBEA - 72017
bﬂ)\*i’\ CHEAHEBEERE
g HEREBEZEENEAR

ﬁ :/\;:O

TR)

Mr Jackson WONG is a businessman.
He joined COSH in 2011 and is a
member of the Community Liaison
Committee, Education & Publicity
Committee and Information &
Research Committee.
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Mr Jason WONG is a businessman.
He joined COSH in 2012 and is a
member of the Education & Publicity
Committee.
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Prof Samuel WONG is a professor of
Faculty of Medicine of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined
COSH in 2014 and is a member of the
Information & Research Committee.
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Mr Christopher YU is a consultant. He
joined COSH in 2012 and is a member
of the Community Liaison Committee,
Education & Publicity Committee and
Legislation Committee.
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Project Officer

HAEEEE Project Executive
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Educator

Executive Assistant
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Project Assistant

Ms Vienna LAl Wai-yin
Mr Lawrence CHU Wai-hong

Ms Annie NG Lai-ying

Ms Faine CHAN Wai-fan

Ms Dorothy LAW Wing-yi

Ms Jacqueline LEUNG Ho-yan
Ms Wing TSANG Wing-sze

Ms Jessica LEE Pik-wan

Mr Lancelot POON Chi-chung

Ms Lilian IP Hiu-yan

Ms Christy LUl Wan-hing
Mr Fung WONG Chi-fung
Ms Kitty NG Hoi-ki

(from October 2014)

Ms Koko KO Oi-lam

(up to May 2014)

Ms Christy LAl Yin-nei
(up to March 2015)

CMP, Mr Alex YU Kwan-tat
(up to May 2014)

Ms Alice KU Mui-sing

(up to June 2014)

Ms KWAN Yuen-fong

Ms NG Lai-ming

Ms Irene CHUNG Tsui-woon
(from July 2014)

Ms Pinky SO Man-ho

(up to September 2014)
Ms Fiona YAU Kan-man
(from November 2014)
Ms Ella YIM Wing-sheung
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Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
Chairman

FEHE Chairman's Report
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Protecting the public health has always been a
top priority for Hong Kong Council on Smoking
and Health (COSH). This year is my first year
being the Chairman of COSH. Following the
achievements of tobacco control contributed
by COSH, the Government and different sectors
of the community in previous years, COSH will
continue to organize diversified education and
publicity programmes to raise public awareness
on tobacco hazards and encourage smokers
to quit smoking. COSH will also proactively
advocate the Government for strengthening the
tobacco control measures to further reduce the
smoking prevalence to single digit. Let’s strive for
a smoke-free Hong Kong.
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According to the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 53 of
the Census and Statistics Department, the prevalence of the daily
cigarette smokers aged 15 or above in 2012 was 10.7% which is
equivalent to around 645,000 smokers, and nearly 70% of them
were aged 30 to 59. On the other hand, though the female
smoking rate remained at around 3% to 4% in recent years, the
number of female daily smokers increased.

In this regard, COSH tailor-made various innovative programmes
in 2014 to 2015 targeting these smokers, as well as conveying
the smoke-free messages to every corner of the society
through different channels and media. We are glad that these
programmes were extensively recognized by the public.

One of the examples is the publicity campaign targeting middle-
aged smokers under the theme of “Quit smoking now! No excuse”
The inspiring smoking cessation stories and tips of five successful
quitters from different backgrounds were shared through social
media, television, radio, newspaper and magazine that struck
a chord with the public. Furthermore, the “Women Smoking
Cessation Promotion Programme”was organized to penetrate the
smoke-free messages to all levels of the society effectively.
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COSH also collaborated with the School of Nursing and School
of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong to roll out the 5t
"Quit to Win" Smoke-free Community Campaign to maintain
a supportive atmosphere towards smoking cessation. With
the continuous support of the 18 District Councils and district
organizations, a series of community-based promotion activities
were launched across the territory reaching over 30,000 citizens
and more than 1,000 smokers were recruited to join the smoking
cessation contest. Winner of the contest was invited to participate
in “Quit smoking now! No excuse”Publicity Campaign to share his
successful experiences and motivate more smokers to kick the
habit.

In addition, COSH partnered with local cartoon character “McDull”
to launch the “Smoke-free Publicity Programme for World No
Tobacco Day” for promoting the importance of a smoke-free
family and encouraging the public to support their family and
friends to quit smoking. The “Smoke-free Family Colouring
Competition” received overwhelming response and attracted
more than 50,000 entries from over 400 local kindergartens and
primary schools. Smoke-free messages were successfully spread
to over 50,000 families.

COSH believes that education is important for tobacco control
and it is crucial to prevent children and youth from picking up
their first cigarette. Apart from “Smoke-free Family Colouring
Competition”, COSH organized School Interactive Education
Theatre “Smoke-free Magic Boy’, “Smoke-free Youth Ambassador
Leadership Training Programme 2014 — 15" and health talks for
“Smoke-free New Generation” to match different development
stages of children and teenagers.
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Since the enactment of the Smoking (Public Health) Ordinance
in 1982, the Government, COSH and various sectors of the
community have worked diligently together to reduce the use
of tobacco successfully through a multi-pronged approach
including legislation, taxation, promotion, education, law
enforcement and promotion of smoking cessation. As the last
amendment on the Ordinance was in 2006, COSH advocated
the Government for further strengthening the measures after
collecting public opinions and analyzing the international trend
in tobacco control.

COSH has conducted “Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey”
annually since 2012. With reference to the Survey in 2014, the
respondents commented that the cigarette retail price should be
increased to HK$106 per pack on average (current retail price is
around HKS55) to effectively motivate smokers to quit smoking.
A world-renowned scholar, Dr Hana ROSS who conducted
researches on the economics of tobacco control also pointed
out that the affordability on tobacco products of Hong Kong
smokers was quite high and there was room for increasing
tobacco tax substantially. COSH held a press conference before
the announcement of the 2015 — 16 Budget, in order to advocate
the Government for raising the tobacco tax by 100% to lower the
smoking prevalence in Hong Kong to single digit in one to two
years. Although the tobacco tax was not raised, the related media
coverage aroused public awareness on this issue.
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The Survey also found that most of the respondents had heard of
electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes), while the rate of youngsters
(aged 15 to 29) who had used e-cigarettes (4.4%) was higher than
people aged 30 or above (1.0%). They cited various reasons that
had caused them to try e-cigarettes, including peer influence
and they thought e-cigarettes were modern and novel. A diverse
range of e-cigarettes targeted at youngsters are available in Hong
Kong. The potential health risks should not be underrated and its
ingredients, safety, sales and promotion are not yet subject to any
monitoring.

COSH has urged the Government to impose a total ban on the
sales, advertising, promotion and sponsorship, distribution,
importation and manufacturing of e-cigarettes in Hong Kong. In
the meantime, COSH will spare no effort in educating the public
on the health risks, as well as conducting research on e-cigarettes
to prevent its epidemic in Hong Kong and further protect the
public health.

Besides, the existing pictorial health warnings of cigarette pack
have been used since 2007 and their deterring effect has faded.
To reduce the use of tobacco and encourage smoking cessation,
COSH sent a letter to the Government in March 2015 to advocate
for adopting plain packaging of tobacco products and using
more impactful pictures. COSH also advised the Government to
increase resources on smoking cessation services.
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To enhance the collaboration in tobacco control across the
regions, COSH hosted the "7 Cross-strait Conference on
Tobacco Control” under the theme of “"MPOWER in Action, FCTC
Implementation”. Around 200 tobacco control experts and
professionals from mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Macau attended the Conference and shared their experiences
and achievements to strengthen the force on curbing tobacco
epidemic. Furthermore, the delegates were invited to visit
Tung Tau Correctional Institution, the first “No Smoking Adult
Correctional Facilities”in Hong Kong.

COSH received numerous recognitions in 2014. The API “Caution!
Cigarettes are as Lethal as a Gun” won the Professional Selection
Award in the "“TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2015,
while COSH website received the Triple Gold Award of “Web
Accessibility Recognition Scheme”.

| would like to express my deepest gratitude to COSH ex-
Chairman, Lisa LAU, for her contribution to tobacco control
works of Hong Kong during her six-year appointment term.
Appreciations also go to COSH Council Members, secretariat, the
Government and different sectors of the community for their
efforts on tobacco control. With joint endeavors of various parties
on promoting smoke-free culture, we hope that the smoking
prevalence will further decrease and Hong Kong will become a
smoke-free city in the near future.
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Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health has been sparing
no effort to protect the public health and motivate smokers
to kick the habit through a variety of education and publicity
programmes. Keeping abreast of the smoking trend in Hong
Kong, tailor-made programmes have been launched for
different sectors of the community. To combat the rise in
number of female smokers in the territory, COSH organized a
series of events in 2014 to 2015 with the support of women
associations to convey smoke-free messages to every corner
of the society and mobilize the wider public to encourage
their smoking female family members and friends to quit.
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According to the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 53 of
the Census and Statistics Department, the smoking prevalence in
Hong Kong is 10.7% now which is equivalent to around 645,000
smokers. The smoking rates of male and female in Hong Kong are
around 19.1% and 3.1% respectively. Though the female smoking
prevalence remained at around 3% to 4% in recent years, the
number of female daily smokers increased by 70%, from the
record low 56,100 in 1990 to 96,800 in 2012. Female daily smokers
aged 30-49 increased drastically (30-39 age group: increased from
24% in 1990 to 6.5% in 2012; 40-49 age group: increased from 1.6%
to 4.2%). Nearly 60% of female smokers have never tried to quit
smoking.

Understanding the Trend and
Characteristics of Smoking among Women

COSH commissioned the School of Nursing and School of Public
Health of The University of Hong Kong to conduct the “Smoking
and Health Survey in Hong Kong Women” to understand the
trend and characteristics of women smoking in Hong Kong. The
survey showed that emotional problems and stress were some
of the most important factors explaining why female smokers
started and continued to smoke. The results aligned with the
Thematic Household Survey Report No. 53 which showed that
more female smokers failed to give up smoking due to “necessity
of easing tension” than male smokers. The survey also indicated
that many respondents did not realize the impact of smoking
on their next generation and outlook, nor the female-specific
health consequences like premature skin aging, cervical cancer,
osteoporosis and early menopause.
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As female smokers have unique characteristics and special needs,
tailor-made services should be provided to encourage them
to kick the habit. Hence, COSH launched the “Women Smoking
Cessation Promotion Programme”in late 2014.

Encourage Women to Take the Leap and
Quit Smoking

A series of diversified events were organized, aiming to raise
awareness on smoking hazards especially the women specific
ones, promote smoking cessation among women, spread the
smoke-free messages to the wider public and mobilize them to
support their smoking female family members and friends to
quit smoking. For example, a publicity event with special make-
up demonstration was held to show the smoking hazards on skin
and physical appearance, such as more wrinkles, decrease in skin
elasticity and stains on teeth. Famous bloggers and artist Tracy
CHU also shared the benefits of living a smoke-free lifestyle as
well as their tips on stress relief and skincare.

Considering that emotional problems and stress are some of
the main reasons of female smoking, Smoke-free Academy was
launched across the territory. Through the district-based classes
on fitness, personal grooming, Chinese medicine and dietary,
participants could learn about keeping fit and beautiful with a
smoke-free healthy lifestyle, as well as information on smoking
hazards and cessation. They were encouraged to develop new
hobbies to relieve stress and reduce negative emotions other
than lighting up a cigarette.
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Peer support and encouragement are the keys for smokers to
take the leap and quit smoking. Therefore, Smoke-free Academy
welcomed female smokers to join with their family and friends.

Mobilize Different Sectors to Support
Smoking Cessation

Support from different sectors and district organizations is crucial
to effectively spread the smoke-free messages all over Hong
Kong. “Women Smoking Cessation Promotion Programme” has
gained support from over 30 women associations which helped
promote and recruit participants through their sound network.
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COSH also disseminated information on female-specific smoking
hazards and rectified the myths of smoking cessation (such as
gaining weight after giving up smoking) through social network,
online platform, television, newspapers and magazines. To provide
female quitters with appropriate and professional support, COSH
worked closely with local smoking cessation service providers
and referred cases for their follow-up.

The harmful impact of smoking should never be underestimated.
“Women Smoking Cessation Promotion Programme” will continue
in 2015 to 2016 to further convey the message of smoking
hazards on appearance, health and the next generation to the
public and urge more smokers to toss the cigarette away. COSH
will keep advocating the Government for increasing resources
on women-oriented smoking cessation services together with
psychological and emotional support to help reduce female
smokers’ dependency on tobacco. Smoke-free promotion
specially-designed for women should also be enhanced to lower
the population of female smokers. Let’s join hands to build a
smoke-free family.
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The 57“Quit to Win" Smoke-free Community
Campaign Smoking Cessation Counseling
Training

"Smoke-free Publicity Programme for World No
Tobacco Day”Kick-off Event

Smoke-free Publicity Programme for World No
Tobacco Day

"Strengthen Women-oriented Smoking
Cessation Services"Press Conference

The 5""Quit to Win"Smoke-free Community
Campaign

The 5""Quit to Win" Smoke-free Community
Campaign Launch Ceremony

"Tobacco Tax Policy in Hong Kong: The Way
Forward"Press Conference

New APIs “Stop Third-hand Smoke from Killing
Your Family”and “Caution! Cigarettes are as
Lethal as a Gun”

Women Smoking Cessation Promotion
Programme

Women Smoking Cessation Promaotion
Programme — Infomercials “Smoke-free Beauty
Diary”

“Substantial Tobacco Tax Increase to Lower
Smoking Prevalence Quickly” Press Conference

“Women Smoking Cessation Promaotion
Programme” Publicity Event

Advocacy on Raising Tobacco Tax

"Quit smoking now! No excuse” Publicity
Campaign

Successful Quitters'Sharing cum the 5" “Quit to
Win"Prize Presentation Ceremony

“Support a Total Ban on Electronic Cigarettes”
Press Conference
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HEBERH#ERE Community Involvement and Promotion

2014 255 BRES S 4 1 R B B 2014 Kwai Chung Hospital Support for World
= /& T SEINMNRAEHE

2014/5/27 . No Tobacco Day cum Prize Presentation of the
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Smoke-free Cooking Competition

Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project

. 45 2| =tz .
2014/6-2015/3  [#EEER ] 5181201415 o141

. - N Hong Kong International Dental E d
2014/8/22 - 24 EBER T RIS BB E 2014 o gng TematonaT e o A
Symposium 2014

2014/9/21 EIEE R Smoke-free New Generation Carnival

“Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project

4 478 | ot _ %
2014/10/24 [EfEE R0 ] 51812014 15 BB ZE 2014 15"Launch Cerernony

Central and Western District Health Festival

2014/11/1 -2 2014/15 FE 78 1= (@ FR D 2014/15

CLPP Safety, Health & Environment (SHE) Day

2014/11/29 RETENLEEERRA 2014 2014
. N Yan OiTong New Territories West Health Festival
2014/12/13 B HEE T RT 2014 o1 9
2015/3/8 BEBNBE L RF TR RFERE Open Day cum Spring Carnival of the New
EMRE R LR B Voice Club of Hong Kong
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BALEHAEER Youth Education Programmes

2014/4 - 2015/3
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Health Talks for“Smoke-free New Generation”

Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership
Training Programme 2014 - 15

School Interactive Education Theatre
“Smoke-free Magic Boy”

"Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership
Training Programme 2014 — 15"
Award Presentation Ceremony

2014/5/22

2014/10/12

2014/10/15 &
2015/1/24

2014/10/28,
11/11&11/13

2015/2/24
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Rotary Club of Hong Kong North —
Tobacco Control Seminar

CUHK Medical Society Health Exhibition 2014

HKU Youth Quitline — Smoking Cessation
Counselor Training Workshop

HKU School of Nursing — Nursing Programme

Ching Chung Action Foundation —
Volunteer Award Presentation Ceremony
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The 7™ Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco

2014/9/2 -3 FEMEHEER R R e
Control

Summit on Child Health and the Environment

2014/10/11-13 REREHERESETE 2014 o4

2014/11/8 RPN ERE Macau Smoking Cessation Forum

. N The 2" WHO Fellowship Programme on
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Tobacco Control

s | P N The 16" World Conference on Tobacco or
2015/3/17-21 B AEtHREERRBRSE

Health

ZEEE) Visits
o Exchange Students of Li Ka Shing Faculty of

2014/4/30 BEBRETRHBESHRIINE o o J /

Medicine of The University of Hong Kong
2014/7/25 BPEERES Officials of Macau Health Bureau
2014/11/6 EB TR A Paediatrician from the USA

- Vietnam Steering Committee on Smoking and

2014/11/7 HEREREREEEEE J J

Health
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Smoke-free Publicity Programme for
World No Tobacco Day

World Health Organization (WHO) dedicated every 31 May as
World No Tobacco Day to raise public awareness on tobacco
hazards around the world. To celebrate the World No Tobacco
Day and the 20™ Anniversary of International Year of the Family in
2014, COSH collaborated with local cartoon character “McDull” to
launch the “Smoke-free Publicity Campaign for World No Tobacco
Day"to promote the importance of a smoke-free family, motivate
smokers to kick the habit, as well as encourage the public to
support their family and friends to quit smoking.

COSH produced 2 versions of McDull smoke-free postcard to
highlight the importance of smoke-free family and distributed to
over 60,000 citizens through smoke-free ambassadors across the
territory and circulation with a free newspaper on 30 May 2014.
An electronic version was also available for the mass public to
spread the smoke-free messages through emails.
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COSH partnered with Commercial Radio One to produce four
episodes of “Go smoke-free with love” programme broadcasted in
May 2014 during the radio programme “Kot bless you” to promote
a smoke-free living. Audiences called the host Eric KOT to convey
caring messages to their smoking family members and shared
how they enhanced the smokers' determination and motivation
to kick the habit.

Kick-off Event

The kick-off event was held on 31 May 2014 at East Point City,
Tseung Kwan O. Officiating guests included Dr KO Wing-man,
Secretary for Food and Health, Prof Sophia CHAN, Under Secretary
for Food and Health, Dr Constance CHAN, Director of Health, Prof
LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert
Kotewall Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health, The
University of Hong Kong and Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman.

CHUI Pui-shan, a student participated in the “Smoke-free Homes
and Smoke-free Teens Campaign”in 2011 was also invited to
share her experience in motivating her mother to quit smoking
successfully. To prevent teenagers and children from picking up
the first cigarette and motivate more smokers to kick the habit,
artists Regen CHEUNG, Jay FUNG and Winkie LAl of Hotcha
promoted the smoking hazards and benefits of smoking cessation
through interactive games. "Hong Kong Tobacco Control Alliance’,
comprising former Chairmen, Vice-chairmen, Council members
and Executive Directors of COSH, was also united at the event.
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Smoke-free Family Colouring Competition

COSH organized the “Smoke-free Family Colouring Competition”
to promote the smoke-free family message among students
and parents during September to November 2014. The students
designed and coloured a McDull-and-friend worksheet with
family to spread smoke-free messages and motivate smoking
parents to kick the habit. The competition received overwhelming
response and attracted more than 50,000 entries from over 400
local kindergartens and primary schools, reaching over 50,000
families. The judging panel selected ten outstanding entries for
each category (kindergarten, primary schools lower form and
upper form) according to the colouring skills, creativity and
delivery of smoke-free messages. Outstanding entries were
awarded with book voucher and certificate.

“Strengthen Women-oriented Smoking
Cessation Services” Press Conference

COSH hosted a press conference on 19 June 2014 to draw the
public attention on women smoking in Hong Kong and advocate
the Government for increasing resources on women-oriented
smoking cessation services. Speakers included Prof LAM Tai-hing,
Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall

Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health, The University
of Hong Kong, Dr William LI, Assistant Professor, School of Nursing,
The University of Hong Kong, Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman and
Antonio KWONG, COSH Vice-chairman.
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Lisa LAU remarked at the press conference, “The number of daily
smokers, including male daily smokers has decreased gradually
over the years. However, the number of female daily smokers
in 2012 increased by 72.5% as compared with 1990. We deeply
concern the prevalence of women smoking.”

COSH has commissioned the School of Nursing and School
of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong to conduct
the “Smoking and Health Survey in Hong Kong Women” to
understand the trend and characteristics of women smoking in
Hong Kong. The survey showed that emotional problems and
stress were some of the most important factors explaining why
female smokers started and continued to smoke. The results
aligned with the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 53 of
the Census and Statistics Department which showed that more
female smokers failed to give up smoking due to “necessity of
easing tension”than male smokers. It was also found that around
37% of current smokers were occasional smokers and the nicotine
dependency of more than half of the daily smokers was mild.
It reflected that the quit rate of female smokers in Hong Kong
could be enhanced if suitable smoking cessation services were
provided.

COSH concerns the prevalence of women smoking in Hong
Kong and advocated the Government for formulating long-term
tobacco control policies which included setting aside sustainable
funding for specially-designed women smoking cessation
services, educating the public on gender-specific health hazards
of smoking and developing tailor-made marketing strategies to
raise the public awareness on the issues of women smoking and
smoking cessation services, exerting the influence of female in
the community and family, as well as motivating non-smokers as
peer support group to women smokers.
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The 5" “Quit to Win” Smoke-free
Community Campaign

According to the Thematic Household Survey Report No. 53 of
the Census and Statistics Department, the smoking prevalence in
Hong Kong reached its lowest record of 10.7% in 2012. However,
among the 645,000 daily smokers, over 60% had not tried to quit
smoking. In order to encourage more smokers to kick the habit
and create a positive atmosphere for smoking cessation in Hong
Kong, COSH has organized “Quit to Win" Contest since 2009. The
contest has successfully motivated over 1,000 smokers to quit
smoking and spread the smoke-free messages to over 20,000
citizens every year.

The 5%"Quit to Win" Smoke-free Community Campaign was again
supported by the 18 District Councils and district organizations
and co-organized with School of Nursing and School of Public
Health of The University of Hong Kong (HKU) to disseminate the
smoke-free messages to every corner of the community.

Launch Ceremony

The launch ceremony was held on 5 July 2014 at Domain Mall in
Yau Tong. Officiating guests included Prof Sophia CHAN, Under
Secretary for Food and Health, Dr Constance CHAN, Director of
Health, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community Medicine
& Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public Health, School of Public
Health, The University of Hong Kong, Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman
and Antonio KWONG, COSH Vice-chairman. Representatives of
the District Councils and district working partners also attended
to show their support.
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The champion of the 4"“Quit to Win"Contest, CHAN Kwok-cheung,
was invited to share his quit tips and successful experience during
the ceremony. He encouraged smokers to quit smoking as soon
as possible to protect the health of themselves and their family
members. Artists Sherman CHUNG and Ken HUNG also promoted
the smoke-free messages through interactive games and singing
performance. Smokers were motivated to take their first steps to
kick the habit by joining the contest.

Smoking Cessation Counseling Training

The Smoking Cessation Counseling Training was co-organized
with HKU for the smoke-free ambassadors and volunteers of
district working partners on 26 May, 13 and 26 June 2014. The
training was aimed to enhance their knowledge on tobacco
control and smoking cessation counseling, which facilitated them

to conduct recruitment and smoke-free promotion in different
districts.
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The training was delivered by Prof LAM Tai-hing, School of Public
Health, The University of Hong Kong, Vienna LAI, COSH Executive
Director and experienced smoking cessation counselors.
Successful quitters of “Quit to Win" Contest were also invited to
share their quit stories. Harmful effects of smoking, secondhand
and third-hand smoke, brief smoking cessation counseling skills
and advices on organizing smoke-free publicity events were
introduced through seminars, group discussions, role play and
case studies. Over 60 staff and volunteers from district partners
and university students attended the training. Participants were
awarded with certificate.

District Smoke-free Promotion and Recruitment
Activities

COSH and the district working partners organized more than
65 smoke-free promotion and recruitment activities across the
territory from June to September 2015. The activities successfully
promoted the tobacco hazards and benefits of smoking cessation
to over 30,000 citizens and recruited some 1,300 smokers to
join the 5 "Quit to Win" Contest. Smoke-free messages were
conveyed to the public through game booths, exhibition panels
and pamphlets.
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R HEHEAE District Working Partners

a2k B Z# w20
Central & Western Yuen Yuen v-learn Women Centre
B S 4w Bt
B E Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women's Association
Islands EEEBHLEFE ARG ETERER
Hong Kong Young Women's Christian Association Tai O Community Work Office
FUBEML NEEEE
Kowloon City The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon
e ZELEHRLERATHE
Kwai Tsing Kwai Tsing Safe Community and Healthy City Association
BE NBEmLIE
Kwun Tong Kowloon Women'’s Organizations Federation
pie BiEeBESeERGRARBEH O
North Jockey Club Yung Shing Lutheran Integrated Service Centre
HRERZEHE
g [& Southern District Healthy and Safe Association
Southern EhERELE
Hong Kong Southern District Women's Association
RNifRERBE
KIF Tai Po District Residents Association
Tai Po NiF RIS
Tai Po District Federation of Women
By 2R RFHERESEREE
Tsuen Wan Tsuen Wan Safe and Healthy Community Steering Committee
P EEERZEBBIURGEEFTLFRET L
HKMCSDA Shan King Integrated Children and Youth Services Centre of Seventh-day
Tuen Mun )
Adventists
s RESEHIERBEEFFEERERTIFREDL
ﬁan Chai Wan Chai Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre of Baptist Oi Kwan Social
Service
\BAMIREREZ 2 H
= AL Wong Tai Sin District Healthy & Safe City
Wong Tai Sin B g B
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
TCEA RIK Bl g
Yuen Long Tin Shui Wai Women Association
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“Quit to Win" District Smoke-free Promotion and Recruitment Activities

H HA Date

2014/6/21

2014/6/21

2014/6/22

2014/6/22

2014/6/27

2014/6/28

2014/6/28 - 29

2014/6/29

2014/7/4

2014/7/6

2014/7/6

2014/7/9-10

2014/7/12 & 8/26
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2014/7/13
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BIEES

Kwun Tong Plaza
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2014/8/10
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2014/8/17

2014/8/19
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2014/8/24 & 8/31

K
Sham Shui Po

P
=
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KNI
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=E

Kwai Tsing
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SR SSHE
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Kwai Chung Plaza
R

Fu Shin Estate
LSRR

Kwai Chung Estate
REYP

Leung King Estate
ARES
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frrei@

Lockhart Road
FED A O
Metro City Plaza
pERE

Cheng Tu Road
R
Olympian City
Bl

Kut Shing Street
D EES
ShaTin Plaza
{a] 3 &5
Homantin Plaza

ERES
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Wah Ming Shopping Centre

A
Pak Sha Road
RS

Yung Shing Shopping Centre

FRIRTGEE
Central Pier

B AL
Argyle Centre

45




46

SEE Events

2014/8/27
2014/8/30
2014/9/10 - 11
2014/9/13
2014/9/14
2014/9/15
2014/9/17
2014/9/20
2014/9/20
2014/9/20
2014/9/22

2014/9/29
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Wong Tai Sin Temple Court
KRB
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Tai O Community Hall



BRAESAEIN - ZE S EMERBHEBIIER
BIERRT —RINBESELE  BEREER
FE - FELRE HEeRERTEBRESE
UiEmEATRERERYEERE MAUED

Ao A

=7 =
VN

[MEARK] LE

BERSIMN HERRK] LBOTEAL 1
BERIGEAR X — S oK R S
BMERHE  TAHEXINREREEHEHR
SN BERN—EES  —@A WEA - =
@A RNEAERRERRE - THREAERS
RIS -

E=EABRER  ARBMERIHENSEE
SREF2MAEZEAR - RIEBRAHA
SERENESRS(FEE - YR 2 E ML
REARE  RREEER -

JEED Events

In addition to the recruitment sessions, a series of smoke-free
promotion activities were co-organized with district working
partners, such as health carnivals, health talks, exhibitions,
performance and talent shows to enhance knowledge on
smoking hazards and smoking cessation among the residents in
the community.

“Quit to Win” Contest

Eligible participants of the “Quit to Win" Contest were required to
undertake the breath test on carbon monoxide and receive brief
smoking cessation counseling at the recruitment sessions. Five
times of telephone follow-up were provided to the participants
by trained smoking cessation counselors at 1-week, 1-month,
2-month, 3-month and 6-month.

Participants who quitted successfully were invited to undertake
the biochemical validation at the 3-month follow-up. Validated
quitters received monetary award and were eligible to join the

lucky draw or interview to win fabulous prizes.
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Prize Presentation Ceremony

The Successful Quitters’ Sharing cum the 5™ “Quit to Win" Prize
Presentation Ceremony was held on 6 March 2015 at Domain
Mall, Yau Tong. Officiating guests included Prof Sophia CHAN,
Under Secretary for Food and Health, Dr Sarah CHOI, Assistant
Director of Health (Special Health Services), Prof LAM Tai-hing,
Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall
Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health, The University
of Hong Kong, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman and Yolanda
NG, COSH Vice-chairman. Representatives of District Councils and
district working partners also attended the ceremony to show
their support and congratulations to the successful quitters.

Winners of the 5 “Quit to Win" Contest were invited to share their
successful experiences in the ceremony. The champion Henry LEE
Hing-lim, had smoked for over 20 years. He had quitted for seven
years but replased when worked in mainland China where the
clients distributed cigarette to everyone in the meeting. He joined
the "Quit to Win" smoking cessation contest to protect his wife
and daughter from the hazards of secondhand and third-hand
smoke. He claimed that determination was crucial to kick the
habit. Quitters should also inform more people on their decision
who could be their monitor. Mr Lee uploaded his certificate of
smoking cessation to social media and got enormous “Like”.
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The first runner-up CHAN Yuk-kam spent over 20 years as a
smoker and smoked one packet everyday. Smoking brought
negative impact on her health, self-confidence and working
performance. From the time she joined the contest, she had
started to reduce the use of cigarettes gradually such as not to
smoke in the morning, not to bring cigarettes back to workplace,
and finally kicked the habit entirely. She restored her health and
a more active social life. She had also got promoted after quitting
smoking successfully as her supervisor noticed that she spent
more time on working and no longer had the bad smell of smoke.

The second runner-up CHEUNG Kam-hon started smoking due
to curiosity when he was young and had smoked for more than
40 years. He got lymphoma cancer in 2007, but he continued
to smoke even when the doctor advised him to stop. This time,
he wanted to kick the habit for a better health and to protect
his family members from secondhand and third-hand smoke.
With his determination, he quitted finally and his wife was the
happiest one. His tips on cessation were taking deep breath and
eating candy to divert attention. His sense of smell and taste was
improved now.

49




50

SEE Events

[MEARK]HE

HEETHRE  AFLEARSEEERLRAKE
EERBELBEENOREBNR LETTR2H
7 WER BB  RUE S Mt 8 H BB A

—EARNEANEFRED D HIN2015%F
2AK4 AR - WHEBRSEHEIRETRA
DI - BBENFZER - ZEAARENBRRE
FXNRUER 59.9% » 1= 2 —H2BERE
ERL—FHALE - BEAMRERENREAD
Mrig i -

SESN - ETEIE L TAUERRMER | THEMIE
= BCPARUIEET S - AUERE L - AAHINEE - /)
BEMERFEF  BREREBNTAEE
EEEANEIAE -

FEIME © www.quittowin.hk

|

“Quit to Win” Research Study

School of Nursing and School of Public Health of HKU, which
provided professional smoking cessation follow-up and
counseling to the participants, were commissioned to conduct a
research study to evaluate the effectiveness of specific smoking
cessation intervention as well as the Campaign.

The 3-month and 6-month follow-up calls were completed in
February and April 2015. According to the preliminary results,
the self-reported quit rate was 9.9% in the 3-month follow-up,
and nearly one-third of participants reduced daily cigarettes
consumption by at least 50%. Final analysis is in progress and the
result will be published afterwards.

The Campaign also launched the "Quit to Win" mobile application
which was designed with special features such as cessation
plans, quit tips, camera, mini games and social media platform to
provide smoke-free information and assistance in an interactive
and relaxing way.

Campaign Website: www.quittowin.hk
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“Tobacco Tax Policy in Hong Kong: The Way
Forward” Press Conference

Raising tobacco tax has been proved as one of the most effective
tobacco control policies in encouraging smokers to kick the habit
and preventing children and teenagers from initiating smoking in
many countries and regions including Hong Kong. COSH hosted a
press conference on 4 September 2014 and invited Dr Hana ROSS,
a world-renowned scholar who has over 17 years’ experience in
conducting researches on the economics of tobacco control, to
analyze and give advice on the tobacco tax policy in Hong Kong.

According to the analysis of Dr Hana ROSS, the affordability
on tobacco products of Hong Kong smokers is quite high. She
recommended to increase the tobacco tax by at least 57% to
further lower the smoking prevalence in Hong Kong to single
digit.

Dr Hana ROSS pointed out that tobacco tax has been raised in
Hong Kong for more than 10 times since the 1980s, however
mostly with mild increment. Although the cigarette’s price
increased by over 300% from 1989 to 2013, the real price only
increased by 25% after deducting inflation. Besides, the average
income in Hong Kong also raised. The affordability on tobacco
products of Hong Kong smokers had actually increased and is
much higher (meaning that cigarettes are much cheaper) than
that of the nearby regions and many developed countries such
as Singapore, Thailand, Australia, the United Kingdom and New
Zealand.
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Dr Ross elaborated, "Raising tobacco tax can reduce the
affordability on tobacco products and motivate the smokers to
quit smoking”

Apart from tobacco tax increase, COSH also urged the
Government to strengthen and amend the current tobacco
control policies including expanding the statutory no-smoking
areas, banning display and all forms of promotion of tobacco
products, regulating the sales of tobacco products and increasing
resources on smoking cessation. Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman said,
“Besides increasing tobacco tax, a long-term and comprehensive
planning on tobacco control policies is needed to encourage
smokers to quit smoking and prevent children and youth from
smoking. We hope to reduce the smoking rate to below 10% as
soon as possible”.

In addition, there are more adverse health consequences causally
linked to smoking have been identified recently. Therefore, COSH
proposed to establish a policy to rotate the pictorial warnings
on a regular basis, enlarge the coverage of the warnings on
the cigarette packet’s surface, highlight that “at least one out of
two smokers would be killed by smoking”and add the smoking
cessation hotline (1833 183).

Prof LAM Tai-hing of the School of Public Health, The University
of Hong Kong remarked, many researches proved that one in
every two smokers would die early from smoking, and for those
who started smoking at young age and have smoked heavily
for many years, two out of three could be killed by smoking. To
protect the public health and save lives, the smoking prevalence
in Hong Kong must be further reduced through the long-term,
comprehensive and multi-pronged tobacco control policies.



SHEEEL [UYm T8
BBEFERIRIE B8
ALUEA o i 1]

ZEQNTRELHEEES  BRATRE
BESHE TEBABIFEFENREAL
HBRIER - ZEE LB N2014F R 2015F 4]
HHMEENEEER —[2H9Hm —FEH
BEMERIE[E - B—F ATUEA /N
1] DRIAKINAERE A B X R AR
BAVETRTPEA  UWHMBRFAEEEEE

B o
TN

R % W& LA 2% P] R P 40 SRU5S R AUE IR e )
TRESME - MEHMANTE - [FShH

“TFEHBEFRER] BAMLETEBESHR
B =FE (BERER ARG S R BUEY
BINERBEREENTR  BE - KEMK
BLE - BERANREE - REATHNHETNE
ROMSE - RERARE —FEM=FENR
T HARIEERE

JEED Events

New APIs “Stop Third-hand Smoke from
Killing Your Family” and “Caution! Cigarettes
are as Lethal as a Gun”

COSH produced various APIs in recent years to publicize smoking
hazards and encourage the public to support smokers to kick
the habit. COSH launched two new APIs, “Stop Third-hand Smoke
from Killing Your Family”in 2014 and “Caution! Cigarettes are
as Lethal as a Gun”in early 2015, to further promote smoke-
free messages in a humorous way. Successful quitter, artist Pal
SINN, and local cartoon character participated in the two APIs
respectively.

Many smokers misunderstand ventilating a room while smoking
could reduce the harm to others’health. The API“Stop Third-hand
Smoke from Killing Your Family” rectified this fallacy and remarked

that third-hand smoke, the toxic residues of tobacco smoke
contamination, would cling to clothing, hair and skin of smokers,
as well as furniture which adversely affects the family. In order to
protect his wife and daughter from secondhand smoke and third-
hand smoke, the father in the APl decided to kick the habit for a
smoke-free family.

S R
1833 183
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In addition, COSH inspired middle-aged smokers to give up
smoking and develop a smoke-free lifestyle through API“Caution!
Cigarettes are as Lethal as a Gun” In the API, the undercover agent
had investigated the case for 30 years after graduating from Police
College. However, he perished in the line of duty not because
of gunshots, but excessive inhalation of tobacco smoke and
secondhand smoke.

The two APIs were listed as the finalist of “TVB Most Popular TV
Commercial Awards 2015" organized by Television Broadcasts
Limited. The APl “Caution! Cigarettes are as Lethal as a Gun” also
received the Professional Selection Award.

In addition, the API titled “Get started! Quit now” - Doubt Version
(2013) was awarded the Excellent Award in the video category
of “The 9" Public Service Advertising Competition City of Design
(Shenzhen, China)” organized by Shenzhen city. It showed the
effectiveness of the APl in encouraging the citizens to adopt a
smoke-free healthy lifestyle.

With the wide recognition, COSH will continue its education,

promotion and advocacy works through a variety of forms and
channels including API to disseminate the smoke-free messages
to the citizens.




B LA | ZEAE
WERTE

ERBRZTHRIERL HB31% - HRTFL
MREREFVNEDZ=ZEN  BEXHEEHR
BATEHBANZE EABE - EFLA30E495%
HI4B Bl FH I8 £ A (30 & 39 B 1 1990 F #9 2.4% |
F+E2012F H65% : 402 495% B 16% + F+ &
42%) ° MM REEE R E AL AKHERER
FNE ©

EREM  ZEER2014FE 2016 FEEY 5
HZANGE] LR EHERE - B EEZLTH
HRERE  BEHEANE  BEET—R
MEE  RHRLMRE  EFZEHESHRALHE
REBWEALHE  BEEEENTES S
ItesEAE - HEESR0ARTEES
Ffo

AEBRER-RIEY  MEFEFRA R
RRSELY NHERIKESEm LB MR
X7 PERRLZEZEERE  UEH
WREBRELMEERNS  FELETHREESL
REEINK - UERENERZE

[EBEXEAW | EREEER

Z B gR2014F11 A E2015F1 A EHnow TV
BIE - BUWET — 5| [BIEXERAR] SREE
A fEnow TVEEE R ARZMT HHEE ik
W BENEREZX LR AZRHARESEE &
HRBEHNTE - WIREMERL L -

|

JEED Events

Women Smoking Cessation Promotion
Programme

The smoking rate among female in Hong Kong is now around
3.1%. Though the female smoking prevalence remained at around
3% to 4% in recent years, the number of female daily smokers
increased. Female daily smokers aged 30 — 49 increased drastically
(30 - 39 age group: increased from 2.4% in 1990 to 6.5% in 2012;
40 - 49 age group: increased from 1.6% to 4.2%). Nearly 60% of
female smokers have never tried to quit smoking.

In order to promote smoking cessation among women and the
hazards of smoking especially the women specific ones, COSH
launched the “Women Smoking Cessation Promotion Programme”
with support of over 30 women associations. The Programme also
aimed to spread the smoke-free messages to the wider public to
mobilize them to support their smoking female family members
and friends to quit.

The Programme contained a series of activities to inform the
public about the smoking hazards, smoking cessation information
and importance of a healthy smoke-free lifestyle. These activities
included production of infomercials, organizing publicity event,
distributing promotion materials in community and conducting
fitness, personal grooming, Chinese medicine and dietary classes.

Infomercials “Smoke-free Beauty Diary”

From November 2014 to January 2015, COSH cooperated with
now TV to produce a series of infomercials “Smoke-free Beauty
Diary” to promote smoking hazards on skin, appearance and
health, as well as cessation tips. The short films were broadcasted
on now TV's channels and some of the local public transports.
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The infomercials contains three episodes (about 60 seconds
each) namely “Skincare’, “Mother-to-be” and “Smoking Cessation
Methods” The actress Maggie was a bride-to-be who learned how
smoking adversely affected her appearance, fertility and health,
and got tips on smoking cessation when meeting the make-up
artist, gynecologist and smoking cessation counsellor. Smoking
cessation hotline was also introduced to facilitate the audience to
seek assistance if needed.

Grand Make-up Class

Two “Grand Make-up Classes” were co-organized with now TV
on 23 and 30 January 2015. Renowned make-up artist, Will OR
introduced the latest make-up skills and skin care tips, as well as
the smoking hazards towards women’s appearance, to promote
the benefits of kicking the habit and being smoke-free.

Publicity Event

A publicity event for the Programme was held at apm shopping
mall in Kwun Tong on 23 January 2015 to promote women
smoking cessation through special make-up demonstration
showing the smoking hazards on skin and physical appearance
such as early wrinkles and spots on skin. Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-
chairman pointed out that smoking is hazardous to health such as
lower bone density, earlier menopause and reduction of fertility.
She encouraged the female smokers to kick the habit as soon as
possible for their skin and health.
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According to the “Smoking and Health Survey in Hong Kong
Women" conducted by COSH and the School of Nursing and
School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong, emotional
problems and stress were some of the most important factors
explaining why female smokers started and continued to smoke.
Therefore, COSH invited artist Tracy CHU to share her experience
on stress relief. Beauty bloggers, Emmanuel and Queenie also
provided tips on skin care, make-up and smoke-free living during
the event. COSH hosted a booth for the public to test their skin
quality. The public could also use the photo booth with special
effects to see the future of themselves if they smoke for 10 years
and shared the photos to social media to encourage their family
and friends to quit smoking for a better health and appearance.

Smoke-free Academy

District-based classes will be conducted from April 2015 to
February 2016 across the territory covering fitness, personal
grooming, Chinese medicine and dietary. Information on smoking
hazards and smoking cessation will be delivered in the classes
to encourage the participants to adopt a healthy and smoke-
free lifestyle. The participants intended to quit will be referred to
smoking cessation services in Hong Kong.

Programme Webpage: www.smokefree.nk/women

Advocacy on Raising Tobacco Tax

Raising tobacco tax is one of the most effective tobacco
control measures to lower the smoking prevalence in Hong
Kong. COSH hosted “Substantial Tobacco Tax Increase to Lower
Smoking Prevalence Quickly” Press Conference on 7 January
2015 to advocate a substantial tobacco tax increase in Hong
Kong. Speakers included Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of
Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman, Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-
chairman and Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director.

Antonio KWONG said, “COSH advocated the Government for
raising the tobacco tax substantially by 100% in 2015 — 2016 fiscal
year to lower the smoking prevalence in Hong Kong to single
digit in one to two years and protect public health”
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COSH conducted the "Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey
2014"and interviewed 2,419 citizens including 819 never smokers,
800 ex-smokers and 800 current smokers by telephone through
random sampling during May to September 2014. The findings
showed that overall respondents thought the cigarette retail
price should reach HK$106 per pack on average (retail price in
2014 was around HKS55) to effectively motivate the smokers to
quit while the current smokers commented that the price should
be increased to HK$171, which was much higher than the ex-
smokers (HK$123) and never smokers (HK$98).

The Government raised the tobacco tax by only 20 cents per stick
in 2014 - 2015 fiscal year, which was around 11.8%. Over 65%
(65.3%) of the respondents commented that the increment failed
to encourage smokers to kick the habit.

The tobacco industry and its allies always express strong
opposition against tobacco tax increase under the pretext
that it will lead to a surge in cigarette smuggling activities. A
study claimed that illicit cigarettes proliferated in Hong Kong
and composed for over 30% of cigarette consumption in two
consecutive years. As recommended by the World Health
Organization, the most effective measure against smuggling is
tight control and aggressive enforcement.
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COSH commissioned the School of Public Health, The University
of Hong Kong to make an alternative estimation of illicit cigarette
consumption in Hong Kong in a scientific way with transparent
and testable assumptions. It was estimated that the consumption
of illicit cigarettes in Hong Kong ranged from around 8.2%
to 15.4% of total consumption. The estimation was based on
reliable data from government departments including Census
and Statistics Department, Customs and Excise Department,
Immigration Department and Tourism Board. The abstract
received wide recognition and was published in Tobacco Control
of British Medical Journal.

Subsequent to the press conference, COSH sent an open letter,
in co-signatory with medical and health organizations and
academia, to the Financial Secretary in February 2015 to reiterate
that raising tobacco tax was one of the most effective tobacco
control measures. The Government was called on raising tobacco
tax by 100% in 2015 - 2016 fiscal year, formulating a proactive and
long-term policy on tobacco tax and allocating more resources
on tobacco control, including smoke-free education, smoking
cessation services and enforcement to combat smuggling, in
order to further reduce the smoking prevalence and achieve a
smoke-free Hong Kong by 2022.
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“Quit smoking now! No excuse”
Publicity Campaign

To motivate middle-aged smokers to quit as soon as possible
and to create a social atmosphere for a smoke-free Hong Kong,
COSH invited five successful quitters from different backgrounds
to share their inspiring smoking cessation stories and tips under
the theme of “Quit Smoking now! No excuse”. They were Pal
SINN (artist), HON Man-kwai (laryngectomee), Henry LEE Hing-
lim (champion of the 5" “Quit to Win" Smoke-free Community
Campaign), Montagut CHUEN (animator) and Prof Patrick WONG
Lung-tak (accountant). A series of short episodes were produced
and broadcasted in various media platforms.

Pal SINN also composed a brand new cessation song for the
Campaign by managing the melody, lyric, music arrangement
and vocal. Famous musician, Mark LUI, who has quitted smoking
earlier, was invited to be the music director. The song was to
support the quitters and to promote the advantages of cessation.
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Stories of Successful Quitters
Pal SINN, artist

Pal SINN had smoked for 30 years since he was 17. He knew
smoking was hazardous to health and yet he continued to smoke
with different excuses such as for refreshment and inspiration. On
his 47-year-old birthday, he decided to quit smoking and restore
health as the best gift to himself. Pal has kicked the smoking habit
for nine years and he reiterated that smoking had nothing to do
with socializing.

HON Man-guai, recovered from laryngeal cancer

HON Man-guai picked up the smoking habit when he was 13.
All of his colleagues in nightclub were smokers and he could
consume four to five packs of cigarette per day. In 1989, Hon
started to have a hoarse voice and even completely lost his voice.
He was diagnosed with laryngeal cancer. Although he finally
kicked the habit before the surgery, he still lost his ability to speak
as his larynx was removed. HON felt relieved and more energetic
after saying no to smoking and recovering from cancer. He is
now the Vice-president (external affairs) of The New Voice Club of
Hong Kong helping the laryngeal cancer survivors to rebuild their
lives and actively disseminating smoke-free messages to every
corner of the city.

LEE Hing-lim, champion of the 5% "Quit to Win" Contest

LEE Hing-lim, champion of the 5" “Quit to Win" Smoke-free
Community Campaign, had smoked for more than 20 years. He
had quitted for seven years but relapsed when he worked in
mainland China and no longer had intention to quit. Mr Lee read
the advertisement of “Quit to Win" smoking cessation contest
one day which he believed could enhance his motivation and
determination with the professional counseling service provided.
He joined the contest on his wife's birthday last year which was
the best gift he could have prepared for his loved one. When
his certificate of smoking cessation was uploaded to the social
media, he got enormous “Like”
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Montagut CHUEN, animator

Montagut CHUEN tried her first cigarette when she was a form
three secondary school student. In 2005, when she was 22 years
old, Montagut was diagnosed with nasopharyngeal cancer (stage
[1). She has recovered and now records the sweets and bitters
during her illness through painting to comfort the survivors
from deadly diseases especially those who have been harmed
by tobacco. As a nasopharyngeal cancer survivor, she still suffers
from nosebleeds when she smells the cigarette smoke.

Prof Patrick WONG Lung-tak, accountant

Prof Patrick WONG Lung-tak started to smoke at 15 due to
curiosity and peer pressure. He used to consume three packs of
Cigarettes a day. The bad smell of smoking caused him missing
lots of valuable family time as his kids refused to get close to him.
He restored his happy family life by quitting smoking as a gift to
his kids in 1995. His health was greatly improved and he didn't
have to gasp for breath anymore. In order to promote smoke-free
messages, Prof Wong acts as a role model to encourage smokers
to quit by setting up the Quit-Winners Club.
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Successful Quitters’ Sharing

COSH hosted the “Successful Quitters’ Sharing” event under the
theme of "Quit Smoking now! No excuse” on 6 March 2015 at
Domain Mall in Yau Tong. Officiating guests included Prof Sophia
CHAN, Under Secretary for Food and Health, Dr Sarah CHOI,
Assistant Director of Health (Special Health Services), Prof LAM
Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert
Kotewall Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health, The
University of Hong Kong, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman and
Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-chairman.

Pal SINN and other successful quitters shared their smoking
cessation experiences during the event. Pal SINN also interpreted
the new cessation song. Five episodes of videos were premiered
and broadcasted in various media platforms afterwards. Artists
Adrian CHOW, Sheldon LO, James NG and Natalie TONG also
spread the smoke-free messages through interesting games.

Campaign Webpage: www.smokefree.hk/quitters
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“Support a Total Ban on Electronic
Cigarettes” Press Conference

Electronic cigarette (e-cigarette) has a rapid growth with
hundredfold increase in global sales in recent years. A wide variety
of e-cigarettes are easily accessible in Hong Kong which are
mainly targeting the youngsters. COSH hosted a press conference
on 30 March 2015 to advocate the Government for a total ban on
e-cigarettes. Speakers included Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor
of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong, Dr
Daniel HO Sai-yin, Associate Professor, School of Public Health,
The University of Hong Kong, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman,
Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-chairman and Vienna LAI, COSH Executive
Director.

Antonio KWONG remarked, “COSH has serious concern on the
spread of e-cigarettes. To protect public health, we advocate
the Government for a total ban on e-cigarette to prevent its
prevalence among the youngsters and stop it from becoming the
gateway to smoking!

E-cigarettes are the most common prototype of electronic
nicotine delivery systems. The battery-activated heating element
in e-cigarette heats up a cartridge of solution. The e-cigarette
then produces vapour inhaled by the user. Apart from nicotine (if
available), the solution usually contains propylene glycol, glycerin,
and flavourings. Some e-cigarettes look like tobacco products
(e.g. cigarettes, cigars, pipes or shishas). Some may be produced
in the form of everyday items such as pens and USB memory
sticks. Currently e-cigarettes for sale in Hong Kong are labelled as
nicotine-free. However, School of Public Health, The University of
Hong Kong pointed out that e-cigarettes contain toxic chemical

substances like propylene glycol, glycerin, formaldehyde and
acetaldehyde which could bring health risks to human.
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According to the “Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey 2014
conducted by COSH, 75.4% of respondents had heard of
e-cigarettes but only 1.8% of respondents had used e-cigarettes.
The findings showed that rate of youngsters (aged 15 - 29)
used e-cigarettes (4.4%) was higher than people aged 30 or
above (1.0%). The “Secondary School Smoking Survey 2012/13"
conducted by the School of Public Health of The University of
Hong Kong found that 1.1% of secondary school students had
used e-cigarettes in the past 30 days and e-cigarette users were
more likely to have respiratory symptoms.

Youngsters are the main target of the marketing strategies
adopted by Hong Kong and overseas e-cigarette suppliers and
sellers. The flavours, designs and packaging are diverse and
all appeal to the youth. Similar to the marketing strategies of
traditional cigarettes in the past, e-cigarettes are promoted
through different channels which normalize smoking behaviour
among the mass public, especially the children and the youth.
Social media are also commonly used to reach the youngsters.
Besides, most e-cigarettes do not provide details on their
ingredients but only address the variety of flavours. They are
marketed as non-addictive, aid for smoking cessation, accredited
and environmentally friendly which mislead consumers on their
safety.

Insufficient evidence has been identified so far to support the
claim that e-cigarettes help smokers kick the habit, said the World
Health Organization (WHO). To safeguard the public against the
potential harm of e-cigarettes, WHO urged countries to regulate
e-cigarettes to minimize the risk of exposing the youngsters and
non-smokers to e-cigarettes. Currently 13 countries have imposed
a complete ban on e-cigarettes, including Singapore, Thailand
and Brazil which is a global trend. To safeguard public health,
COSH advocated the Government for a total ban on the sales,
advertising, promotion and sponsorship, distribution, importation
and manufacturing of e-cigarettes in Hong Kong.
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2014 Kwai Chung Hospital Support for
World No Tobacco Day cum

Prize Presentation of the Smoke-free
Cooking Competition

Kwai Chung Hospital organized the “2014 Kwai Chung Hospital
Support for World No Tobacco Day cum Prize Presentation of the
Smoke-free Cooking Competition” on 27 May 2014 to commend
the staff, patients and their family members for designing the
Creative cuisines to deliver smoke-free messages.

Annie NG, COSH Senior Project Manager was invited to present
the awards, as well as share tips on smoking cessation, latest
trend of tobacco control and information of smoking hazards
to motivate the participants to live a smoke-free lifestyle. Other
guests included Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor of Community
Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public Health, School
of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong and Stephen IP
Shu-kwan, former Secretary for Economic Development and
Labour.

Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion
Project 2014 - 15

The positive impacts of quitting smoking to the health of elderly
had been proved by various medical studies. According to the
Thematic Household Survey Report No. 53 of the Census and
Statistics Department, nearly 120,000 daily cigarette smokers were
aged 65 or above, which accounted for 18.1% of the smoking
population in Hong Kong. According to a 11-year follow-up study
conducted by School of Public Health, The University of Hong
Kong and Department of Health, at least one out of two elderly
smokers aged 65 to 84 was killed by smoking. Compared with
smokers, the mortality risks of lung cancer, cardiovascular disease
and all other causes in elderly quitters were reduced significantly.
In other words, smoking cessation can help reduce the risk of
death in the elderly effectively.
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COSH has been paying close attention to the smoking prevalence
among the elderly. In order to promote a smoke-free healthy
lifestyle, the “Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project
2014 — 15" was organized to raise the knowledge on smoking
hazards among elder people, encourage smokers to quit smoking
and motivate non-smoking elderly to share the smoke-free
messages with their families and friends.

Health Talks

A total of 38 health talks were conducted from June 2014 to
March 2015 at elderly centres across the territory, reaching
over 2,300 senior citizens. Information on smoking hazards as
well as smoking cessation were delivered by COSH's educators.
Participants were invited to share the smoke-free messages with
their family and friends, and support smokers to quit.
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Smoke-free Community Promotion

In order to mobilize the elderly to take part in constructing
a smoke-free environment and further promote the smoke-
free messages at community level, over 50 “Senior Smoke-free
Ambassadors” were recruited through elderly centres to join
hands with COSH to organize a series of smoke-free community
promotion activities in their neighbourhoods.

“Smoke-free Ambassador Training” was co-organized with Radio
5 of Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK) on 17 October 2014 to
introduce hazards of active and passive smoking, as well as brief
smoking cessation counseling skills to the senior ambassadors.
The champion of “Quit to Win" Contest 2012, MAK Sun who was a
senior quitter, was invited to share his quit story and tips with the
participants.

“Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project 2014 — 15" Launch
Ceremony was held at Plaza Hollywood in Diamond Hill on 24
October 2014. Officiating guests included Prof Sophia CHAN,
Under Secretary for Food and Health, Dr Christine WONG, Head,
Tobacco Control Office, Department of Health, David HO, Head,
Radio 5 of RTHK, Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman and Vienna
LAIl, COSH Executive Director.

The "Senior Smoke-free Ambassadors”also attended the ceremony
to show their support to constructing a smoke-free Hong Kong.
CHAN Wai-hung and LEUNG Kau, successful quitters of “Smoke-
free Campaign for the Elderly” Smoking Cessation Pledge
Ceremony in 2013, were invited to share their quit stories. Artists
including Corinna CHAMBERLAIN, Fun LO, Henny LO, Sheldon LO,
and Kandy WONG also promoted smoke-free messages through
interactive game and singing performance.
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To promote the smoke-free activities organized in the community
and disseminate smoke-free messages to the public, especially
the elderly, a series of radio promotion was launched in Radio 5 of
RTHK.

Eight sessions of smoke-free community promotion were
conducted in Kowloon City, Kwai Tsing, Kwun Tong, Sham Shui Po,
Southern District and Wong Tai Sin during October to November
2014. The trained “Senior Smoke-free Ambassadors” made use of
their network and peer influence to encourage the elder smokers
in their communities to kick the habit. Smoking hazards and
knowledge on smoking cessation were also promoted through
exhibition panels and game booths. The Project successfully
motivated about 70 smokers to make a pledge for smoking
cessation. They were referred to the Integrated Smoking Cessation
Hotline of Department of Health for follow-up and counseling
services.

Hong Kong International Dental Expo and
Symposium 2014

The Hong Kong Dental Association hosted the “Hong Kong
International Dental Expo and Symposium 2014 on 22 to 24
August 2014 at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition
Centre. Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman, was invited to join the opening
ceremony. COSH also set up an information booth at the Expo,
introducing the tobacco control works in Hong Kong and
COSH'’s education and publicity programmes. Publications and
souvenirs were distributed to dental professionals to enhance the
collaboration on tobacco control works.
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Smoke-free New Generation Carnival

With an aim to promote smoke-free messages to the community
and remind the mass public on hazards of smoking, HKMCSDA
Shan King Integrated Children and Youth Services Centre
of Seventh-day Adventists organized the “Smoke-free New
Generation Carnival”on 21 September 2014 at its centre in Shan
King Estate, Tuen Mun. The carnival included a wide variety of
activities such as health exhibition, game booths, smoke-free
ambassador award ceremony and health talk to encourage the
local residents and youth to live a smoke-free healthy lifestyle.
Over a hundred of the mass public participated in the carnival.

COSH was invited to set up a game booth and deliver a smoke-
free health talk to raise public awareness on health risks of
smoking and encourage smokers to kick the habit.

Central and Western District Health Festival
2014/15

To enhance the community’s awareness on the importance of
health and to promote health education, Working Group on
Health and Rehabilitation Service of Central and Western District
Council collaborated with a number of government departments,
local hospitals, clinics and social service organizations to host the
“Central and Western District Health Festival 2014/15"on 1 and 2
November 2014 at Sheung Wan Sports Centre.

Officiating guests included YIP Wing-shing, Chairman of Central
and Western District Council, CHOW Ho-kiu, District Officer
(Central and Western), CHAN Hok-fung, Vice-Chairman of Central
and Western District Council, CHAN Chit-kwai, Chairman of
Culture, Leisure and Social Affairs Committee of Central and
Western District Council and Chairman of the Steering Committee
on Healthy City in Central and Western District Council. Vienna
LAI, COSH Executive Director was also invited to join the opening
ceremony.
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Messages of disease prevention and healthcare, home safety and
personal hygiene were delivered through exhibitions, counseling
services, health talks, exercise demonstrations and free body
checks which successfully attracted hundreds of participants.
COSH was invited to set up a booth to deliver the importance
of a smoke-free environment in an interactive way. The latest
APIs were broadcasted in order to enhance the local residents’
knowledge on smoking hazards. COSH staff also distributed
leaflets and smoking cessation booklets to encourage smokers to
quit smoking.

CLPP Safety, Health & Environment (SHE)
Day 2014

Invited by CLP Power Hong Kong, COSH hosted a game booth
at CLP's annual staff family event “Safety, Health & Environment
(SHE) Day” on 29 November 2014 at Black Point Power Station,
Tuen Mun. This event has been organized successfully for many
years and attracted around 5,000 CLP staff and their families to
join in 2014. It aims to raise the awareness on safety, health and
environment among participants through stage performance,
game booths and exhibitions. The booth set up by COSH received
overwhelming responses, reaching over 1,000 participants who
received the up-to-date tobacco control information and smoke-
free messages via interesting games. Brochures and booklets
on smoking cessation were also distributed to encourage
participants to build a smoke-free family.
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Yan Oi Tong New Territories West
Health Festival 2014

Yan Oi Tong aims at launching social, educational, medical,
recreational services and different community programmes for
every citizen. To deliver the information on health and medical
services to the public, Yan Oi Tong collaborated with various
government departments and social service organizations in Tuen
Mun and Yuen Long to organize “Yan Oi Tong New Territories West
Health Festival 2014" on 13 December 2014 at Tuen Mun Yan Oi
Town Square.

Free health checks, Chinese medical consultation, first aid
demonstration, visit to the medical truck and stage performances
were held in the festival attracting hundreds of participants. COSH
was invited to deliver a health talk on the myths of smoking and
methods of smoking cessation, as well as set up a game booth
to promote the smoking hazards and importance of smoke-free
environment.

Open Day cum Spring Carnival of the
New Voice Club of Hong Kong

The New Voice Club of Hong Kong provides services for the
laryngectomies and laryngeal cancer patients, and assists them
in regaining their voice and reintegrating into the community
through the self-help and mutual help spirits. The Club hosted an
“Open Day cum Spring Carnival”on 8 March 2015 at Shek Kip Mei
Estate to allow the public to understand their scope of services
and facilities, as well as deliver the health messages through
diversified programmes.

COSH set up a game booth and distributed booklets in the
carnival to promote smoking hazards to the local residents. COSH
staff also encouraged the smokers to kick the habit as soon as
possible in order to lower the risk of laryngeal cancer and other
diseases. In addition, the Club arranged health talks, Chinese
medical consultation, body checks and distributed healthy soup
recipes in the carnival which attracted over 100 participants.
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Health Talks for “Smoke-free New
Generation”

Education is important for tobacco control. Delivering smoke-
free messages to the next generation at an early age can help
them recognize the importance of a smoke-free environment,
deter them from trying the first cigarette, and motivate them to
encourage family and friends to quit smoking. Since 1991, COSH
has organized health talks every year in kindergartens, primary
and secondary schools across the territory to educate the children
and youth on smoking hazards.

During the school year 2014 - 2015, about 110 health talks
were conducted, reaching over 20,000 students. The health talks
covered the harmful effects of smoking, secondhand smoke and
third-hand smoke, as well as the latest information on tobacco
control, such as tobacco control legislation in Hong Kong, existing
smoking cessation services, new trend of electronic cigarettes
and marketing tactics of the tobacco industry. COSH educators
also introduced the works and programme of COSH. A question-
and-answer session was included and souvenirs were given to
students to enhance their smoke-free knowledge under a relaxing
atmosphere.
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Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership
Training Programme 2014 - 15

Youth are vulnerable to trying the lethal cigarettes due to
curiosity and peer pressure. In order to educate the youngsters
on smoking hazards and the latest trend of tobacco control, as
well as to nurture them to sustain the pioneer role in spreading
smoke-free messages, COSH has organized the “Smoke-free Youth
Ambassador Leadership Training Programme”annually since 2012.

Over 300 youngsters, aged 14 to 18, from more than 30 secondary
schools, youth centres and uniform groups enrolled for the
2014 - 15 programme. The Programme has successfully trained
around 1,000 youth ambassadors to take the leading role in
establishing a smoke-free environment over the past three years.

Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Leadership Training
Camp

Four 2-Day-1-Night leadership training camps were held during
summer holiday in 2014 to equip participants with knowledge
on smoking hazards and tobacco control measures. Their skills
on leadership, independence, creative and critical thinking,
communication, problem solving, team building, programme
planning and techniques of smoking cessation counseling were
enhanced through diversified training activities.
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Smoke-free Programmes in Schools and the Community

Between September and December 2014, the trained
Ambassadors applied their knowledge to initiate more than 100
innovative programmes to disseminate the smoke-free messages
in their schools and community, reaching over 30,000 citizens.
Programmes included comic drawing contest, video production,
school radio programme, promotion and drama on streets, and
establishment of fans page on social media. The Ambassadors
raised public awareness on smoking hazards, as well as
encouraged their friends, family members and neighbours to quit
smoking and strive for a smoke-free Hong Kong.

Smoke-free Youth Ambassador Alumni Programme

To sustain the Ambassadors’ pioneering role in spreading smoke-
free messages, they were encouraged to join the “Smoke-
free Youth Ambassador Alumni Programme” after the training
to continue their support to tobacco control by attending
sharing sessions, managing game booths and exhibitions in
the community and participating in other publicity activities
organized by COSH.
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Award Presentation Ceremony

An award presentation ceremony was held on 10 March 2015
to commend the outstanding youth ambassadors of the 2014 —
15 programme. Honorable guests included Kevin YEUNG, Under
Secretary for Education, Dr Sarah CHOI, Assistant Director of
Health (Special Health Services), Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor
of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman and Yolanda NG, COSH Vice-
chairman.

The champion team, Lingnan Dr Chung Wing Kwong Memorial
Secondary School, shared their tips and experience in organizing
the activities under the theme of “Smoke-free, Love and
Continuity” They were determined to convey the smoke-free
concept and encourage smokers to quit smoking with love, as
well as to pass on the smoke-free spirits.

The team launched a series of activities which reached over 3,000
citizens, including slogan competition, game booths, anti-cancer
health talk, video production, smoke-free liberal forum to discuss
the hottest topics on tobacco control, inviting students, teachers
and citizens to make a smoke-free pledge and display of banner
with smoke-free slogan on busy streets. Besides, tailor-made
activities were designed for the grass-root and female smokers,
such as distribution of cards with warm reminders and smoking
cessation information to smokers on street. A fans page on social
media was also created to effectively disperse the smoke-free
messages among the young generation through all-rounded
channels.
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Winner List:

Champion: Lingnan Dr Chung Wing Kwong Memorial
Secondary School

First runner-up: Yan Chai Hospital Lan Chi Pat Memorial
Secondary School

Second runner-up: CMA Secondary School (Team 2)

Outstanding Smoke-free Teams:

Hong Kong Tang King Po College

Lok Sin Tong Wong Chung Ming Secondary School
Ning Po College (Team 5)

Pope Paul VI College

Precious Blood Secondary School

Pui Tak Canossian College

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Lee Ching Dea Memorial College

Programme Facebook Page:
www.facebook.com/SmokefreeYouthAmbassador
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School Interactive Education Theatre
“Smoke-free Magic Boy”

COSH educates the children and youngsters on smoking hazards
and the benefits of smoke-free living through a wide range of
programmes which cater for their needs at different stages.“School
Interactive Education Theatre Programme”has been one of COSH's
major education and publicity campaigns targeting primary
students since 1995, the Programme has contributed about 1,600
performances, reaching more than 440,000 students and teachers.
The previous performances were well-received, which included
"Smoke-free Masters’, “Smoke-free Saves the Earth’, “Smokeland

"o

Adventure’, "Smoke-free Super Show”, “Mono’s Smoke-free Castle”,
“Smoke-free Detective X" “Smoke-free Superkids’, “The Smoke-
free Journey of Red Hoodlet” and “The Smoke-free Battle of Red

Hoodlet"

The key messages of tobacco control are delivered along with
music, stage effects and interesting presentation. Through the
performance, students learn about the harmful effects of smoking,
secondhand smoke and third-hand smoke and receive positive
messages such as fallacies about smoking, say no to secondhand
smoke and the benefits of a smoke-free environment. COSH
aims to equip the students to promote a smoke-free lifestyle and
encourage family members to quit smoking.
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COSH launched a brand-new interactive musical titled “Smoke-free
Magic Boy"in collaboration with Chung Ying Theatre in 2014 - 15.
It aimed to educate students on the promotion tactics of tobacco
industry, techniques to say no to cigarettes and various ways to
encourage family members to kick the smoking habit. Special
thanks were given to Prof LAM Tai-hing and Lisa LAU for being the
professional consultants of the musical. 99 performances were
delivered and over 24,000 students and teachers were reached.

“Smoke-free Magic Boy” was about the main character “Richman’,
the owner of a tobacco company who loves magic performance.
He was enticed by his housekeeper, “Black Lung” to promote
cigarettes to children and youngsters in order to save his
company from bankruptcy. Luckily, with the assistance of another
housekeeper, “White Lung” and the audience, he understood
the hazards of smoking and decided not to produce tobacco
products anymore. On the contrary, he promoted smoking
cessation through magic performance. The show created a

favourable atmosphere for students to learn the importance of
establishing a smoke-free lifestyle, building a smoke-free family
and constructing a smoke-free city.
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FHEIA B - www.educationtheatre.hk

COSH invited around 400 primary students, teachers and guests
to attend the premiere held at Jockey Club Auditorium, The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University on 15 October 2014. Honourable
guests included Dr Sarah CHOI, Assistant Director (Special Health
Services), Department of Health, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair Professor
of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor in Public
Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong,
Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman, Lisa LAU, COSH ex-Chairman
and Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director. The show was well-
received by the audience. The Education Theatre began its tours
in various districts afterwards.

Programme Webpage: www.educationtheatre.hk



SEE) Events

> BRER N EHE

Liaison with Academia and Community

BRI BRwmE —ZERFE

ZECFRIAXEETBIERKEmL R
014FsANHEHMMlEe EUATBHERRNEE
BEEBEEE] AR DERESHRN [HEAR
%Jﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ%mﬁﬁ i g ) Bh 8 b &

BER2E D EHHBRATEIEERER
i%m&%@lﬁ M EEE S EEEMT
EE—AE-

|

()
w £
i1t
i F
'R
" d
L 1
L
LI
ix

'

- i R "ﬁl}l*

T T AR S

| HONG KONg NORTH

BEPNAREEERRS
EEREE 2014

§%¢Xﬁg@§h BM—F-ENER

E%%hﬂ@%ﬁ@ﬁ%%%%&O%
EEE@JE’\]I%% (s | BBEFERE
WENHERRE - HEEATRASNRE

2 — AL IR SRR &
* EQD%&JH%% LA%E%% BErRERE
m%m& ERHEER2014F 10812
&ﬁ%ﬁ$m HAR{T - ZBEIHE
ﬁ%ﬂ#&%«ﬁb&”” I FE o

=
20

Rotary Club of Hong Kong North -
Tobacco Control Seminar

Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman was invited to present under the theme
“Mobilize the Community to Spread Smoke-free Messages” at the
luncheon meeting of Rotary Club of Hong Kong North on 22 May
2014. Ms Lau shared the experience of the “Quit to Win" Smoke-
free Community Campaign to demonstrate how COSH mobilized
the district organizations to raise public awareness and gain
support for tobacco control at community level.

CUHK Medical Society Health Exhibition
2014

The annual health exhibition of the Medical Society of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong aims to raise public awareness
on health related issues. The theme of 2014 exhibition was
“Priceless Breathing”, in which the importance of a healthy
respiratory system was disseminated through health checks,
featured talks and exhibition panels.

COSH provided smokerlyzers, souvenirs and booklets to the
organizer to educate the public on smoking hazards and
encourage smokers to kick the habit. Annie NG, COSH Senior
Project Manager was invited to join the opening ceremony held
on 12 October 2014 at Tseung Kwan O Metro City Plaza lll.
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HKU Youth Quitline - Smoking Cessation
Counselor Training Workshop

The "Youth Quitline” of The University of Hong Kong was
established in 2005 to provide smoking cessation services to
youth smokers with peer support. Training programmes have
been organized to nurture youngsters to become peer smoking
cessation counselors.

COSH was invited to deliver a lecture in the Smoking Cessation
Counselor Training Workshop on 15 October 2014 and 24 January
2015. Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director, shared with the
participants on Hong Kong's current smoking pattern, tobacco
control policies and COSH's programmes on smoking prevention.

The workshop also consisted of lectures on smoking cessation
and tobacco hazards conducted by Prof Sophia CHAN, Under
Secretary for Food and Health and Prof LAM Tai-hing, Chair
Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall Professor
in Public Health, School of Public Health, The University of Hong
Kong. Experienced smoking cessation counseling nurses were
also invited to share techniques on motivational interviewing and
smoking cessation counseling. Over 130 counselors attended
the workshop and were well equipped with theories and real
practices.
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HKU School of Nursing — Nursing Programme

School of Nursing of The University of Hong Kong has been a
long-term partner of COSH in promoting tobacco control and
safeguarding the public health. Over the years, it has been playing
a key role in providing training to nursing professionals in Hong
Kong. The school has organized numerous training on tobacco
control and smoking cessation. COSH was again invited to be
guest speaker for the Bachelor and Master of Nursing Programmes
in2014.

Lawrence CHU, COSH Senior Project Manager delivered a
presentation titled “Political Action to Improve Public Health”
which introduced Hong Kong's tobacco control policies and
COSH's work on education, publicity and advocacy to over 300
bachelor students on 28 October and 11 November 2014.

In the lecture of the master programme on 13 November 2014,
Mr Chu shared under the theme “Tobacco Control and Smoking
Prevention Programmes in Hong Kong", explained how the
MPOWER measures suggested by the World Health Organization
were implemented in Hong Kong and introduced the efforts of
COSH in advocating for a smoke-free community over the years.

Ching Chung Action Foundation -
Volunteer Award Presentation Ceremony

Ching Chung Action Foundation aims at helping the youngsters
develop a healthy lifestyle through various programmes. Volunteer
Award Presentation Ceremony was held at Noah's Ark, Ma Wan
on 24 February 2015 attended by volunteers, representatives of
associations of beauty industry and social services organizations.
Faine CHAN, COSH Project Manager was invited to introduce the
publicity programmes on women smoking cessation, the women-
specific smoking hazards and smoking cessation information, as
well as to mobilize the beauty industry to support the work of
tobacco control.
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Working with the Mass Media
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COSH maintains a close and longstanding relation with the mass media, enabling the messages of tobacco control and
COSH's promotion activities to penetrate all levels of society effectively. COSH Secretariat regularly fields interviews and
enquiries from different newspapers, publications, television and radio stations, as well as other media platforms. COSH

issued the following press releases to the media during the year:

H A Date FEHBER Major Press Release
. N Celebrate the World No Tobacco Da
2014/531 BEFBERTRE SHFtREEE .
Support your beloved ones to quit smoking
- . Strengthen women-oriented smokin
2014/6/19  BIEAHIE M LMRERE gthen e g
cessation services
e . - . N The 5" "Quit to Win" Smoke-free Communit
2014/7/5 ADJE [AEREZR | REL Bt E) Campaign fosters a smoke-free lifestyle '
PBEFTIBRIEEERE pean o /
across the territory
"MPOWER in Action, FCTC Implementation”
[BEMPOWER BfT (IEEZHIIEZRARL) ] The 7t Cross-strait Conference on
2014/9/2 F+ W E U EZERG 6 R R e Tobacco Control
M —AMN2EERIMITIELRS Some 200 participants exchange views on
tobacco control
N e e e . Advocate for a long-term policy on tobacco
2014/9/4 ISR AIE BB BN REUR tax and tobacco cgntrol topfurti/wer lower the
HE— B PRE R B RIER : .
smoking prevalence in Hong Kong
Multi-prolonged tobacco control measures
2014/9/9 ZED TEEREARBERE to protect public health
IEB RS FTERLE Raising tobacco tax with stringent
enforcement against illicit cigarettes
B T S E OEEE zgirzier]eS?fSEdulfatfion T\;]ea.treBProﬁgram me
N . - moke-free Magic Bo
2014/10/15 [ B/ A A B I ) ey

VA BEA 5 B R S A L ALE

Using magic to encourage smoking
cessation
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H #A Date FEHBER Major Press Release
Elderly Smoking Cessation Promotion Project
2014/10/24 [fEEE R 51812014 - 15 B RS 2014 - 15 Launch Ceremony
HEEREREEE EREBFFRME Promote smoke-free lifestyle and smoking

cessation with the elderly

Advocate for a substantial tobacco tax
2015/1/7 BREANENES REFBREX increase to lower the smoking prevalence
quickly in Hong Kong

Publicity event for Women Smoking

BT A8 LR ER B S E AT

2015/1/23 axe . Cessation Promotion Programme
IR R BIE A N
Demonstrates smoking hazards on face
Open letter to Financial Secretary, HKSAR
S BEBRNTHERG B A AIRARE Government
AIBIGINEET REEARER Raising tobacco tax substantially to lower

smoking prevalence

o JUNE. . COSH response to the tobacco control
2015225 EEREIEH KEERNOEEEE e
policies proposed by The Budget

Successful Quitters’ Sharing cum the 5% “Quit
to Win"Prize Presentation Ceremony

Quit smoking now! No excuse

[#0 - BEAER| " F S8 [MEARK | B2

2015/3/6 SHEREATRIERED ERRRE

. gy Smoke-free Youth Ambassadors take the
2015/3/10 (BT D EANGE ] HBARRY lead to promote smoke-free living in the
T AR R - ’
community

2015/3/30 BRLAZHEILEFE Support a total ban on electronic cigarettes
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The 7t Cross-strait Conference on
Tobacco Control

Since 2007, the "Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco Control”
has been jointly organized by tobacco control organizations in
mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Macau on a regular
basis to provide a communication platform to strengthen the
collaboration in tobacco control and public health across the
regions.

The "7t Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco Control” was hosted
by Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health at Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre on 2 to 3 September 2014,
in collaboration with Chinese Association on Tobacco Control,
John Tung Foundation of Taiwan and Macao Tobacco Control
Alliance. The theme of the Conference was “"MPOWER in Action,
FCTC Implementation”. Over 200 tobacco control experts, medical
and health professionals, academia and representatives of non-
governmental organizations attended the Conference and shared
their experiences and achievements in tobacco control.
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Opening Ceremony

The Conference was unveiled by the opening ceremony on 2
September 2014. Officiating guests included Dr KO Wing-man,
Secretary for Food and Health, Hong Kong SAR; Dr LEI Chin-ion,
Director of Health Bureau, Macau SAR; Prof Sophia CHAN, Under
Secretary for Food and Health, Hong Kong SAR; Dr Constance
CHAN, Director of Health, Hong Kong SAR; Lisa LAU, COSH
Chairman; Dr HUANG Jie-fu, Chairman of Chinese Association
on Tobacco Control; Dr CHEANG Seng-ip, Convener of Macao
Tobacco Control Alliance and Prof YAU Sea-wain, CEO of John
Tung Foundation of Taiwan.

The officiating guests pledged to implement the Charter of
the "7t Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco Control” including
enforcing the World Health Organization’s (WHO) “Framework
Convention on Tobacco Control (FCTC)" and putting MPOWER
in action; establishing comprehensive legislation on tobacco
control to reduce the use of tobacco and protect the public from
exposure to secondhand smoke; as well as fostering a supportive
environment for smoking cessation. Lisa LAU envisioned that the
Conference could gather the strength of the Chinese to protect
the public health and enhance the collaboration to curb tobacco
epidemic.

At the opening ceremony, the “Contribution Awards for
Chinese on Tobacco Control” were presented to recognize the
contributions of the awardees in promoting the leap of tobacco
control in the respective regions. The five awardees were Dr York
CHOW (Hong Kong), SHAN Guo-jin (mainland China), Dr ZHI
Xiu-yi (mainland China), Dr WU Hsein-lin (Taiwan) and Samuel
CHAN (Macau). The “Special Award of Outstanding Contribution
on Tobacco Control” was presented to Prof Judith MACKAY to
commend her tremendous contributions and outstanding
achievements on tobacco control across the cross-strait regions
and around the world.
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Scientific Sessions

International and local tobacco control experts were invited to
deliver presentations in the plenary sessions, including:

"Tobacco Control Policy in Hong Kong: Past, Present and
Future” by Prof Sophia CHAN, Under Secretary for Food and
Health, Hong Kong SAR;

“Implementation of Tobacco Control Measures: Experiences
and Challenges” by Dr Constance CHAN, Director of Health,
Hong Kong SAR;

"Tobacco Tax Policy as a Tobacco Control Measure” by Dr Hana
ROSS, Professor of Emory University, USA and University of
Cape Town, South Africa;

“Mass Communication in Tobacco Control: Evidence, Messages
and Audiences” by Dr Sarah DURKIN, Senior Research Fellow —
Tobacco, Cancer Council Victoria, Australia; and

“To Add Money to Become MMPOWER and Emphasize "At
Least One in Two Smokers Dies"in W” by Prof LAM Tai-hing,
Chair Professor of Community Medicine & Sir Robert Kotewall
Professor in Public Health, School of Public Health, The
University of Hong Kong.

The “Memorial Lecture on Prof LEE Shiu-hung” was specially
arranged as a tribute to Prof LEE Shiu-hung for his dedication and
contributions to tobacco control in the cross-strait regions. Lisa
LAU delivered a presentation on “Implementation of MPOWER:
Development and Challenges in Hong Kong” in the session.
Experts of the cross-strait regions, including XU Gui-hua, Dr
CHEANG Seng-ip and Prof YAU Sea-wain also shared their views
on the current trend, challenges and achievements, as well as
strategies for future advancement in tobacco control.
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Numerous abstracts and papers in good quality were received
and published in the abstract booklet. Totally 27 scientific papers
were selected for oral presentation and 28 papers for poster
presentation. The Best Poster Presentation Awards were given to
the School of Public Health of The University of Hong Kong and
John Tung Foundation of Taiwan.

Visit to Smoke-free Venue

A visit to Tung Tau Correctional Institution, Hong Kong's first
“No Smoking Adult Correctional Facilities’, was arranged for the
participants on 3 September 2014. Representatives of Hong Kong
Correctional Services shared their experience in establishing
the smoke-free correctional facility and implementing various
measures to promote a smoke-free culture among persons in
custody through education, publicity, counseling and smoking
cessation courses. Smoking has been prohibited in Tung Tau
Correctional Institution since 1 January 2013.

Conference Webpage: www.csctc.hk

STAFF TRAINING INSTITUTE

' BLEMEN
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Summit on Child Health and
the Environment 2014

The Summit on Child Health and the Environment 2014 was
organized by Hong Kong Paediatric Foundation from 11 to
13 October 2014 at Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. The
Summit aimed to gather professionals to share their knowledge
and insights on environmental impact on child health and to
promote building a healthy environment for the benefit of future
generations. Antonio KWONG, COSH Chairman was invited to
join the Summit. COSH also set up an information booth and
distributed leaflets and souvenirs to introduce the tobacco control
works in Hong Kong as well as the importance of a smoke-free
environment for child health.

Macau Smoking Cessation Forum

The “Macau Smoking Cessation Forum”was organized by Smoking
Abstention and Good Health Association on 8 November 2014
under the theme of “Prevent Youth from Tobacco Hazards for
a Healthy Life". Representatives of government departments,
tobacco control and smoking cessation groups from Macau, Hong
Kong and Zhuhai were invited to exchange their experiences in
tobacco control.

Lawrence CHU, COSH Senior Project Manager delivered a
presentation titled “Integrated Approach in Smoke-free Education
among Youth” and shared COSH’s experiences in smoking
prevention education and promoting tobacco control.
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The 2" WHO Fellowship Programme on
Tobacco Control

“The 2" WHO Fellowship Programme on Tobacco Control” was
organized by the World Health Organization Collaborating Centre
for Smoking Cessation and Treatment of Tobacco Dependence
in Hong Kong from 17 to 21 November 2014. Additional to
the Hong Kong participants, the programme was attended by
delegations from the Western Pacific Region, including mainland
China, Macau, Kiribati, Mongolia and the Philippines.

The 5-day programme targeted middle management in tobacco
control and provided a comprehensive overview of various
tobacco control measures. It was consisted of lecture, field
immersion, workshop, group discussion and visit to community-
based smoking cessation centres. International and local tobacco
control experts including Prof Simon CHAPMAN, Prof Richard
HURT, Prof LAM Tai-hing, Prof Judith MACKAY, Dr Homer TSO and
Dr Christine WONG were invited to share their expertise and the
latest development on tobacco control.

Vienna LAI, COSH Executive Director was invited as one of the
speakers to conduct a presentation titled “Role of COSH in
Advocacy, Education and Publicity Against Tobacco Use in Hong
Kong" Ms Lai introduced the experiences of COSH on education,
publicity and policy advocacy.

mme on Tobacco Control
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The 16" World Conference on
Tobacco or Health

Held every three years, “The World Conference on Tobacco or
Health”aims to strengthen the international exchange on tobacco
control and related information, and provide a platform for
different countries to share their experiences and challenges on
tobacco control.

The 16" Conference was held from 17 to 21 March 2015 in Abu
Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. Over 2,000 academics, public health
professionals and non-governmental organization advocates from
100 countries and regions joined the Conference with the theme
of “Tobacco and Non-Communicable Diseases” COSH sent a
delegation to attend the Conference, including Antonio KWONG,
Chairman, Yolanda NG, Vice-chairman, Prof Johnnie CHAN,
Council Member, Vienna LAI, Executive Director and Secretariat
staff.
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Four abstracts of COSH were selected for poster presentation,
namely “Quit to Win — A smoking cessation promotion and
scientific research project with community participation’, “The
family approach to promote and support smoking cessation’,
“Work towards the endgame: MPOWER in Hong Kong and the
next steps” and “To curb tobacco epidemic among women:
unique education programmes and tailor-made cessation
services in need” COSH introduced the tobacco control policies in
Hong Kong and its education and publicity programmes through
the poster presentation.

The Conference ended with a number of recommendations,
including the adaptation of plain packaging and enlargement
of pictorial warning on cigarette packs, substantial and regular
increase in tobacco taxes to reduce cigarette affordability,
implementation of a complete ban of all forms of tobacco
advertising, promotion and sponsorship, regulation on
e-cigarettes and implementation of Article 5.3 of the World
Health Organization’s Framework Convention on Tobacco Control
to avoid conflict of interests with tobacco industry. Through the
implementation of comprehensive tobacco control policies, it
was aimed that the tobacco use prevalence of the world could be
reduced by 30% by 2025.
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BERAREZEZAEERBE Exchange Students of Li Ka Shing Faculty of

Medicine of The University of Hong Kong

BEERBFRZABELRNIRERN 201454 A
30 REHEEE  BHESHSEEERERT  Exchange students of Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of The

MTZBENEEHAENEERAE  EPEH University of Hong Kong visited COSH on 30 April 2014. Lawrence
TE& [(BEABK | BEHETE - BRLRS CHU, COSH Senior Project Manager introduced COSH's smoke-
HHRVEERENER - free education and publicity programmes. “Quit to Win" Smoke-
free Community Campaign was highlighted to demonstrate the
importance of community involvement in sustaining a smoke-
free atmosphere.

Officials of Macau Health Bureau

Dr CHEANG Seng-ip, Deputy Director of Health Bureau of Macau
SAR, Dr TANG Chi-ho, Head of Tobacco Control Office of Macau
SAR and a team of tobacco control practitioners paid a visit to
COSH on 25 July 2014. Lisa LAU, COSH Chairman and Vienna LA,
COSH Executive Director exchanged with the delegates on the
latest development of tobacco control in both regions. They also
_ introduced the "7 Cross-strait Conference on Tobacco Control”
@Fq ?:%TEEI EE hosted by COSH in September 2014 and invited the delegates to
join.
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A Paediatrician from the USA

A paediatrician from the USA, Dr Karen WILSON, visited COSH on
6 November 2014. Dr Wilson is one of the leaders of the American
Academy of Paediatric on tobacco smoke and children. Vienna
LAI, COSH Executive Director and Lawrence CHU, COSH Senior
Project Manager introduced the smoking pattern of children and
youth in Hong Kong, as well as COSH's smoke-free education
and smoking prevention programmes. Dr Wilson also shared her
experiences on the research and advocacy works about children’s
exposure to secondhand smoke.

Vietnam Steering Committee on Smoking
and Health

A study tour from Vietnam Steering Committee on Smoking
and Health visited COSH on 7 November 2014. The delegation
comprised government officials from the departments of health
and tourism. Annie NG, COSH Senior Project Manager delivered
presentation titled "An Integrated Approach to Construct a
Smoke-free Hong Kong’, to share Hong Kong's experience in
implementing MPOWER measures suggested by the World Health
Organization (WHO). The delegates also visited the Tobacco
Control Office of Department of Health, WHO Collaboration
Centre for Smoking Cessation and Treatment of Tobacco
Dependence Centre and Kwai Chung Hospital.
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Resource Centre

COSH Resource Centre is set up to provide a variety of research
related to smoking and health, smoke-free promotional and
educational materials, such as leaflets and posters to the public.

The Centre's collections include various local and international
periodicals, journals, books, research papers, conference
proceedings, reference materials and audio-visual materials about
tobacco hazards, passive smoking, tobacco control legislation, etc.

Visitors to the Resource Centre mainly include students,
teachers, parents, medical and healthcare practitioners, tobacco
control organizations, public health professionals and overseas
delegations.

Enquiry Hotline

COSH set up a hotline system (852) 2838 8822 to provide round-
the-clock enquiry service. The public can acquire information
about smoking and health, as well as the details of COSH's
programmes. They can also make enquiries, suggestions and
complaints regarding smoking or other related issues via the
hotline.

The hotline is a means to collect public opinions on tobacco
control policies which are useful for the formulation of COSH’s
future work plan. Any feedback, complaints or suggestions
received will be responded instantly or/and referred to relevant
government departments and organizations accordingly.
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Between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015, COSH received 1,281 calls from the public making enquiries, suggestions or
complaints. The cases are categorized as below:

EIR&E

EESER] Categories No. of calls
BN EHEREENER General enquiries for information related to smoking and health
BBERED Legislation on tobacco control in Hong Kong 134
e E R R R R 2 Health hazards of smoking 52
BB IERTS Smoking cessation services available in Hong Kong 41
IEEE @A Contents of tobacco products 28
—FEHRENTE Health hazards of passive smoking 22
TNE T A R I B Quit methods and benefits 20
HAth IR A% ER A B A R Other information related to smoking and health 13
EHEES SRR RE General enquiries for COSH’s information and services
REEEHE AT Children smoke-free education programmes 605
FEZEeHEREEYR Application for COSH's education and publicity materials 104
ZE2EBEREEHEEEE) COSH's publicity and community involvement projects 88
ZEgERRER Background and general information about COSH 70
& Complaints
VA TE BRI & 2 {1 R e Smoking in statutory no-smoking areas 32
EEREEREELH Promotion and publicity of smoke-free programmes 2
BEEEMNEERE Regulations on the sale of tobacco products 2
IEETE B MR E Smoking in non-statutory no-smoking areas 2
#: Suggestions
HPETENER Opinions related to enforcement actions 19
HLZERINER Opinions related to COSH's programmes 18
FREET Adjustment of tobacco tax 13
HIEEREENER Opinions related to tobacco control measures 10
BARIERIEEE Extension of no-smoking areas 6

# ¥ Total 1,281
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COSH Website and E-Newsletter

To enable the public to keep updated on the activities of COSH
as well as the latest information related to smoking and health via
internet, COSH website (www.smokefree.hk) is developed.

COSH website adopted the accessibility design to facilitate
different segments of the community including persons with
disability to access tobacco control information and COSH'’s
services. COSH website attained the requirements of Gold
Award of “Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme” for three years
consecutively and was awarded the Triple Gold Award.

E-Newsletter is also released regularly to report the updated
development of COSH and tobacco control. The general public
can subscribe the e-newsletter through COSH website. The
main contents include studies on smoking hazards and smoking
cessation in different countries, local and overseas tobacco
control measures and the latest activities of COSH.

The e-platform provides a convenient channel for the public to
acquire smoke-free information, with the aim to increase public
awareness on smoking hazards and encourage them to build a
healthy smoke-free lifestyle.
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Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey 2014

"Tobacco Control Policy-related Survey”is a regular cross-sectional
survey which aims to gather wide scope of information related to
smoking, secondhand and third-hand smoke exposure, awareness
and utilization of cessation services to measure the impact of
existing tobacco control measures and to collect public opinions
towards current and future tobacco control policies.

COSH commissioned the School of Public Health of The University
of Hong Kong and Policy 21 Limited to conduct “Tobacco Control
Policy-related Survey 2014" from May to September 2014. The
survey successfully collected information from the randomized
sample of 819 never smokers, 800 ex-smokers and 800 current
smokers who aged 15 to 65 through telephone interview. The
final samples were weighted to the Hong Kong population
composition in 2014. The major findings are as follows:
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Exposure to secondhand smoke (SHS) and third-hand
smoke (THS)

e A number of respondents reported exposure to SHS in
statutory no-smoking area, including bars (41.7%), public
transport interchanges (41.7%) and restaurants (13.3%) in the
past 30 days.

e Exposure to SHS in non-statutory no-smoking area is serious
in Hong Kong. Many respondents reported SHS exposure at
seating-out area of bars (79.7%), pedestrian walkways (72.5%),
seating-out area of restaurants (68.2%), public transport stops
(57.9%) and doorways of buildings (42.2%).

e Over one-third (38.1%) of all respondents reported exposure to
THS in the past seven days. Around a quarter of all respondents
found smell of cigarettes in taxi (29.2%) or minibus (24.4%) in
the previous month.

e Majority of the respondents (84.7%) would support a law
banning smoking in cars when children are present.

e Most of the respondents (79.0%) supported that the person-in-
charge should be liable and penalized for any smoking offense
in their smoke-free premises.

e Respondents overwhelmingly supported the extension of no-
smoking area to public transport stops (88.4%), public places of
the residential areas (87.1%), pedestrian walkways (82.5%), busy
roads (82.1%), seating-out area of restaurants (73.6%), all public
outdoor places (66.3%) and seating-out area of bars (53.9%).

e 34.7% of ex-smokers and 14.5% of current smokers reported
that they stopped smoking or reduced cigarette consumption
when the smoke-free areas expanded in 2009.
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Tobacco tax

Of all current smokers, 19.7% and 10.6% reported that they
stopped or reduced smoking because of the tax increase in
2011 and 2014 respectively.

Of all ex-smokers, 27.6% and 25.5% reported they were more
determined to quit smoking because of the tax increase in
2011 and 2014 respectively.

Most of all respondents (72.9%) supported an increase in
tobacco tax.

More than half (54.0%) of all respondents agreed that the
cigarette price should be increased to help smokers quit
smoking. They suggested the retail price of a pack of cigarettes
at HK$106 on average to effectively motivate smokers to quit
smoking.

Among all current smokers, almost half (47.1%) claimed that
they would reduce cigarette consumption by half if the price
were increased to HKS$117 a pack, and 41.2% would quit
smoking if the price were increased to HK$166.

Regulations on cigarette packs

Majority of current smokers (74.2%) had noticed the pictorial
health warnings (PHW) on cigarette packs and 46.6% would
think of the risks of smoking because of the PHW. More never
smokers (69.9%) and ex-smokers (60.9%) would think of the
risks of smoking.

About one-third (32.6%) of current smokers considered
quitting and few of them (12.1%) stopped lighting a cigarette
because of the PHW. The existing PHWSs have been used for
eight years. Effect in deterring smoking is fading.
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Most of all respondents (62.4%) thought that the PHW should
be clearer about adverse health consequences linked to
smoking. The respondents suggested the PHW should on
average take 70% of the pack, in which 21.1% suggested it
should take 100%.

Plain packaging is a new tobacco control measure, which has
been implemented by Australia since December 2012 and to
be adopted by UK and Ireland in 2016 and 2017 respectively. In
Hong Kong, almost half of all respondents (42.9%) supported
the implementation of plain packaging.

Advertising of tobacco products

Most of all respondents (60.7%) had noticed the display of
tobacco products at points of sale.

Majority (66.4%) thought that the display of tobacco products
was a kind of cigarette advertisement and promotion and
19.6% of current smokers reported that the display increased
the craving to smoke.

Half of all respondents (50.3%) thought that display at the
points of sale should be banned.

Of all respondents, 37.5% thought brand extension, i.e. the use
of cigarette brand names for other products such as clothing,
should not be allowed.

E-cigarettes

Most respondents (75.4%) had heard of e-cigarettes but very
few had ever tried (1.8%) e-cigarettes. In those who had tried
e-cigarettes, majority (61.4%) were young people aged 15 to
29.

The most common reasons for them to try e-cigarettes were
“their friends used it and they would like to try” (45.0%), “it is
special/modern/novel” (34.9%) and “it can help quit smoking”
(10.4%).
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e More than one-third (35.4%) of respondents said that the
e-cigarettes they bought contained nicotine, whereas many
(39.7%) did not know and only about a quarter (24.9%)
reported no nicotine.

e Of the randomly-selected current smokers, 82.1% did not think
e-cigarettes could take place of conventional cigarettes in their
daily life.

Opinions on future tobacco control policies
e A substantial proportion (56.7%) of respondents supported a

total ban on tobacco sale, as did 38.5% of randomly-selected
current smokers.

e Majority (76.2%) agreed a rise in the legal age for purchasing
Cigarettes from the present 18 to 21 years old.

e Half (50.5%) agreed that children born in and after 2000 should
never have access to cigarettes.

e If smoking prevalence falls to 5% or lower, most of the
respondents (63.8%) agreed that smoking should be banned
altogether.

The survey findings will be further analyzed and more detailed
results on specific topics will be disseminated in the form of
report.
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Aims and Strategies

To uphold sustainable development, COSH devises internal and
external strategies to promote a sense of responsibility regarding
the protection of the ecological environment. In order to achieve
the targets, COSH has adopted the following environmentally
friendly policies:

e Enhance efficiency of energy consumption;
e Reduce paper consumption; and

e Enhance staff awareness on environmental protection.

Environmental Protection Strategies

Enhance Efficiency of Energy Consumption

The Secretariat conserves energy by ensuring that staff members
switch off lights, air-conditioners, computers, monitors of
computer, photocopiers, printers and other electric appliances
immediately after use.

Instead of using traditional light bulbs, COSH has started using
compact fluorescent lamps which each consumes 1/6 of the
energy used by a traditional globe.
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Reduce Paper Consumption

Promotional materials such as posters, brochures and leaflets
are printed to promote the health message to the public. The
following measures are applied to reduce the consumption of

paper:

e E-mail and intranet are used among staff for internal
communication and transfer of documents instead of
memorandums, letters and hardcopies;

e Utilization of electronic-fax system and electronic document
management system to reduce the amount of printing;

e Reduction of the size and quantity of the printed promotional
materials and gradual adoption of environmentally friendly
paper;

e Most of the tobacco control information, promotional materials
and publications are available on COSH website for public
access in order to reduce the demand of hardcopies;

e Use of both sides of paper to avoid wastage; and

e Unwanted paper such as drafts of documents and documents
with printing errors are collected for recycling.

Enhance Staff Awareness on Environmental Protection
Staff meetings were held and notices were posted on notice
board to remind staff on the aim of complying with and
implementing all the green measures.

COSH will continue to make every endeavor to implement the
green measures.
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Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health

Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

To the Members of Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
(incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health ("the Council”) set out on pages 108 to
127, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2015, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Council Members' Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such
internal control as the council members determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 17(5) of the Hong Kong
Council on Smoking and Health Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant of the entity’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing the opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the council members, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2015 and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

LO.

TR S
BABMEEHD

& 20157838

F.S. Li & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3 July 2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2015F3 A3 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

{iEs
(B¥) (HKS) Note
WA Income
EBRRITTIN R BT 2R, Subventions from the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
—ARIERL General subvention 23,348,190 22,069,350
MR E AT EERL Wornen Smoking Cessation Promotion
Programme subvention 3(b) 416,921 -
23,765,111 22,069,350
SRITA B A Bank interest income 75 59
QE%EEWH%ZHK}\ Registration fee income on conference 125,800 -
FETEUA Sundry income 6,088 7,930
... 23,897,074 22077339
paan Expenditure
HEAERR AT AR Y Approved establishment 4 3,462,978 3,102,158
IEHEBET Project staff 5 2,613,719 2,396,261
A EE ERTEIE A Women Smoking Cessation
Promotion Programme expenses 3(c) 416,921 -
EELHEEER Publicity and promotion expenses 13,893,825 13,286,244
2%EA Conference expenses 170,041 147,019
2EZEZ8 LY Reference books and periodicals 11,220 8,017
WAEHEE - ZMNEIEE  Office rent, rates and management fee 2,614,338 2,548,378
BERHeREA Warehouse rent and expenses 189,480 183,426
HwIEMREER Repairs and maintenance 86,847 5,032
R Cleaning fee 52,960 50,206
e Depreciation 45,817 67,398
R Insurance 67,434 58,275
BB Electricity 44,941 40,280
= B BB A Telephone and communication expenses 64,135 54,776
BRTHEEH Recruitment expenses 34,120 15,840
BTk EREER Staff training and development expenses - 2,500
EISEEZ-92 Legal and professional fees 13,200 13,200
ZEAN N & Honorarium to auditors
- NEERERN — provision for current year 14,000 14,000
- FEFELE — underprovision for prior year - 1,000
EEIE= Postage 11,564 838
ENRI RSB Printing and stationery 73,361 66,398
IR Sundry expenses 46,308 50,335
e iiiiiiiieio........23,927,209  __ 22,11158]1._
AEEER Deficit for the year 6 (30,135) (34,242)
AEERHEXH Total comprehensive expense
for the year (30,135) (34,242)
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Statement of Financial Position

R20159F3 A31H
At 31 March 2015

B RE
(%) (HKS) Note
FEREEE Non-current assets
W BEERGRfE. Property,plantand equipment 8 .. 50,966 70963
REBEE Current assets
e RFERNFIA Deposits and prepayments 9 732,712 699,901
RIT MRS ETF Bank and cash balances 999,072 525,645
1,731,784 1,225,546
W ORBAE Less: Current liabilities
FEfT &R Accrued charges 975,000 953,801
FREHE Provision for annual leave
entitlements 210,704 180,559
TAN L M AR I HE AT & Women Smoking Cessation
=4t Promotion Programme
i subvention received in advance 3(a) 533,079 -
JERBFREZZARFE Adjusted surplus for the year refundable
KRR to the Department of Health 10 20,007 68,047
JEREIFREZE Y Accumulated surpluses refundable
EEt to the Department of Health 11 203,640 203,640
1,942,430 1,406,047
RBERE Net current liabilities (210,646) ____ (180501)
BEFE Net liabilities (159,680) (109,538)
ER representing:
ZiEEE Accumulated deficits (159,680) (109,538)
KEEEN2015F7 A3RBE - Approved by the Council on 3 July 2015.

P18 2% 55 4 MH

LZEEXF

Mr Antonio KWONG Cho-shing, MH
Chairman

h I fE 2+ MH
ZEEREIER

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
Vice-chairman
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Statement of Changes in Equity

BE2015F3A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

s
(%) (HK$) Note
2EEBE Accumulated deficit
LEESRZER Deficitbrought forward (109,538) (7249)
rEEEHE Deficit for the year/Total comprehensive
AEEEEZ M expense for the year (30,135) (34,242)

JEREIFEEE 2 KFERR  Adjusted surplus refundable
to the Department of Health 10 (20,007) (68,047)

AL 2 EE Deficit attributable to the Council (50,142) (102,289)

BATFEZER Deficit carried forward (159,680) (109,538)




REmER

Cash Flow Statement

HZE2015F3 A31 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

¥R & Reports

—POF
(B%) (HKS) 2014
EBEECIRERE Cash flows from operating activities
REEEE Deficit for the year (30,135) (34,242)
FEE - Adjustment for:
FEWA Interest income (75) (59)
e Depreciation 45,817 67,398
LEESEFRCLE Operating surplus before working
capital changes 15,607 33,097
e RIERFIE 2 M Increase in deposits and prepayments (32,811) (17,295)
FENE R Z g Increase in accrued charges 21,199 49,404
FrE 2 18N Increase in provision for annual leave
entitlements 30,145 41,330
TEN T M A G HE AT 2 Increase in Women Smoking Cessation
AL 2 38N Promotion Programme subvention
received in advance 533,079 -
EERBMELCFRE  Netcashfromoperatingactivities . 567,219 106,536,
KEEBSZHENRE Cash flows from investing activities
BBAMZ - s R Purchase of property, plant and equipment (25,820) (6,439)
EFE Interest received 75 59
_BRAFRBMERFRE  Netcashusedininvestingactivities ___________ (25745) ____ (6380)
BMEEHCRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BRREIEESE Surplus refunded to the Department of Health (68,047) (152,758)
_BEAEBMERFRE  Netcashusedinfinancingactivities  __________ (68,047)  (152758)
fﬁﬁiﬁ&i@@%fﬁz Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
F1g, O ) cash equivalents 473,427 (52,602)
FUBHeMRFEET Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 525,645 578,247
FRESMRSFELET Cash and cash equivalents at
end the year 999,072 525,645
ReRREEBEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
IRITMIB e T Bank and cash balances 999,072 525,645

113




¥R & Reports

B RS a M R

Notes to the Financial Statements
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General

The Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health (“the

Council”) is an organization incorporated under the Hong
Kong Council on Smoking and Health Ordinance on
1 October 1987.

The office address of the Council is at Unit 4402 — 03,
44" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong.

Principal Accounting Policies

(a)

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certificate Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The accounts have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting year
of the Council. The Council has adopted the following
revised HKFRSs which is relevant to its operations:
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continuea)

(a)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

() Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments
do not have an impact on these financial
statements because the Council has not offset
financial assets and financial liabilities.

(i) Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the
disclosure requirements for impaired non-
financial assets. Among them, the amendments
expand the disclosure required for an impaired
asset or cash-generating unit whose recoverable
amount is based on fair value less cost of
disposal. The amendments do not have a
significant impact on these financial statements.

In addition, the Council has not early adopted new
and revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the
current accounting year. The management of the
Council anticipates that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Council’s
accounts.

115




116

¥R & Reports

2. TESTHBER®

(a)

(b)

mBEE ()

EREN B BUBEREER 2B

HRE - EEERIEL AL - AFHA
RER - L FHEHABERZER - AR

HEE B WANHZHRER
BRREE - ELATIEBRRE
RIBATERNERERRERIBER
RRAEZZHEAMRRELN - B
BRB T BEEBEEAKERLME
CRBESMNEERBE ZIREERAR
TR HIE < 27 - BERERAEEA R
ISR CER

BIEES MR B IRGEFT AR
R MREAHEFHZEBITREFE
X—HiRE - AR EF ez iR AE
R MREFTHE AR KBRS E

T2 AIFEERERT 2 HAR AR 2k B
IR ©
WA TR

() BAGUSEMBREEFTESR
JiF 2 RE O 6K S R TR ER MR B2
MR BT ERE LR
B 7 B8 A ) BRFE B R At i TE R
BWA - Y #H BERF&BNT
BENERERA - 2HEXR
56 WA TERE R W BUT £ R
FERREE -

@RISR AR ERFIEAS
it -

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continuea)

(a)

(b)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Revenue Recognition

()  Government subventions are recognized
as income over periods necessary to match
them with the related costs they are intended
to compensate, on a systematic basis when
there is reasonable assurance that the Council
will comply with the conditions attaching of
them and the subventions will be received.
Government subventions received before
the revenue recognition criteria satisfied are
recognized as a liability.

(i) Bank interest income is recognized as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continuea)

(c)

(d)

Foreign Currencies Translation

The Council’s functional currency and presentation
currency are Hong Kong dollars. Transactions arising
in foreign currencies are converted at exchange
rates approximating to those ruling at transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the end of reporting period
are translated at rates of exchange approximating to
those ruling at that date. All exchange differences are
dealt with in surplus or deficit.

Impairment Losses

At the end of each reporting period, where there
is any indication that an asset is impaired, the
recoverable amount of the asset should be estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss should not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined has no impairment
loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to surplus or deficit in
the year in which the reversals are recognized.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continuea)

(e)

(f)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less any subsidies received or receivable, any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment less subsidies received
or receivable and accumulated impairment losses over
their estimated useful lives using a straight-line basis
at the following rates:

over unexpired period of lease
25 percent per annum
25 percent per annum

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Assets Held under Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases are charged to surplus or
deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continuea)

(9)

(h)

(i)

(j)

Deposits

Deposits are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Accrued Charges

Accrued charges are initially recognized at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits
with banks within 3 months to maturity from date of
deposit.

Employee Leave Entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related
party includes a person and an entity as defined
below:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Council if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the
Council;

(b)  has significant influence over the Council;
or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Council.

(i) An entity is related to the Council if any of the
following conditions applies:

(@) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Council or an entity related to the
Council. If the Council is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related
to the Council.

(b)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(©) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity.



¥R & Reports

3. WMAMEERES 3. Women Smoking Cessation Promotion

Programme

EFERARSREEBWENZ BAEE During the year the Council received a subvention of

950,000 TR Z MR IEHETE - B HK$950,000 from the Department of Health to launch the

BERMER WARZHZFBRT - Women Smoking Cessation Promotion Programme. The
details of subvention recognition, income and expenditure
are as follow:

(a) JEBAEERR (a) Subvention Recognition

TE-RF [mieagiks

(B%) (HKS) 2015 2014

HERAMA Recognized as income 416,921 -

wRAAEE Recognized as liability 533,079 -

AR ARRR Total subvention 950,000 -
(b) WA (b) Income

“E-0F pmagiks

(B%) (HKS) 2015 2014
2R RL Recognized subvention 416,921 -
() XHi () Expenditure

=tk T U4

GE¥) (HKS) 2015 2014
EEREEEA Publicity and promotion expenses 320,000 -
e Salaries 90,592 -
BB BN Mandatory provident fund contributions 4,530 -
fREg Insurance 1,799 -

416,921 -
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4, WHEBRE 4. Approved Establishment
(BH) (HK$)
e MoEBh Salaries and allowances 3,337,162 2,990,804
SRIE SR Mandatory provident fund contributions 86,117 74,982
FREE Provision for annual leave entitlements
made 39,699 36,372
3,462,978 3,102,158
IHEBET 5. Project Staff
T—mF
(B¥%) (HK$) 2014
e Salaries 2,506,085 2,286,269
SEiE SR Mandatory provident fund contributions 117,188 105,034
FR(BEOE) BE Provision for annual leave entitlements
(written back)/made (9,554) 4958
2,613,719 2,396,261
REEEE 6. Deficit for the year
REEBEEHRTIER - Deficit for the year is stated after charging the followings:
(B¥) (HKS)
BIRA * Staff costs * 6,219,447 5,544,283
T RAEFEEMER S Rentals of land and buildings held under
operating leases 2,346,396 2,339,596
* BEREYNEBEHFGRKRRERT S H R EE * including contribution of HK$210,103 (2014: HK$182,200) to
210,103 70 (2014 €F : 182,2007L) © defined contribution provident fund scheme.
ZEERENNE 7. Council Members' Remuneration
AefMEeLZEeK BN AFERNARE None of the council members received any remuneration in
A AN & H2 4 AR 75 T R BN & (2014 4 - respect of their services to the Council during the year (2014
) o Nil).
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M - s R 8. Property, Plant and Equipment
HEWE &R WAE
HRIRE REE B Fob]
Leasehold Furniture Office
(B%) (HKS) improvements and fixtures equipment Total
%S Cost
M2013F3A31H At 31 March 2013 36,305 104,176 492,623 633,104
NE Additions - - 6,439 6,439
20143 A31H At 31 March 2014 36,305 104,176 499,062 639,543
NE Additions - 1,840 23,980 25,820
7201553 A31 H At 31 March 2015 36,305 106,016 523,042 665,363
RENE Accumulated depreciation
7201353318 At 31 March 2013 35,534 83,288 382,360 501,182
BE2014F3H31H Charge for the year ended
LIFFERHR 31 March 2014 771 11,010 55617 67,398
201453 A31 8 At 31 March 2014 36,305 94,298 437977 568,580
BZE2015F3H31H Charge for the year ended
LHFEER 31 March 2015 - 7,408 38,409 45817
72015%3A31 8 At 31 March 2015 36,305 101,706 476,386 614,397
REFE Net book value
20153 A31H At 31 March 2015 - 4310 46,656 50,966
R2014F3A31H At 31 March 2014 - 9,878 61,085 70,963
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H—J N—FREELABA -

FEROEEE 2 EHERRR

EEF?%E%ji%%iﬁiifﬁiﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

REFBRAEENDREAR - REYE
7% R REHRNERBAFENERM D
AR MATE o Bt - ERTERROE
HEE 2 BB TREFREE BER
BWx > HEk&REOMEERTE M
HRRIR ~ MEBRREARE -

10.

Deposits and Prepayments

The amount of deposits expected to be recovered after one
year is HK$480,794 (2014: HKS$450,794). The prepayments in
sum of HK$251,918 (2014: HK$249,107) are expected to be
recognized as expenses within one year.

Adjusted Surplus Refundable to the
Department of Health

As the Department of Health does not recognize the
provision for annual leave entitlements as expenses
until actual payment is made, and regards additions to
property, plant and equipment as expenses during the
year of acquisition without recognition of write-off and
depreciation, accordingly, for the purpose of calculating
the surplus refundable to the Department of Health,
the provision/provision written back for annual leave
entitlements and write-off and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment have been excluded, and additions to
property, plant and equipment have been deducted.

(BH) (HKS)
REEEE Deficit for the year (30,135) (34,242)
e Add: Depreciation 45,817 67,398
F MG Provision for annual leave entitlements 30,145 41,330
B E - MBI NERIERARE  Less: Additions to property, plant and
equipment (25,820) (6,439)
JERERFAEZNLFHERER Adjusted surplus refundable to the
Department of Health 20,007 68,047
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N BREFEECZBERER 11. Accumulated Surpluses Refundable to
the Department of Health

SERERBEE1998F3IH3IIBERE The management of the Council considers that the
B ERNEEZEERERM - accumulated surpluses up to 31 March 1998 will be

refunded to the Department of Health upon request.

R.csHEEREHMERS 12. Financial Assets and Liabilities
() sREERBEER (a) Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

(BEE) (HKS)
EREE Financial assets
TRENAE - IR ANE ¢ Current assets — at amortized cost:
Be Deposits 480,794 450,794
RITNIREETF Bank and cash balances 999,072 525,645
1,479,866 976,439
cEaE Financial liabilities
MENBE - LA © Current liabilities — at amortized cost:
FEfT & Accrued charges 975,000 953,801
FREE Provision for annual leave entitlements 210,704 180,559
FEREBIFAEZBZAFE  Adjusted surplus for the year refundable
KRR ARG to the Department of Health 20,007 68,047
JEREBFEEZ Accumulated surpluses refundable
2R A% to the Department of Health 203,640 203,640
1,409,351 1,406,047
(b) MBEMEENBBERBEK (b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies
(i) SrEEE (i)  Foreign Currency Risk
EBREEY  A2XTehlF In the normal course of the operation, the
EEARRINE R Council does not expose to significant foreign

currency risk.
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12. Financial Assets and Liabilities (continueq)

(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Interest Rate Risk

In the normal course of the operation, the
Council does not expose to significant interest
rate risk.

Other Price Risk

The Council is not exposed to commodity and
security price risk.

Credit Risk

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank and is insignificant because the
counterparty is a bank with high credit rating.

Liquidity Risk

The Council’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the contractual
maturities of all the Council’s financial liabilities,
whose carrying amounts are equal to total
contracted undiscounted cash flows, are due
within one year.

Fair Values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2015 and 2014. The fair value is estimated as
the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rate.
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3. RE A AIE 13. Commitments Under Operating Leases

REERR - AGRBTAHEEN T & At the end of reporting period, the Council had the

BFEEHEMBER AR TR REEE following future aggregate minimum lease payments under

RaEzamT - non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings:

(B%) (HKS)
F—FN Not later than one year 2,210,396 2,346,396
FEZFERFNA Later than one year but not later than
five years - 2,210,396
2,210,396 4,556,792
14. BEEEALTR S 14. Related Party Transactions
EFEARNGEEMEATFIETNRE During the year the Council undertook the following
ZETEUT transactions with related parties in the normal course of its
operation:
(B¥) (HKS)
T EERA B Remuneration for key management
(BNgas=s) personnel (i.e. Executive Director)
HHEAETREF Short-term employee benefits 1,414,283 1,238,280
BERL RN Post-employment benefits 17,500 15,000

1,431,783 1,253,280
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BUFERPS Government Departments

PR ERE Central & Western District Council
BEE Department of Health
RE@EHEg Fastern District Council

BER Fducation Bureau

R REER Food and Health Bureau
BERBHE Hong Kong Correctional Services Department
BIREER Hospital Authority

EggililA Information Services Department
BEREE Islands District Council
NERRZS Kowloon City District Council
NERRBEBE Kowloon City District Office
ZERESG Kwai Tsing District Council
BERRS Kwun Tong District Council
teREe North District Council

BEER Radlio Television Hong Kong
HAERES Sai Kung District Council
SVHEES Sha Tin District Council

KT A Sham Shui Po District Council
HRREE Southern District Council
AHERES Tai Po District Council
REBEERAE Tobacco Control Office, Department of Health
LERZEE Tsuen Wan District Council

AP EEE Tuen Mun District Council
BlfREE Wan Chai District Council
BEAlEES Wong Tai Sin District Council
N Yau Tsim Mong District Council

TTHARES Yuen Long District Council
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#A#4 Organizations

Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association Social Service Centre
- Southern District Integrated Elderly Service Centre

Action for REACH OUT

Agency for Volunteer Service Western Garden Neighbourhood
Elderly Centre

Asian Consultancy on Tobacco Control

Caritas Elderly Centre — Central District

Centre of Research and Promotion of Women's Health
Ching Chung Action Foundation Limited

Ching Fai Women Association Ltd

Chung Sing Benevolent Society Fong Wong Woon Tei
Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

Chung Sing Benevolent Society Mrs Aw Boon Haw
Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

Chung Ying Theatre Company

Clear the Air

Domain Mall

ELCHK Chung On Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

Environmental and Health Affairs Committee, Tsuen Wan
District Council

Free Methodist Church Chuk Yuen IVY Club

Fuk Loi Moon Lok Yin Ngai Society

Harmony House

Hiu Lai Women's Association

HKLSS Ma Tau Wai Lutheran Centre for the Elderly
HKLSS Sai Cho Wan Lutheran Centre for the Elderly

HKLSS Sai Cho Wan Lutheran Centre for the Elderly Grace
Sceneway Sub-office

HKMCSDA Shan King Integrated Children and Youth Services
Centre of Seventh-day Adventists

HKSKH St Luke’s Settlement Neighbourhood Elderly Centre
HKSKH Tai Wo Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

HKYWCA Cheung Ching Neighbourhood Elderly Centre
HKYMCA Tai O Community Work Office
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BEBRERIER Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
ER A SR BEA EE Rt Hong Kong Buddhist Association Buddhist Foo Wong Hop

Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

i R TN E E A th 0, Hong Kong Christian Service Un Chau Neighbourhood Elderly

Centre
BB REE S Hong Kong College of Mental Health Nursing
BEEYPETSR Hong Kong College of Midwives
BB IRERZER Hong Kong College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists
EERREERESR Hong Kong College of Paediatric Nursing
EETESg Hong Kong Dental Association
BERSAELEEHES Hong Kong Federation of Women
EBmZR LR Hong Kong Federation of Women's Centre
BEAEEEEE Hong Kong Island Women'’s Association
BES AR AR Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women’s Association Limited
EAERELE Hong Kong Southern District Women's Association Ltd
B AR Hong Kong Women Development Association Limited
BERBEREAES Hong Kong Women Health Ambassador Association
EBEEHUETFE Hong Kong Young Women's Christian Association
BN RIEEREETFEPL ICFG Kin Sang Church Elderly Centre
B REgETEEFH 0 ICFG Lung Hang Church Elderly Centre

International Buddhist Progress Society Law Chan Chor Sze
Social Centre for the Elderly

BIfRmagEZ AR O International Women'’s League Social Centre for the Elderly

BEETRERFSRER

HEBEEREEZAPL

Jockey Club Auditorium, The Hong Kong Polytechnic

University
BESESSERLS REF L Jockey Club Yung Shing Lutheran Intergrated Service Centre
NEWREGREMEFH O Kowloon City Baptist Church Neighbourhood Elderly Centre
NBemie Kowloon Women's Organizations Federation
BB Kwai Chung Hospital
ZEZEHELKERRTHE Kwai Tsing Safe Community and Healthy City Association
HRHB AT E Life Education Activity Programme

Mongkok Kai-Fong Association Limited Chan Hing Social
Service Centre

HAETERELSRET L

Moon Studio
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Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council Tin Shui
Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
Pentecostal Church of Hong Kong Choi Wan Neighbourhood
Elderly Centre

Po Leung Kuk Mrs Maria Cheung Lifelong Learning Institute
for the Senior

Pok Oi Hospital

Policy 21 Limited

Promotion Committee of "Hygienic, Healthy & Dynamic City”,
Wan Chai District Council

Quit-Winners Club
SAGE Eastern District Day Care Centre for the Elderly

SAGE Mr Wong Wha San Memorial Neighbourhood Elderly
Centre

Sik Sik Yuen Ho Ning Social Centre for Senior Citizens

Sik Sik Yuen Ho Ping Neighbourhood Centre for Senior
Citizens

Sik Sik Yuen Ho Wong Neighbourhood Centre for Senior
Citizens

SKH Holy Carpenter Church District Elderly Community
Centre

Smoke Terminators Society

Social Services & Healthy and Safe City Committee, Sai Kung
District Council

Southern District Healthy and Safe Association
Tai Po District Federation of Women

Tai Po District Residents Association

Television Broadcasts Limited

The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong

The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong Tseung Kwan
OWomen's Club

The Girls’ Brigade Hong Kong
The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society
The Hong Kong College of Pathologists
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The Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions Women Affairs

Committee
BEHEEE The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon
BRNEY The New Voice Club of Hong Kong
BEEELTERER The Nursing Council of Hong Kong
Bl s BT E E e, The Yuen Yuen Institute — Tsuen Wan West Neighbourhood
Elderly Centre
FKEmEBR AR Tin Shui Wai Women Association Limited
BRHSE Tsing Yi Lady’s Forum
ZETREMEREELZES Tsuen Wan Safe and Healthy Community Steering Committee
P A B Tuen Mun District Women's Association
LA TR = B IR AE R AR Un.ited Christian Nethersole Community Health Service Good
Neighbour Network
E?'Z SHEBHEBERGHRABA LT Virtuous Lady Club ELCHK Login Club for New Arrivals
Zgiﬁﬁi/\ﬁﬁkﬁ EifiraRE Wan Chai Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre of
BLFRBEH L Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service
‘\ﬁﬁ"‘@%%?\i Wan Chai Yin Ngai Society
BEELE Wanchai District Women’s Association
REEREEFPL Wo Che Rhenish Social Centre for the Elderly
I 2 AR A He Women Service Association
RREHEES Women's Commission

Women’s Welfare Club Western District Hong Kong Chung

S == = \|@ N E N
EENRBLBAGINREARL Hok Social Centre for the Elderly

‘AR ERZ 2T Wong Tai Sin District Healthy & Safe City

bE @ E g @ Em ™ LIE ) 4E Working Group on Healthy City, North District Council

BB AMEEZAFR O Yan Chai Hospital Mrs Annie Chan Social Centre for the Elderly

R PR AR 2 2 A Yan Chai Hospital Wan Shing Memorial Day Care Centre for
the Elderly

THEmELE Yuen Long District Women’s Association Limited

TRAA @ BERME T A 2 AL Yuen Long Town Hall Mrs Leung Hok Chiu Neighbourhood
Elderly Centre

ZEFIR 0 Yuen Yuen v-Learn Women Centre
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A-one Kindergarten

Aberdeen St Peter's Catholic Primary School
Academy Kindergarten (Tin Shui Wai)

AD & FD POHL Leung Sing Tak College

AEFCHK-EFCC Po Nga Nursery School

AEFCHK-EFCC Verbena Nursery School

Agnes Kindergarten (Grandeur Terrace)

Aldrich Bay Government Primary School

Alliance Primary School, Tai Hang Tung

Alliance Primary School, Kowloon Tong

Anchors International Nursery (Constellation Cove)
Anchors Kindergarten & International Nursery (Fanling)
Anchors Kindergarten & International Nursery
Aplichau Kaifong Primary School

Asbury Methodist Primary School

Assembly of God Mcleod Memorial Kindergarten
Assembly of God Morrison College (Primary Section)
Auxiliary Medical Service Cadet Corps

Baptist (Sha Tin Wai) Lui Ming Choi Primary School
Baptist Convention of HK Yiu Hing Kindergarten
Baptist Lui Ming Choi Primary School

Baptist Rainbow Primary School

Benevolent Light Kindergarten

BGCA Cheerland Nursery School cum Kindergarten (Wanchai)
BGCA Cheerland Nursery School cum Kindergarten
(Wong Tai Sin)

Bishop Ford Memorial School

Bishop Walsh Primary School

Bonham Road Government Primary School

Bowie Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
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Buddhist Chan Wing Kan Memorial School
Buddhist Chi King Primary School

Buddhist Chun Yue Kindergarten (Tung Chung)/
Buddhist Chun Yue Nursery (Tung Chung)

Buddhist Chung Wah Kornhill Primary School
Buddhist Lam Bing Yim Memorial School (SPSD by HKBA)

Buddhist Lim Kim Tian Memorial Primary School

HHERANHE Buddhist Sin Tak College
HHL R B HEE Buddhist Sum Tung Fook Kindergarten
(GESONY L) Buddhist Tai Hung College
(GESON L k== Buddhist Tai Kwong Chi Hong College
G R R HEE Buddhist Tsang Kor Sing Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
HHELELSPE Buddhist Yip Kei Nam Memorial College
EEHEESREML NS C&MA Chui Chak Lam Memorial School
EEHEEGANMMHER C&MA Church Tai Wo Kindergarten
EBHETBEHIRNHER C&MA Church Verbena Kindergarten
EHEEgRGHHER C&MA Fairview Park Kindergarten
EEYEBEEERLHHEER C&MA Joyful Peace Kindergarten

EEHEESE NN RERN
s FEE CETER)
5 U1 € 1))

C&MA Plover Cove Nursery School
Cannan Kindergarten (Riviera Garden)

Canossa Primary School (San Po Kong)

BERHER Canossa School (Hong Kong)
BAZTRARREE RS2 Caritas Yuen Long Chan Chun Ha Secondary School
IR RE BB Carmel Leung Sing Tak School

SRRETRXYHEE
RIEBHHER ()
hELEHSRMNERT/NE
FEEEHEETFE B
FEEBEHS RN (KDE

Catiline Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten

Catiline Kindergarten (Fanling)

CCC Cheung Chau Church Kam Kong Primary School
CCC Chuen Yuen Second Primary School

CCC Heep Woh Primary School (Cheung Sha Wan)

REEBHEMEE/ S
hEREHSLAYHE
PELEY LB
hEREHE LA E
HEEEHRES /B
PEREHEEE NS VEEE)

CCC Hoh Fuk Tong Primary School
CCC Kei Chun Kindergarten

CCC Kei Faat Primary School
CCCKei Faat Kindergarten

CCC Kei Tsun Primary School

CCC KeiWa Primary School (Kowloon Tong)

137



138

Fft4% Appendices

REABHGEAD /|2
RELBEHERFEIORL D/
REEBHGAT EHHER
REREHE RN
FEEEHYSEMZMEENER
REREHEEfEEENE
REEEHEETERB/NE(LEN)
PR ELZEER
BEeREEHZE

PRI RS2

PRI (R ) N2

RREER

MEER(EBS)

AR AREE 2
FME LB
Y EBHI RN EME

MR
HHyEENE
2 LEEER
BEATEREBEHEFE
BEeMESSRaTLFREF L
REABHEFTFE LKPHEER
FIRER MR
BIARHHER

HEHHE

kS 2 HER]
G B RNE
BARGNE
REHBFEWRLHER
MEEEZ/NE

EERLERYER,HRE
EBEERFELSYHEER

FYPMR,1H TP

CCC Kei Wai Primary School

CCC Mong Wong Far Yok Memorial Primary School
CCC Shum Oi Church Kindergarten

CCCTai O Primary School

CCCTuen Mun Church Hoh Fuk Tong Kindergarten
CCCWanchai Church Kei To Primary School

CCC Wanchai Church Kei To Primary School (Kowloon City)

Central and Western District Saint Anthony's School
Chan En Mei Lutheran Day Nursery

Chan Shu Kui Memorial School

Chan Sui Ki (La Salle) Primary School

Chan'’s Creative School

Chan'’s Creative School (HK Island)

Cheng Chek Chee Secondary School of Sai Kung & Hang Hau

District, NT
Cheung Chau Sacred Heart School

Cheung Sha Wan Kfwa Lam Tam Yin Wah Kindergarten/

Day Nursery

Chi Hong Primary School

Chi Lin Buddhist Primary School
Chinese Methodist School, Tanner Hill

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong Hin Keng Centre Jockey Club

Integrated Children & Youth Services Centre
Chinese YMCA Sheung Shui Kindergarten
Ching Chung Hing Tung Kindergarten
Ching Chung Wu King Kindergarten

Chiu Ha Kindergarten

Chiu Yang Kindergarten

Chiu Yang Por Yen Primary School

Chiu Yang Primary School of Hong Kong
Choi Ha Estate Kit Sam Kindergarten
Choi Wan St Joseph's Primary School
Christian Adrianne Kindergarten/Nursery

Christian Alliance Chen Lee Wing Tsing Memorial
Kindergarten
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Christian Alliance H C Chan Primary School

Christian Alliance Louey Choy Kwan Lok Kindergarten

Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College

Christian Alliance S'Y Yeh Memorial Primary School

Christian Little Angel Kindergarten (Kam Fung Court)

Christian the Faith Hope Love Church Yat Tung Kindergarten

Chun Tok School
CMA Secondary School
CNEC Lui Ming Choi Primary School

Confucian Tai Shing Primary School

Conservative Baptist Lui Ming Choi Primary School

Creative Kindergarten (Aegean Coast)
Creative Primary School’s Kindergarten
CUHK FAA Thomas Cheung School

Cumberland Presbyterian Church Yao Dao Primary School

Dominic Savio Kindergarten (Olympic Branch)

Dr Catherine F Woo Memorial School
ELCHK Faith Love Lutheran School

ELCHK Hung Hom Lutheran Primary School

ELCHK Kin Ming Nursery School

ELCHK Kwai Shing Lutheran Primary School

ELCHK Nam Cheong Kindergarten
ELCHK Tseung Kwan O Kindergarten
Elite Kids Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
Emmanuel Primary School

Evangel College

Faith Lutheran Church Kindergarten

Fanling Assembly of God Church Primary School

Fanling Government Primary School
Fanling Lutheran Secondary School
Father Cucchiara Memorial School
FDBWA Cheung Chuk Shan Kindergarten
FDBWA Chow Chin Yau School

FDBWA Szeto Ho Secondary School

139




140

Fft4% Appendices

BEE—NEBHEE
BIEERTERBEENRER
BEREULA)
R 2B ER
BURBEE D S 2R
REIHEGRIER )P
REHZE/NE
BRAEH S g HEE (BRARIM )
AP R HHEE (FK)
PR 2h RER (P BES)
AR A HER] (_E7KIR)

BN HHEE
HEFBEE L M/NE
BB EEBEHHHRABER
BEEEBEHHBMEEBEMLER
BB EEBHHHE YR
HBEEEHHBERNE
BELEEBLHHETERER
BB
BREEERRYPHE
EREXMBRAEGER
BERERENBERTHRIER/NE
BRLRRHRS0FBLRER
EEHAETEEBETREER
BB TSR NE
BEBELNGMAEEERS
EBERNGEIRERARLHHEE
ERERNGERFNYNRER
EREANGEAMIRBEL R ER
EEREZEGAFEEIRZESPRER
EEREZEGERLTYNRER
AEANERIASREELSTE
EEMNEHITHASNEHEER
HRBHEEgLG/ 2

First Assembly of God Primary School & Kindergarten
Free Methodist Church Bradbury Chun Lei Nursery School
Fukien Middle School (North Point)

Fukien Secondary School Affiliated School

Fung Kai Liu Yun Sum Memorial School

GCCITKD Cheong Wong Wai Primary School

Good Counsel Catholic Primary School

Good Health Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten (Ap Lei Chau)
Good Health Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten (Tsing Yi)
Good Time Play School (Shatin Plaza)

Greenfield Kindergarten (Sheung Shui Centre)
Greenville Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten

Hennessy Road Government Primary PM School
HHCKLA Buddhist Chan ShiWan Primary School
HHCKLA Buddhist Ching Kok Lin Association School
HHCKLA Buddhist Wai Kwong Kindergarten

HHCKLA Buddhist Wisdom Primary School

HHCKLA Buddhist Wong Cho Sum School

Hing Tak School

HK and Macau Lutheran Church Tsui En Kindergarten
HK Vernacular Normal School Alumni Association School
HKBUAS Wong Kam Fai Secondary and Primary School
HKECA Wu Si Chong Memorial School

HKFEW Wong Cho Bau School

HKRSS Tuen Mun Primary School

HKSKH Bishop Hall Secondary School

HKSKH Lady Maclehose Centre Kindergarten

HKSKH St Nicholas’ Nursery School

HKSKH St Simon's Tai Hing Nursery School

HKSPC Park’'n Shop Staff Charitable Fund Nursery School
HKSPC Thomas Tam Nursery School

HKSYC & IA Chan Nam Chong Memorial College

HKSYC & IA San Wui Commercial Society School

HKTA Shun Yeung Primary School
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HKTA The Yuen Yuen Institute Shek Wai Kok Primary School
HKTA Wun Tsuen Ng Lai Wo Memorial School

HKTA Wun Tsuen School

HKTA Yuen Yuen Kindergarten (Tung Tau Est)

HKUGA Primary School

HKWMA Chu Shek Lun Secondary School
HKYWCA Athena Kindergarten

HKYWCA Chiu Oi Wah Nursery School
HKYWCA Lung Hang Nursery School
HKYWCA On Ting Nursery School
HKYWCA Tsuen Wan Nursery School

Ho Lap Kindergarten (Sponsored By Sik Sik Yuen)

Ho Ming Primary School (Sponsored by Sik Sik Yuen)

Ho Oi Day Nursery (Sponsored By Sik Sik Yuen)

Ho Shun Primary School (Sponsored by Sik Sik Yuen)

Ho Yan Kindergarten (Sponsored By Sik Sik Yuen)

Ho Yu College and Primary School (Sponsored by Sik Sik Yuen)

Hoi Ping Chamber Of Commerce Primary School

Holy Cross Lutheran School
Holy Family School
Homantin Baptist Church Kindergarten

Hong Kong Baptist Convention Primary School

Hong Kong Kindergarten Association Pre-School

Hong Kong Preschool (Kowloon Tong)
Hong Kong Red Cross Youth Unit
Hong Kong Soka Kindergarten

Hong Kong St John Ambulance Brigade Youth Command

Hong Kong Student Aid Society Po Tat Nursery

Hong Kong Tang King Po College

Hong Kong True Light Kindergarten (Caine Road)

Hong Ying Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
Hop Yat Church School
Island Road Government Primary School

Jade Kindergarten
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Jing Jing Kindergarten (Shun Lee Branch)

Jordan Valley St Joseph's Catholic Primary School

Ju Ching Chu Secondary School (Tuen Mun)

Ka Fuk Baptist Church Pre-School

Ka Ling School of The Precious Blood

Kam Tin Mung Yeung Public School

Kam Tsin Village Ho Tung Kindergarten

Karlam Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten (Oasis Garden)
Karlam Kindergarten (Tuen Mun Branch)

Kau Yan School

Kin Sang Baptist Church Bradbury Pre-School

King's College Old Boys’ Association Primary School
King's College Old Boys' Association Primary School No 2
Kowloon Bay St John The Baptist Catholic Primary School
Kowloon Cannan Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten

Kowloon City Baptist Church Hay Nien (Yan Ping)
Primary School

Kowloon City Baptist Church Ka Fuk Kindergarten
Kowloon City Baptist Church Kindergarten

Kowloon City Baptist Church Tsz Oi Kindergarten
Kowloon Ling Liang Church Day Nursery

Kowloon Rhenish School

Kowloon Tong Bishop Walsh Catholic School

Kowloon Tong Government Primary School

Kowloon Tong School (Secondary Section)

Kowloon True Light Middle School (Primary Section)
Kowloon Women's Welfare Club Li Ping Memorial School
Kwai Chung Baptist Church Kindergarten

Kwai Ming Wu Memorial School of The Precious Blood
Kwok Man School

Kwun Tong Government Primary School (Sau Ming Road)
Kwun Tong Government Secondary School

Lee Andrew Memorial Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten

Lei Muk Shue Catholic Primary School

Leung King Lutheran Day Nursery
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FHEELNE Li Cheng Uk Government Primary School
RN Li Sing Primary School

BREAENE Ling Liang Church Sau Tak Primary School
EEERAEILESFE Lingnan Dr Chung Wing Kwong Memorial Secondary School

EEABEERSe/ S Lingnan University Hong Kong Alumni Association (HK)

Primary School

i R CIE YW= Lions Clubs International Ho Tak Sum Primary School
ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁi%ﬁd\% LKWFSL Wong Yiu Nam Primary School
SLERBSHER Lok Fu Rhenish Church Kindergarten
SE T RERIBHMER Lok Sin Tong Cheung Yip Mou Ching Kindergarten
SEENHE Lok Sin Tong Kindergarten
HETREBENHE Lok Sin Tong Ku Chiu Man Secondary School
HEETETBEHER Lok Sin Tong Ku Lee Kwok Sin Kindergarten
DESRHRBLSTE Lok Sin Tong Leung Chik Wai Memorial School
HETRHRFEER Lok Sin Tong Leung Kau Kui College
DEERHRFEER Lok Sin Tong Leung Kau Kui Primary School
=T RHEFEER (HIR) Lok Sin Tong Leung Kau Kui Primary School (Branch)
HEZNE Lok Sin Tong Primary School
BEZTFHEPE Lok Sin Tong Wong Chung Ming Secondary School
LELIHTRABR Lok Sin Tong Yeung Chung Ming Primary School
%%ET’@%/J\W"? 2 Lok Sin Tong Young Ko Hsiao Lin Secondary School
BEEROPHE Lok Sin Tong Yu Kan Hing Secondary School
BABFIBEE B A HEE Long Ping Estate Sing Yan Kindergarten
BEeZLNER Loving Heart Lutheran Kindergarten
BELEERENE Ma On Shan Methodist Primary School
B LEEE NS Ma On Shan St Joseph's Primary School

Manhabit International Nursery & Kindergarten
(Kowloon Tong)

XTI 4) B K g HEE (FLREYR)

BiraaXEyiE Martha Boss Lutheran Day Nursery
RGNE Mary of Providence Primary School
ISR AL e B (/NEER) Maryknoll Fathers’ School (Primary Section)
B2 Marymount Primary School
ERMLHELNHEE Mei Tung Estate On Kee Kindergarten
REHAEER Meng Tak Catholic School
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Methodist School

Ming Wai International Kindergarten (North Point Branch)
Moon Lok Kindergarten

Mu Kuang English School

NAAC Fanling Day Nursery

NAAC Tung Yan Day Nursery

New Generation English Kindergarten (Tuen Mun)

Ng Clan’s Association Tai Pak Memorial School

Ng Wah Catholic Primary School

Ning Po College

Northern Lamma School

NT Heung Yee Kuk Yuen Long District Secondary School
NTW&JIWA Ltd Cheung Fat Estate Nursery School
NTW&JIWA Ltd Leung Sing Tak Primary School
NTW&JWA Ltd Sheung Shui Nursery School

NTW&JWA Ltd Yuen Long Nursery School

Oblate Primary School

Our Lady of China Catholic Primary School

Pat Heung Central Primary School

Peace Evangelical Centre Kindergarten (Ngau Tau Kok)
Pentecostal Church of HK Nam Cheong Nursery School
Pentecostal Church of HK Tai Wo Nursery School
Pentecostal Church of HK Tseung Kwan O Nursery School
Pentecostal Yu Leung Fat Primary School

Ping Shek Estate Catholic Primary School

Po Kok Branch School

Po Kok Primary School

Po Leung Kuk Butterfly Bay Kindergarten-Cum-Nursery
Po Leung Kuk Camoes Tan Siu Lin Primary School

Po Leung Kuk Castar Primary School

Po Leung Kuk Chan Yat Primary School

Po Leung Kuk Cheng Kwan How Yin Kindergarten-Cum-
Nursery

Po Leung Kuk Cheung Poon Mei Yee Kindergarten
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R BER IR MR Po Leung Kuk Choi Koon Shum Kindergarten
REBAFAENHRERZE RE Po Leung Kuk Chu Lee Yuet Wah Kindergarten-Cum-Nursery
REBARBHE Po Leung Kuk CW Chu College

Po Leung Kuk Dr Jimmy Wong Chi-Ho (Tin Sum Valley)
Primary School

RKREBIHZ (ALA) NS

REBRLBHEER Po Leung Kuk Fiona Cheung Sum Yu Kindergarten

BB EER RS RE Po Leung Kuk Fong Tam Yuen Leung Kindergarten-cum-
Nursery

REBAERE/NE Po Leung Kuk Fong Wong Kam Chuen Primary School

RE BT TR Po Leung Kuk Fong Wong Woon Tai Kindergarten

REBEBLES/NE Po Leung Kuk Fung Ching Memorial Primary School

(2B B REE D8 B Po Leung Kuk Gold & Silver Exchange Society Pershing Tsang

School
REBHENE Po Leung Kuk Grandmont Primary School
REBERNE Po Leung Kuk Horizon East Primary School
REBEBHER Po Leung Kuk Kam Hing Kindergarten
REBEGHENHEEE) ZE Po Leung Kuk Kim Huynh Kindergarten-Cum-Nursery
REBEEHEEENRZE Po Leung Kuk Kwun Tong Kindergarten-Cum-Nursery
REBMOE RSN Po Leung Kuk Lam Man Chan English Primary School
REBEIRNEHHEER Po Leung Kuk Lau Chan Siu Po Kindergarten
REBZEWEEHE Po Leung Kuk Lee Shing Pik College
REBERBDHEREH TR Po Leung Kuk Lee Siu Chan Kindergarten-cum-Nursery
REBREIEENE Po Leung Kuk Leung Chow Shun Kam Primary School
REBFRIDBLSHER Po Leung Kuk Li Tsui Chung Sing Memorial Kindergarten
REBEREENHEENRER Po Leung Kuk Lui Chan Wai Ching Kindergarten
RRBEHRNERZDTE Po Leung Kuk Lui Kam Tai Kindergarten-cum-Nursery
REBEES S Po Leung Kuk Luk Hing Too Primary School
2B PR SR AN Po Leung Kuk Mrs Chan Nam Chong Memorial Primary

School
REBR)INE Po Leung Kuk Riverain Primary School
REBFERNE Po Leung Kuk Siu Hon Sum Primary School
RRBEENE Po Leung Kuk Stanley Ho Sau Nan Primary School
REBEES DS L SR Po Leung Kuk Tam Au-Yeung Siu Fong Memorial Kindergarten
REBHEZEL S NER Po Leung Kuk Tang Bik Wan Memorial Kindergarten
RRBEHRATENE Po Leung Kuk Tin Ka Ping Millennium Primary School
REBBERRNE Po Leung Kuk Tin Ka Ping Primary School
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Po Leung Kuk Tin Ka Ping Siu Hong Kindergarten
Po Leung Kuk Tse Wong Pui Kuen Kindergarten-cum-Nursery
Po Leung Kuk Vicwood Chong Kee Ting Kindergarten

Po Leung Kuk Vicwood KT Chong No 2 Primary School

Po Leung Kuk Women's Welfare Club Western District Fung
Lee Pui Yiu Primary School

Po Leung Kuk Wong Wing Shu Primary School
Po Leung Kuk Yau Oi Kindergarten-Cum-Nursery
Po Leung Kuk Yick Chark Fung Kindergarten

Po Leung Kuk Yick Kwai Fong Kindergarten

Po On Commerical Association Wong Siu Ching Secondary
School

Po Yan Oblate Primary School

Pods Kindergarten & Preschool

Pok Oi Hospital 80" Anniversary Tang Ying Hei College
Pok Oi Hospital Chan Kwok Wai Primary School

Pok Oi Hospital Sy Siok Chun Kindergarten/Day Nursery
Pok Oi Hospital Mrs Chu Kwok King Memorial Kindergarten
Pooi To Primary School

Pope Paul VI College

Precious Blood Primary School

Precious Blood Primary School (South Horizons)
Precious Blood Primary School (Wah Fu Estate)

Precious Blood Secondary School

Pui Ching Primary School

Pui Kiu College

Pui Ling School of The Precious Blood

Pui Tak Canossian Primary School

Pui Tak Canossian College

Queen Elizabeth School Old Students’ Association Branch
Primary School

Queen’s College Old Boys’ Association Secondary School
Raimondi College Primary Section
Rhenish Mission School

Rightmind Kindergarten
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EEe B AR Rock of Ages Lutheran Kindergarten

R E L HEE Sacred Heart Canossian Kindergarten

= a LB B Sacred Heart Canossian School Private Section
REHEREL/NE Sacred Heart of Mary Catholic Primary School
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SAHK Shek Wai Kok Pre-school Centre
Sai Kung Sung Tsun Catholic School (Primary Section)
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Saint May School
Salesian School

Salesian Yip Hon Primary School

Sam Shui Natives Association Huen King Wing School
School of Nursing, The University of Hong Kong
School of Public Health, The University of Hong Kong

Semple Kindergarten

Sha Tin Methodist College

Sham Shui Po Baptist Church Kindergarten
Sham Shui Po Government Primary School
Sham Tseng Catholic Primary School
Sharon Lutheran School

Shatin Government Primary School

Shatin Tsung Tsin School

Shau Kei Wan Government Primary School
Shaukiwan Tsung Tsin School

Shek Lei Catholic Primary School

Shek Lei St John's Catholic Primary School
Sheung Shui Church Kindergarten
Sheung Shui Rhenish Church Kindergarten
Shin Yat Tong Yat Tung Kindergarten
Shung Tak Catholic English College
Si'Yuan School of the Precious Blood

Sin Ching Kindergarten

Sir Ellis Kadoorie Secondary School (West Kowloon)

Sir Ellis Kadoorie(S) Primary School
SKH Bishop Baker Secondary School
SKH Chu Qi Primary School (Lei Muk Shue)
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SKH Chu Yan Primary School

SKH Crown of Thorns Church Kwai Chung Kindergarten
SKH Fung Kei Millennium Primary School

SKH Fung Kei Primary School

SKH Ho Chak Wan Primary School

SKH Holy Carpenter Secondary School

SKH Holy Nativity Church Kindergarten

SKH Ka Fuk Wing Chun Primary School

SKH Kei Oi Primary School

SKH Kei Tak Primary School

SKH Kei Yan Primary School

SKH Kowloon Bay Kei Lok Primary School

SKH St Andrew'’s Primary School

SKH St Clement’s Primary School

SKH St John's Primary School

SKH St Joseph's Primary School

SKH St Matthew's Primary School

SKH St Peter’s Church Castle Peak Kindergarten

SKH St Peter's Church Castle Peak Siu Lun Court Kindergarten
SKH St Peter's Church Shan King Estate Kindergarten
SKH St Thomas' Primary School

SKH St Timothy's Primary School

SKH Tin Shui Wai Ling Oi Primary School

SKH Tseung Kwan O Kei Tak Primary School

SKH Tsing Yi Estate Ho Chak Wan Primary School
SKH Wing Chun Primary School

SKH Yat Sau Primary School

South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School
SRBCEPSA Ho Sau Ki School

St Andrew's Catholic Kindergarten

St Angela Education Regina Coeli Anglo-Chinese
Kindergarten

St Angela Education Regina Coeli Anglo-Chinese
Kindergarten (Second Branch)

St Antonius Primary School

St Bonaventure College & High School
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St Charles School

St Clare’s Primary School

St Edward’s Catholic Primary School
St Francis of Assisi’s Caritas School

St Francis Xavier's College
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St James’ Settlement Causeway Bay Kindergarten

St Jerome's Catholic Kindergarten

St Louis School

St Margaret’s Co-educational English Secondary and Primary

School

St Matthew's Lutheran School (Sau Mau Ping)

St Monica’s Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten

St Monica's Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten (Hing Tung)

St Monica’s Kindergarten

St Monica’s Play School & Kindergarten (Tsuen Wan)

St Paul's Co-educational College

St Paul's College Primary School

St Paul's Convent School (Primary Section)

St Paul's Primary Catholic School
St Peter’s Catholic Primary School
St Stephen’s Catholic Kindergarten
St Stephen'’s Church College

St Stephen’s Girls' College Kindergarten

StVincent De Paul Nursery School
Stewards Pooi Chun Kindergarten
Stewards Pooi Kei Primary School
STFA Ho Yat Tung Primary School
STFA Lee Kam Primary School

STFA Leung Kit Wah Primary School
STFA Seaward Woo College

STFA Tuen Mun Leung Lee Sau Yu Kindergarten

STFA Wu Mien Tuen Primary School

STFA Wu Siu Kui Memorial Primary School

Suen Mei Kindergarten

Sun Island English Kindergarten (Kwai Hing Branch)
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Sun Island Kindergarten (Metro Harbour Branch)
Sun Island Kindergarten (Tung Chung Branch)
Sung Kei Kindergarten

Sung Tak Wong Kin Sheung Memorial School

Tai Kok Tsui Catholic Primary School

Tai Ping Kindergarten

Tai Po Baptist Kindergarten Tin Chak Estate Branch
Tai Po Baptist Kindergarten Wan Tau Tong Estate Branch
Tai Po Baptist Public School

Tai Po Catholic Kindergarten

Tai Po Government Primary School

Tai Po Merchants Association Cheung Hok Ming Kindergarten
(Tseung Kwan O Branch)

Tai Po Merchants Association Kindergarten

Tai Po Methodist Kindergarten

Tai Po Methodist School

Tai Po Old Market Public School

Tai Po Old Market Public School (Plover Cove)

Tai Po Rhenish Church Kindergarten (Main School)

Tai Tung Sun Chuen St Teresa Kindergarten

Taikoo Primary School

Tak Nga Primary School

Tak Sun School

Talent Kindergarten & Nursery

Taoist Ching Chung Primary School (Wu King Estate)
The Association of Evangelical Free Churches of HKEFCC AGC
Abundant Grace Nursery School

The Baptist Convention of Hong Kong Rotary Club of HK
Northwest Kindergarten

The ELCHK Faith Lutheran School

The ELCHK Wo Che Lutheran School

The HKHMC Yan Oi Kindergarten (Nursery)

The Hong Kong Chinese Women's Club Hioe Tjo Yoeng
Primary School

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups KK Cheng
Kindergarten
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The Mission Covenant Church Holm Glad Primary School
The Salvation Army Centaline Charity Fund Kindergarten
The Salvation Army Centaline Charity Fund School

The Salvation Army Fu Keung Kindergarten

The Salvation Army Lam Butt Chung Memorial School
The Salvation Army Ng Kwok Wai Memorial Kindergarten
The Salvation Army Tsuen Wan Nursery School

The Salvation Army Wah Fu Nursery School

The Sisters of the Immaculate Heart of Mary Gospel SMP
Kindergarten

The Yuen Yuen Institute MFBM Nei Ming Chan Lui Chung Tak
Memorial College

TIACC Woo Hon Fai Secondary School

Bl Z2R AT AR ERL ST E
MRS EXEmEHEET S

RIKEEIZLNE Tin Shui Wai Government Primary School
FKERBBEEE NS Tin Shui Wai Methodist Primary School

AR R HEE Tivoli Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
BLEEER Toi Shan Association Primary School
BERERN/NE Tong Mei Road Government Primary School
ERR ESERNER Truth Baptist Church Empower Kindergarten

BEERESRANHHEER
HEEREERBPHE

Truth Baptist Church Grace Kindergarten

Truth Baptist Church Pictorial Kindergarten & Nursery

LETEER Tsang Mui Millennium School

HERXFH)E Tseung Kwan O Catholic Primary School

HERE /NS Tseung Kwan O Government Primary School

S ERIEEEIE)NE Tseung Kwan O Methodist Primary School

SREg NS Tsing Yi Trade Association Primary School

SR AEHHEE Tsing Yi Trade Association Shek Yam Kindergarten
SREgRKEDHE Tsing Yi Trade Association Tin Shui Wai Kindergarten
REELNE Tsuen Wan Government Primary School
ZEmEREPHER Tsuen Wan Trade Association Chu Cheong Kindergarten
LEWEER Tsuen Wan Trade Association Primary School

RN - . - Tsuen Wan Wisdom Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten &
B (hEX) HREEARYHRE | g ?
International Play School

SEGEZHHEER Tsung Tsin Mission Graceful Kindergarten
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Tsung Tsin Mission Graceful Kindergarten (Ma On Shan)
Tsung Tsin Mission of Hong Kong On Keung Nursery School
Tsung Tsin Mission of Hong Kong On Yee Nursery School

Tsung Tsin Mission Pak Tin Graceful Kindergarten
Tun Yu School

Tung Chung Catholic School

TWGHs Hok Shan School

TWGHs Hong Kong and Kowloon Electrical Appliances

Merchants Association Limited School

TWGHs Hung Wong Kar Gee Kindergarten
TWGHs Ko Ho Ning Memorial Primary School
TWGHs Lee Ching Dea Memorial College
TWGHSs Leo Tung-hai LEE Primary School
TWGH:s Liu Yan Tak Memorial Kindergarten
TWGHs Lui Fung Faung Memorial Kindergarten
TWGHSs Nickon Kindergarten

TWGHs Sin Chu Wan Primary School

TWGHs Wong See Sum Primary School

TWGHs Wong Wu Lai Ming Kindergarten
TWGHs Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial Primary School
TWGH:s Yiu Dak Chi Memorial Primary School
TWS St Bonaventure Catholic Primary School
Victoria (Belcher) Kindergarten

Wai Chow Public School (Sheung Shui)

Wai Kiu College

WFB Mantra Institute Nursery School

William (Smart) Kindergarten

Wong Tai Sin Catholic Primary School

Wong Tai Sin Government Primary School

Xianggang Putonghua Yanxishe Primary School of Science

and Creativity

Yan Oi Tong Allan Yap Kindergarten

Yan Oi Tong Chan Cheng Yuk Yee Kindergarten
Yan Oi Tong Lau Wong Fat Kindergarten

Yan Oi Tong Pong Lo Shuk Yin Kindergarten
Yan Oi Tong Tin Ka Ping Primary School
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Yaumati Catholic Primary School
Yaumati Kaifong Association School

YCH Chan lu Seng Primary School

YCH Chiu Tsang Hok Wan Primary School
YCH Choi Hin To Primary School
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YCH Choi Pat Tai Kindergarten/Child Care Centre

YCH Ho Sik Nam Primary School

YCH Ju Ching Chu Kindergarten/Child Care Centre
YCH Lan Chi Pat Memorial Secondary School

YCH Law Chan Chor Si Primary School

YCH Nina Lam Kindergarten/Child Care Centre

YCH Tung Chi Ying Memorial Secondary School

YCH Tung Pak Ying Kindergarten/Child Care Centre

YCH Wing Lung of Kowloon Kindergarten/Child Care Centre
YCH Yau Oi Kindergarten/Child Care Centre

YCH Yim Tsui Yuk Shan Kindergarten
Ying Wa Primary School

Yue Tin Court Yiu Wing Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten

Yuen Kong Kindergarten
Yuen Long Catholic Secondary School

Yuen Long Government Primary School

Yuen Long Long Ping Estate Tung Koon Primary School

Yuen Long Long Ping Estate Wai Chow School

Yuen Long Lutheran Life Kindergarten

Yuen Long Merchants Association Kindergarten

Yuen Long Merchants Association Primary School

Yuen Long Sam Yuk Kindergarten

Yuen Long Tung Koon District Association Hung Ting Ka

Kindergarten

Yuen Long Tung Koon District Association Mrs Wong Siu

Keung Kindergarten
Yuk Yin School

Zion Lutheran Kindergarten
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Executive Committee

1.

To advise COSH on the strategic planning of COSH
programmes and initiatives.

. To consider and endorse the budget of COSH projects

and activities.

. To oversee the functioning of COSH secretariat, in

particular staffing and financial matters.

. To oversee the information security management of

COSH.

Legislation Committee

1.

To monitor the implementation of various tobacco
control measures stipulated in the Smoking (Public
Health) Ordinance and the Fixed Penalty (Smoking
Offences) Ordinance.

. To review and recommend to COSH appropriate action

on legislative matters.

. To consider ways and means to promote public

awareness of the legislative requirements and
encourage their compliance.

Education and Publicity Committee

1.

To consider ways and means that can best educate the
general public on the harm of smoking and passive
smoking, and to promote a smoke-free lifestyle in the
community.

. To plan and organize territory-wide publicity campaigns

to de-normalize smoking and promote smoking
cessation.

. To plan and implement education projects to prevent

children and youth from taking up the habit of smoking.
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4. To oversee the production of publicity materials such as
TV Commercials, posters, leaflets, souvenirs and annual
reports.

5. To evaluate the education and publicity campaigns and
to initiate improvements where appropriate.

Community Liaison Committee

1. To communicate with district and community groups
on COSH'’s tobacco control works and initiatives.

2. To serve as a focal point for community liaison on
matters related to COSH and tobacco control.

3. To partner with various community groups in the
planning and implementation of tobacco control
programmes and activities.

Information and Research Committee

1. To collect and collate all information related to smoking
and health and to disseminate such information
through appropriate means and networks.

2. To identify appropriate themes of research and survey
projects to be carried out.

3. To provide advice for the design of research and surveys
and the subsequent presentation of results.

4. To commission out research projects; and to invite
submission of research proposals on targeted research
topics; to examine research proposals and recommend
projects for funding to COSH.

5. To publicize the research/survey results and recommend
follow-up actions having regard to such results.

6. To initiate and organize scientific conference, seminars
or workshops on smoking and health research.
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1. Introduction

According to Census & Statistics Department, the
prevalence of smoking in Hong Kong was 10.7% in
2012". Smoking kills over 7,000 people per year’.
Smoking led to an annual medical cost, long-term care
and productivity loss of US$688 million in 1998°%, which
was equivalent to 0.6% of GDP in the region®. Tobacco
is addictive and it is difficult for some smokers to quit
smoking without assistance. Furthermore, over half of
the daily smokers in Hong Kong had never tried to quit
and did not want to quit, so they were unlikely to seek
professional help from the smoking cessation services'.

The Quit and Win Contest provided an opportunity to
reach a large group of smokers. It aimed to promote
smoking cessation in the community and use incentives
to motivate smokers to quit’. Since 2009, Hong Kong
Council on Smoking and Health (COSH), School of
Nursing and School of Public Health of the University of
Hong Kong (HKU) have launched Quit to Win Contests
to deliver brief smoking cessation interventions to the
smokers in the community and assess their effectiveness.
In 2009, a 3-arm randomized controlled-trial (RCT)
tested the effectiveness of brief smoking cessation
advice by telephone or short message services (SMS),
compared to delivering a self-help smoking cessation
booklet, on quit rates and changes in smoking
behaviors in smokers of the Quit to Win Contest’. A

total of 1,119 participants were recruited from 31
recruitment activities in 14 districts within one and half
months. At 6-month follow-up, the self-reported quit rate
was 22%. However, no difference in the self-reported
quit rate was found among the 3 RCT groups. In 2010,
we conducted another 2-arm RCT in the Quit to Win
Contest 2010 to assess the effectiveness in achieving
abstinence and changing smoking behavior of an
on-site face-to-face brief smoking cessation advice
compared to delivering the self-help smoking cessation
booklet only. We recruited 1,139 participants during a
period of two and a half months. A higher quit rate was
observed in the intervention group (18.4%) than the
control group (13.8%) at 6-month follow-up, but it was
marginally significant (p=0.08)". In total, both Quit to
Win Contests attracted over 2,000 smokers in the
community to participate and helped them to quit with
the brief advices and incentives.

In 2012, COSH, HKU, 18 District Councils and 10
non-government organizations (NGOs) collaborated to
organize the Quit to Win Contest to raise public
awareness on smoking cessation and recruit smokers
to join the Contest. A 3-arm RCT was conducted to
evaluate the effectiveness of a brief smoking cessation
advice delivered by a trained counselor onsite (Counseling
group), or sending them mobile phone messages (SMS
group), compared to delivering a self-help smoking
cessation booklet only (Control group).
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2. Methods

2.1 Recruitment

To recruit participants in the Contest, 161 recruitment
sessions were held in shopping malls and public areas
in 18 districts in Hong Kong from 19 July to 30
September 2012. Trained smoking cessation counselors
screened participants with the following eligibility for the
Contest:

1. Hong Kong residents aged 18 or above;

2. Daily smokers who smoked at least 1 cigarette per
day in the past 3 months;

3. Able to communicate in Cantonese and read Chinese;

4. Had a local network mobile phone to receive SMS;
and

5. Exhaled carbon monoxide (CO) of 4 ppm or above.

After obtaining written consent from the participants, the
trained smoking cessation counselors administered the
baseline questionnaire, measured the exhaled CO level,
provided the self-help smoking cessation booklet to the
participants and assigned them a unique participation
number. Eligible participants who were unwilling to join
the RCT could join the Quit to Win Contest, but were
allocated to the Non-RCT group. Smokers who were
physiologically or physically unable to communicate or
currently following other forms of smoking cessation
programme were excluded from RCT.

Cluster randomization method was used to allocate
participants into one of the following 3 groups:
Counseling group, SMS group or Control group.
Eighteen numbers were generated and randomly
assigned to the 18 districts, with the random function in
EXCEL. The 6 districts with the 6 smallest numbers
were allocated to the Counseling group, and the other 6
districts ranked from 7th to 12th were allocated to the
SMS group. The rest of the districts were allocated to
the Control group.

2.2 Intervention and Follow-up

Counseling group: Participants in the Counseling
group received 5-minute brief smoking cessation
counseling by our trained smoking cessation
counselors at the recruitment sites. They received
advice on quitting smoking and specific warning about
the health hazards of smoking, based on the AWARD
model including (1) Ask the smoking and quitting
history; (2) Warn them about the harm of smoking (1 in
2 smokers would die of diseases due to smoking); (3)
Advise them to quit; (4) Refer them to smoking cessation
services and (5) Repeat the above steps (Do-it-again). A
health education card containing brief advices and
self-assessment of decision balance between smoking
and quitting was also provided to the participants.
Additional telephone counseling at the 1-week &
1-month follow-up was provided to the participants in
this group.

SMS group: Participants in the SMS group received
SMS text messages of smoking cessation advice and
warning on the health hazards of smoking. Participants
who reported that they started to quit within 30 days or
less were classified as “ready to quit”’, whereas those
reported to quit after 30 days or more, or had not
decide to quit were classified as “not ready to quit”. Two
sets of 16 messages tailored for the two groups of
smokers were sent within 4 weeks after recruitment
(Appendix 1).

Control group: Participants in the Control group
received a 12-page self-help smoking cessation booklet
but did not receive any additional quitting assistance.

Non-trial group: This group included participants who
wanted to join the TV programme. They received a
self-help smoking cessation booklet but not any
additional smoking cessation counseling and were not
included in the RCT.

All participants were provided the 12-page self-help
smoking cessation booklet, and followed up at 3
months and 6 months after baseline recruitment.
Trained smoking cessation counselors, who were
blinded to the group assignment, conducted the
telephone survey using a standardized questionnaire.
The interviewers made at least seven call attempts, at
different time of a day, to reach each participant. Those
who failed to be contacted in all attempts were
classified as loss to follow-up. Those who reported no



smoking in the past 7 days were invited to participate in
a biochemical validation including measurement of
exhaled carbon monoxide (CO) and salivary cotinine
levels. The standard for validated abstinence was that
exhaled CO level below 4 ppm and salivary cotinine
below 10ng/ml. Participants who passed the
biochemical validation at the 3-month follow-up were
included in the lucky draw, which selected 5 participants
to win a HK$10,000 gift voucher for each. For those
who joined the TV programme co-produced with
Television Broadcasts Limited (TVB), the champion
received a cash prize of HK$20,000, 1% runner-up
received HK$10,000 and 2" runner-up received
HK$5,000.

The primary outcome of the RCT was self-reported
7-day point prevalence (PP) quit rate at the 3- and
6-month follow-ups. The secondary outcomes were
biochemically validated quit rate, rate of smoking
reduction by at least 50%, and quit attempts (stopped
smoking for at least 24 hours since participating in the
Contest) at the 3-month and 6-month follow-ups.

The socio-demographic and smoking characteristics at
baseline of all subjects (N=1,193) were described. We
compared the primary and secondary outcomes,
reasons to quit (in self-reported quitters), methods to
quit (in self-reported quitters), reasons of continuing
smoking (in smokers), perceived importance, difficulty
and confidence to quit among the three groups. We
adopted the intention-to-treat (ITT) analysis (assuming
that non-respondents at the follow-up did not change
their baseline smoking behavior) to calculate the
self-reported and biochemically validated quit rates, and
used complete-case (CC) analysis (excluding participants
who were lost to follow-up) for other outcomes.

3. Results

In all the 161 recruitment sessions, a total of 1,247
smokers visited the smoking cessation booths. 1,193
(95.7%) of them were eligible and consented to
participate in the Contest. Of the 1,193 participants, 265
(22.2%) were allocated to the Counseling group, 419
(35.1%) to the SMS group, 432 (36.2%) to the Control
group and 77 (6.5%) were allocated to the Non-trial

group.
Baseline results

3.1 Demographic characteristics of all participants

Table 1 shows that, in all participants, 79.0% were
male, and the average age was 42.1 years (SD=16.9).
Nearly 60% of the participants (58.2%) were married.
More than half (52.9%) had one or more children.
42.6% had junior secondary education level or below,
and the majority (69.7%) were employed. 28.2% had
monthly household income less than HK$10,000. The
Control group had slightly higher proportion of students
(Counseling: 2.6%, SMS: 4.5%, Control: 8.3%, p<0.01)
and retired persons (Counseling: 12.1%, SMS: 12.4%,
Control: 19.1%, p<0.01) than the Counseling and SMS
groups.

171




172

Table 1 Demographic characteristics of all participants (N=1,193)’

Total Non-trial
N=1,193 N=77
(n, %) (n, %)
Gender
Male 943 (79.0) 62 (80.5)
Female 250 (21.0) 15 (19.5)
Age, mean (SD)
42.1(16.9) 38.5(14.9)
Marital status
Single 463 (38.8) 37 (48.1)
Married/ Cohabited 694 (58.2) 38 (49.4)
Other 25 (2.1) 2 (2.6)
Child
None 538 (45.1) 43 (55.8)
One child 241 (20.2) 15 (19.5)
Two children 252 (21.1) 13 (16.9)
Three or more children 138 (11.6) 6 (7.8)
Education level
No formal education 19 (1.6) 0(0.0)
Elementary education 165 (13.8) 6 (7.8)
Junior secondary education 325 (27.2) 15 (19.5)
Senior secondary education 443 (37.1) 34 (44.2)
Post-secondary or above 231 (19.4) 22 (28.6)
Employment status
Student 65 (6.4) 3(3.9)
Self-employed/Employed 831 (69.7) 54 (70.1)
Unemployed 55 (4.6) 7(9.1)
Housewife 46 (3.9) 2(2.6)
Retired 174 (14.6) 8(10.4)
Monthly household income (HKD)

Less than $10,000 336 (28.2) 19 (24.7)
$10,000-19,999 455 (38.1) 27 (35.1)
$20,000-29,999 171 (14.3) 11 (14.3)
$30,000-39,999 88 (7.4) 7 (14.3)

$40,000 or more 109 (9.1) 10 (13.0)

"Missing data was excluded

3.2 Smoking profile

Counseling SMS Control

N=265 N=419 N=432

(n, %) (n, %) (n, %)

209 (78.9) 344 (82.1) 328 (75.9)
56 (21.1) 75 (17.9) 104 (24.1)
41.6 (15.2) 43.0 (16.3) 42.6 (18.6)
89 (33.6) 153 (36.5) 184 (42.6)
166 (62.6) 254 (60.6) 236 (54.6)

8 (3.0) 5(1.2) 10 (2.3)
113 (42.6) 174 (41.5) 208 (48.1)
66 (24.9) 85 (20.3) 75 (17.4)
54 (20.4) 98 (23.4) 87 (20.1)
27 (10.2) 49 (11.7) 56 (13.0)

3(1.1) 6 (1.4) 10 (2.3)
36 (13.6) 60 (14.3) 63 (14.6)
77 (29.1) 127 (30.3) 106 (24.5)
96 (36.2) 145 (34.6) 168 (38.9)
50 (18.9) 76 (18.1) 83 (19.2)

7 (2.6) 19 (4.5) 36 (8.3)
197 (74.3) 301 (71.8) 279 (64.6)

15 (5.7) 24 (5.7) 9(2.1)

7 (2.6) 17 (4.1) 20 (4.6)
32 (12.1) 52 (12.4) 82 (19.0)
78 (29.4) 104 (24.8) 135 (31.3)
83 (31.3) 177 (42.2) 168 (38.9)
47 (17.7) 58 (13.8) 55 (12.7)
22 (8.3) 37 (8.8) 22 (5.1)
30 (11.3) 28 (6.7) 41 (9.5)

Overall, the mean age of starting smoking was 18
(SD=5.7), and more than half (52.1%) started smoking
before 18 (Figure 1). Their mean daily cigarette consumption
was 13.5 (SD=9.0), 42.6% consumed 5-14 cigarettes
and 34.7% consumed 15-24 per day (Figure 2). 62.9%
had previous quit attempts (stopped smoking for at
least 24 hours in lifetime). More participants in the

Counseling group had previous quit attempts than the
Control group (Counseling: 67.6%, Control: 58.6%,
p=0.02) (Figure 3). 69.3% wanted to quit within 30 days
(ready to quit), with more participants in the Control
group than the other groups being not ready to quit
(Counseling: 28.3%, SMS: 20.0%, Control: 41.6%,
p<0.01).



Figure 1

Age of starting weekly smoking in all participants (N=1,193)’
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Figure 2

Daily cigarette consumption at baseline in
all participants (N=1,193)'
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Figure 3

Quit attempt and readiness to quit at baseline in
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. Counseling

[ sms
Control

E Non-trial

799
710

~
~
o

57.0

No quit attempt ~ Have quit attempt  Not ready to quit* ~ Ready to quit

in lifetime in lifetime3

3.3 Environmental influence

The maijor sources of perceived support in the quitting
process at baseline were (1) spouse (45.4%), (2)
children (32.6%), (3) parents (29.7%) and (4) friends
(18.4%). On the contrary, 12.2% of them did not receive any
support from others. There was no significant difference
in receiving support from the spouse and children
among the three RCT groups, but a smaller proportion
of SMS group received support from parents (SMS:
24.3%, Control: 32.9%, p<0.01) and siblings (SMS:
6.7%, Control: 12.5%, p<0.01) than the Control group.

In all participants, 39.6% lived with smoking family
members, and there was no significant difference
among the three RCT groups (Counseling: 41.1%,
SMS: 39.1%, Control: 38.7%, p>0.05) (Figure 4). The
majority (80.0%) claimed that more than half of their
friends were smokers (Figure 5), while 60.1% mentioned
that more than half of their colleagues were smokers
(Figure 6). There was no significant difference in the
number of smoking family members among the three
RCT groups, but the differences in proportion of
smoking friends and colleagues among the three RCT
groups were significant. A higher proportion of the
Counseling group (64.5%) and SMS group (57.0%) had
most of their friends smoking than the Control group
(47.9%) (p<0.01). A higher proportion in the Counseling
group (44.2%) and SMS group (38.4%) had most of
their colleagues smoking than the Control group
(32.9%) (p<0.01).

Figure 4

Number of smoking family members at baseline in
all participants (N=1,193)"

"Missing data were excluded

2 Participants who were ready to quit included those who wanted to quit within 30 days,
while those not ready to quit included those who wanted to quit after 30 days or more,
and those who had not decided to quit

3 p-value for comparing Counseling and Control group = 0.02

4 p-value for comparing Counseling and Control group < 0.01; p-value for comparing SMS
and Control group < 0.01

*p<0.05, **p<0.01
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Figure 5

Proportion of smoking friends at baseline in
all participants (N=1,193)’
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**p<0.01
Figure 6
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3- and 6-month follow-up results

3.4 Retention rate

At the 3-month follow-up, the overall retention rate was
64.0%, with 56.6% in the Counseling group, 63.0% in
the SMS group and 69.7% in the Control group. There
was no significant difference in the retention rate
among the three RCT groups (p=0.11). At the 6-month
follow-up, the overall retention rate was 51.5%, with
51.3% in the Counseling group, 45.6% in the SMS
group and 57.4% in the Control group, and the
difference among the 3 groups was significant (p=0.01).

3.5 Self-reported and biochemically validated quit

By ITT analysis, the overall self-reported 7-day point
prevalence quit rate at 3-month and 6-month follow-up
was 10.6% (95% Cl=8.9%-12.6%) and 9.5% (95% CI=
7.9%-11.4%), respectively (Figure 7). No significant
difference in the 3-month and 6-month quit rate by ITT
analysis among the three RCT groups was found (all
p>0.05). By CC analysis, the overall self-reported quit
rate at 3 months and 6 months were 16.5% and 18.6%,
respectively. The Control group had a significantly
higher quit rate by CC analysis than the SMS group at
the 6-month follow-up (SMS: 14.7%, Control: 19.8%,
p=0.02). The difference in the self-reported quit rate
between Counseling and Control group was not
significant (Counseling: 20.6% : Control: 19.8% -
p>0.05).

In the 126 self-reported quitters at 3 months, 48
participated in the biochemical validation, and 81.3%
(39/48) passed (Figure 8). At 6 months, 37 of the 113
self-reported quitters participated in the validation, and
91.9% (34/37) passed. By ITT analysis, the validated
quit rate for all the participants at 3 and 6 months was
3.3% (95% Cl=2.4%-4.5%) and 2.8% (95% ClI=
2.0%-3.9%), respectively. By both ITT and CC analysis,
the Counseling group (ITT: 5.3%, CC: 9.3%) had a
higher validated quit rate than the Control group (ITT:
1.9%, CC: 2.7%) (p for ITT analysis=0.03; p for
CC<0.01).

Figure 7

Self-reported quit rates at 3-month and 6-month follow-ups,
by intention-to-treat and complete case analysis
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Figure 8

Biochemically validated quit rate at 3-month and 6-month
follow-up, by intention-to-treat and complete case analysis
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ITT: Intention-to-treat analysis; CC: Complete-case analysis
1 p-value for comparing Counseling and Control group =0.03
2 p-value for comparing Counseling and Control group < 0.01
*p<0.05, **p<0.01

3.6 Quit attempt and smoking reduction at the 3-
and 6-month follow-up

At the 3-month follow-up, 47% of participants (including
quitters), who were successfully followed up, reduced
cigarette consumption by at least 50% compared to
baseline (Figure 9). The proportion of smoking reduction
at the 6-month follow-up was 50.9%. The rate of smoking
reduction was higher in the Counseling group (3-month:
52.7%, 6-month: 58.1%) than Control group (3-month:
42.2%, 6-month: 46.4%) at the 3- and 6-month
follow-up (p for 3-month=0.04, p for 6-month=0.03). No
significant difference between SMS and Control group
was found in both follow-ups.

The overall rate of quit attempt (stopped smoking for at
least 24 hours since participating in the Quit to Win
Contest, including quitters) for the 3- and 6-month
follow-up was 55.4% and 58.3%, respectively (Figure
9). The SMS group had a higher rate of quit attempt
than the Control group at the 3-month follow-up (SMS:
63.3%, Control: 48.2%, p<0.01). There was no
significant difference at the 6-month follow-up among
the 3 RCT groups.

Figure 9

Rate of smoking reduction and quit attempt at 3-month and
6-month follow-up, by complete case analysis™ 2
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2Quitters were included in those who reduced cigarette consumption and quit attempt
3 p-value for comparing Counseling and Control group = 0.04

4 p-value for comparing Counseling and Control group = 0.03

5 p-value for comparing SMS and Control group < 0.01

*p<0.05, **p<0.01

3.7 Reasons and methods of quit attempts at the
6-month follow-up

At 6-month follow-up, in the participants who had made
quit attempt(s) in the study period, the most common
reasons of quit attempt were: (1) illness prevention
(45.4%), (2) received encouragement or pressure from
others to quit smoking (23.4%), (3) expensive cigarettes
(16.9%) and (4) being a role model for children (13.0%)
(Figure 10). More participants in the Counseling group
and SMS group made their quit attempt because of
illness prevention (Counseling: 67.9%, SMS: 47.9%,
Control: 35.5%, p<0.01). More participants in the
Control group had made their quit attempt because of
expensive cigarettes (Counseling: 16.7%, SMS: 10.3%,
Control: 23.2%, p=0.02), too many smoke-free areas
(Counseling: 5.1%, SMS: 0.9%, Control: 21.0%,
p<0.01), increase in cigarette taxation (Counseling: 0%,
SMS: 1.7%, Control: 13.8%, p<0.01), and being a role
model for children (Counseling: 6.4%, SMS: 10.3%,
Control: 18.1%, p=0.03)
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Figure 10

At 6-month follow-up, reasons to quit in participants
who had made quit attempt(s) in the past
6 months (N=355)"2

lliness Prevention 45.4%

Encouragement/
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Read the self-help
smoking cessation booklet

Useful method provided
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Pregnancy

" Participants who were lost to follow up were excluded
2 Participants were allowed to choose more than one reason

At the 6-month follow-up, the majority (63.7%) in
participants who had made quit attempt(s) did not use
any specific methods to quit (Figure 11). The most
common methods were using nicotine replacement
therapy (NRT) (15.5%) and self-help smoking cessation
booklet (11.0%). More participants who had made a quit
attempt in the Counseling group and SMS group did not
use specific methods to quit smoking compared with
the Control group (Counseling: 66.7%, SMS: 82.9%,
Control: 45.7%, p<0.01). Moreover, more participants in
the Control group than the other groups used NRT
(Counseling: 12.8%, SMS: 7.7%, Control: 25.4%,
p<0.01), consulted others (Counseling: 1.3%, SMS:
0.9%, Control: 23.9%, p<0.01), read self-help smoking
cessation booklet (Counseling: 5.1%, SMS: 2.6%,
Control: 21.0%, p<0.01), received counseling from
clinic/hospital (Counseling: 5.1%, SMS: 2.6%, Control:
15.2%, p<0.01) and received telephone counseling
(Counseling: 3.8%, SMS: 0%, Control: 14.5%, p<0.01).

Figure 11

At 6-month follow-up, methods used for quit attempt
in all participants who had made quit
attempt(s) in the past 6 months (N=355)"2

No specific method 63.7%

NRT

Self-help smoking
cessation booklet
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Receiving telephone
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Receiving web smoking
cessation services

Participating in other
smoking cessation
programme

1 Participants who were lost to follow up were excluded
2 Participants were allowed to choose more than one method

3.8 Reasons of continuing smoking

The four most common reasons of continuing smoking
in participants who had not quit at 6 months were: (1)
craving to smoke (38.5%), (2) work pressure (33.1%),
(3) smokers nearby (28.6%), and (4) feeling bored
(23.8%) (Figure 12). Participants in the Control group
were more likely to continue smoking than the
Counseling group and SMS group due to “craving to
smoke” (Counseling: 31.5%, SMS: 32.1%, Control:
48.0%, p<0.01). More participants in the Counseling
group than the Control group continued to smoke due
to “work pressure” (Counseling: 45.4%, SMS: 25.9%,
Control: 31.5%, p<0.01). Fewer participants in the SMS
group continued to smoke due to “smokers nearby”
(Counseling: 37.0%, SMS: 19.8%, Control: 31.5%,
p<0.01).



Figure 12

Reasons to continuing smoking in participants
who did not quit smoking at 6-month follow-up (N=496)" 2
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3.9 Self-perceived importance, confidence, and
difficulty to quit smoking

In a scale of 0 (minimum) to 10 (maximum), the mean
score of “perceived level of importance to quit
smoking”, “perceived level of difficulty to quit smoking”,
and “perceived level of confidence to quit smoking” at
baseline was 6.89 (SD = 2.68), 6.64 (SD = 2.84), 5.53
(SD = 2.51), respectively.

The mean score of perceived importance in the Control
group decreased significantly from 6.75 at baseline to
6.16 at 3 months (p =0.02). In the Counseling and SMS
groups, the mean score of perceived importance at 3
and 6 months was similar to the baseline (all p >0.05).
The mean score of the Counseling group (7.08) and
SMS group (6.95) was greater than the Control group
(6.16) at 3 months (p for Counseling versus Control
group <0.01; p for SMS versus Control group<0.01).
The greater mean score in the Counseling and SMS
group was also observed at the 6-month follow-up (p for
Counseling versus Control group<0.01, p for SMS
versus Control group=0.04). It can be concluded that
the on-site brief counseling and SMS maintained the
perceived importance, while participants without the
brief intervention had decreased perceived importance
over the study period (Figure 13).

Figure 13

The change in perceived importance to quit smoking1
~&— Counseling
- sMs
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Baseline 3-month 6-momth

Within-group pair-sample t-test:
Counseling: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.57
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.38
SMS: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.91
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.13
p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.02
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.34
Between group independent t-test

Control:

Baseline: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.12
p-value for SMS versus Control=0.40

3-month: p-value for Counseling versus Control<0.01
p-value for SMS versus Control<0.01

6-month: p-value for Counseling versus Control<0.01

p-value for SMS versus Control=0.04
1 Participants who were lost to follow up were excluded

The mean score of perceived difficulty to quit at 3 and 6
months was similar to the baseline in the three RCT
groups (all p>0.05). The scores were also similar
among the three RCT groups at all the follow-ups (all
p>0.05) (Figure 14).

Figure 14

The change in perceived difficulty to quit smoking'
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Within-group pair-sample t-test:
Counseling: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.75
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.84
SMS: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.49
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.17
p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.07
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.58
Between group independent t-test

Control:

Baseline: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.34
p-value for SMS versus Control=0.58

3-month: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.49
p-value for SMS versus Control=0.38

6-month: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.90

p-value for SMS versus Control=0.71
' Participants who were lost to follow up were excluded
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The mean score of perceived confidence to quit at 3
and 6 months was similar to the baseline in the three
RCT groups (all p>0.05). The scores were also similar
among the three RCT groups at all the follow-ups (all
p>0.05) (Figure 15).

Figure 15

The change in perceived confidence to quit smoking'
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Within-group pair-sample t-test:
Counseling: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.92
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SMS: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.50
p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.07
Control: p-value for Baseline versus 3-month=0.49

p-value for Baseline versus 6-month=0.81
Between group independent t-test

Baseline: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.90
p-value for SMS versus Control=0.52

3-month: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.25
p-value for SMS versus Control=0.23

6-month: p-value for Counseling versus Control=0.62

p-value for SMS versus Control=0.62
" Participants who were lost to follow up were excluded

3.10 Predictors of abstinence at 6-month follow-up

Using the generalized estimating equations (GEE)
model, with ITT analysis for abstinence, the predictors
of abstinence included (1) having previous quit attempts
within the past month (Adjusted OR=2.04,95%
Cl=1.03-4.01) or within the past 6 months (Adjusted
OR=1.72, 95% CI=1.03-2.85), compared to those who
never tried to quit; (2) married/cohabited (Adjusted
OR=1.82, 95% CIl=1.15-2.86) or widowed/divorced
(Adjusted OR=3.89, 95% CI=1.85-8.19), compared with
those who were single; (3) smoked 1-4 cigarettes a day
at baseline (Adjusted OR=1.64, 95% CI=1.05-2.56),
compared with those who smoked 5-14 cigarettes a day
at baseline; and (4) higher perceived confidence to quit
(Adjusted OR per score=1.16, 95% CI=1.01-1.34). On
the contrary, consuming 15-24 cigarettes a day at
baseline was associated with lower abstinence, compared
with those who smoked 5-14 cigarettes to quit at 6
months (Adjusted OR=0.57, 95% CI=0.34-0.98) (Table 2).
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Table 2 Predictors to quit smoking at 6-month
follow-up by generalized estimating equation
model (N=1,085)"

Predictors to quit smoking Adj. OR |p-value | 95%ClI

Intervention
Control 1.00
Counseling 1.03 0.94 0.47-2.29
SMS | 0.76 0.62 | 0.25-2.28
Gender
Female 1.00
Male | 0.87 0.59 | 0.52-1.45
Age

1.00 0.58 | 0.98-1.01
Marital status
Single 1.00
Married/Cohabited | 1.82 0.01 1.15-2.86
Widowed/Divorced | 3.89 | <0.01 | 1.85-8.19
Recent Experience of quitting

Never tried to quit 1.00

Within past month | 2.04 0.04 1.03-4.01
Within 6 months 1.72 0.04 1.03-2.85
Within this year | 1.09 0.84 | 0.48-247

More than 1 year before 1.23 0.19 0.90-1.69
Daily cigarette consumption

1 to 4 cigarettes 1.64 0.03 1.05-2.56
5to 14 cigarettes | 1.00
15 to 24 cigarettes 0.57 0.04 0.34-0.98

25 cigarettes or above | 0.89 0.76 | 0.41-1.91
Perceived confidence of quitting
1.16 0.03

Adj. OR = adjusted odds ratio; Cl = confidence interval

" Excluding 31 incomplete responses

Participants who were lost to follow-up were treated as continued smoking status at
6 months, by intention-to-treat analysis

The following variables were insignificant and excluded in the model:
(1) Education level;

(2) Household income;

(3) Years of smoking;

(4) Age of starting smoking;

(5) Perceived importance of quitting; and

(6) Perceived difficulty of quitting

1.01-1.34

4. Discussion

The Quit to Win Contest 2012 recruited 1,193 smokers
from mid-July to late-September 2012 in the 18 districts
in Hong Kong, which was higher than 2009 (N=1,119)
and 2010 (N=1,103). In summary, by ITT analysis, 10.6%
and 9.5% of the participants quit smoking at 3 and 6
months, respectively. At 3 months, 47.0% of the participants
reduced smoking (including quitters) by at least 50%,



and 55.4% had quit attempt. The corresponding figures
at the 6-month follow-up were 50.9% and 58.3%,
respectively. No significant difference in the self-reported
quit rate among the 3 RCT groups was found. The
Counseling group had a higher biochemically validated
quit rate and rate of smoking reduction (including
quitters) than the Control group, and the SMS group
had a higher rate of quit attempt than the Control group.

One in ten participants of the Quit to Win Contest 2012
reported abstinence at 6 months, which was lower
than the Contest in 2009 and 2010. The 6-month
self-reported quit rate for the Quit to Win Contest 2009
and 2010 was 21.6% and 16.4%, respectively. Although
fewer participants at the baseline in the 2012 Contest
had heavy nicotine dependence (2009: 32.7%; 2010:
35.0%; 2012: 26.7%), fewer participants had previous
quit attempts (2009: 70.1%; 2010: 68.8%; 2012: 62.9%)
and intention to quit smoking within 7 days (2009:
67.0%; 2010: 66.8%; 2012: 52.6%). These findings are
consistent with a recent local study which showed that
the proportion of hardcore smokers, defined as having
high nicotine dependence, no previous quit attempt and
no intention to quit, has increased in Hong Kong in the
recent decade, accompanied by the declining smoking
prevalence®. Therefore, the increase in participants who
were not ready to quit and had no quitting experience at
the baseline among the three Contests could be a
major reason for the declining quit rate. Another
possible reason for the declining quit rate was the
recruitment strategy in the 2012 Contest. In the 2012
Contest, 247 participants (22.2%) were recruited
through “mobile recruitment”, which means that our
recruitment staff walked through the specific public
places and proactively asked the smoking passers-by
to participate in the Contest. This recruitment method
might recruit more smokers who had lower intention to
quit than those who were recruited from the recruitment
booths, thereby reducing the later abstinence. Nevertheless,
with the participation of the non-government organizations,
the 2012 Contest had promoted smoking cessation in
the public but also might have recruited more
unmotivated smokers than before and reduced the
abstinence rate.

The findings suggested that the on-site counseling and
the mobile phone messages did not boost up the quit
rate. This finding was consistent with the previous RCTs
of the Quit to Win Contest, which showed that the brief
behavioral interventions could not increase abstinence
significantly. Another explanation is the heterogeneity of
smoking profiles among the three RCT groups. We found
that the Control group at baseline had significantly
lower daily cigarette consumption than the other
groups, and more participants in the Control group were
not ready to quit. The effectiveness of the additional
intervention might be contaminated by the different
baseline smoking profiles of the 3 RCT groups. The
assumption of the cluster randomization that the smoking
profiles of the participants recruited in different districts
were similar might not be true. To increase comparability
between the RCT groups, future RCTs for Quit to Win
Contest should apply individual randomization if feasible.

However, the Counseling group had significantly higher
rate of reducing smoking than the Control group,
whereas the SMS group showed a significantly higher
proportion of having quit attempts than the Control
group. Also, both Counseling and SMS groups
maintained the perceived importance to quit at 3- and
6-month follow-ups, whereas this indicator in the
Control group dropped significantly. These findings
supported that these brief interventions were beneficial
for other smoking cessation outcomes and maintaining
their motivation to quit. In addition to the intervention at
the baseline, more counseling in the follow-up or
extension of the intervention period might be needed to
help smokers to quit and those who did not maintain
long-term abstinence.

There was a decreasing trend of smokers who did not
use any specific methods, from 91.8% in 2009, to
83.5% in 2010 and 63.7% in 2012. 15.5% of the
participants in the present study reported that they used
nicotine replacement therapy for quitting, compared
with 5.5% in 2009 and 1.8% in 2010. As we did not
provide any medication and counseling on the use of
medication in the intervention, our finding suggests that
smokers are becoming more likely to seek available
and accessible methods to quit smoking, such as NRT.
Future studies and Quit to Win Contest can explore the
feasibility and effectiveness of providing pharmaceutical
therapy for the smokers.
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5. Conclusions

In conclusion, the Quit to Win Contest 2012 successfully
promoted smoking cessation to a large group of
smokers, as many of them had low intention to quit and
were unlikely to seek help from smoking cessation
services. The brief on-site counseling and messaging
services could maintain participants’ perceived importance

6. Clinical trial Registration

to quit and increase quit attempt and smoking
reduction, but these additional interventions did not
boost up the quit rate. In future, other interventions
including more monetary incentives and pharmaceutical
therapy can be provided to attract more smokers to
quit.

Clinical trial registration number: NCT01670864 - (http://www.controlled-trials.gov)
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Appendix 1 Quit to Win 2012 - SMS Text Message for the SMS group

R = Ready to quit (intend to quit within the next 30 days);
NR = Not ready to quit (intend to quit after 30 days or more or has not decided to quit)

Classification
Welcoming message

End of 15t week message —
gift redemption
Ending message &

encouragement
Final message

5R: Risk #1

5R: Risk #2

5R: Reward #1

5R: Reward #2

5R: Roadblocks
(Decisional balance)
Myth and reality #1
Myth and reality #2
Set quit date

Seek support to quit
Seek support to quit
Quitting tips #1
Quitting tips #2
Quitting tips #3
Quitting tips #4
Nicotine dependence &

medication

Referral — Quitline 1833-183

Withdrawal symptoms

Encouragement

Relapse

AN N N NI N

ANANEE N N NS ANANANANANERAN

4
A

ANEEANANANANEE NN NN NI N N NN

Message
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1.3 Prevalence of awareness and use

Electronic nicotine/non-nicotine delivery systems or
electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes) typically contain
an electronic vaporization system for heating
nicotine or non-nicotine liquid in a refillable cartridge
to mimic smoking. Such e-liquid comes in numerous
flavours (e.g. fruit, mints, chocolate and traditional
cigarette flavour) to attract usage, especially by
young people. Harms of e-cigarette use are
uncertain but preliminary findings reported adverse
effects of ultrafine particles, heavy metals and
flavouring substances released from e-cigarettes on
the respiratory system. Transnational tobacco
companies are expanding the e-cigarette market
rapidly with global sales increasing from 20 million
in 2008 to 2,500 million US dollars in 2014.

1.2 Effects on smoking and smoking cessation

Effects of e-cigarette use on smoking cessation
were uncertain. Only one randomized controlled
trial was published, which found similar quit rates in
e-cigarette users (7.3%) and nicotine patch users
(5.8%)"" (Bullen et al., 2013). Findings from
observational studies on e-cigarette use and
smoking cessation were inconsistent. There is some
evidence that e-cigarette use was associated with
lower odds of smoking abstinence in adolescent
smokers'? (Dutra et al., 2014) and may serve as a
gateway to smoking in never smokers. Popular use
of e-cigarettes may undermine tobacco control
policies and renormalize smoking.

Awareness of e-cigarettes is high with nearly 80%
of adults in the United States (US) and United
Kingdom (UK) having heard about e-cigarettes, and
smokers and young adults were more likely to
report being aware of e-cigarettes. E-cigarette use
was strongly associated with being smokers. Dual
use of traditional cigarettes and e-cigarettes is
common (30.3% of US smokers) and little is known
about the effect of dual use on nicotine addiction
and health.

1.4 Regulation

Several countries have comprehensive measures on
regulating e-cigarettes including import/sales
restriction, promotion restriction and prohibition on
usage. In Hong Kong, e-cigarettes containing nicotine
or marketed as nicotine replacement therapy must
be registered before sales and possession.
E-cigarette use in non-smoking areas is banned.
The World Health Organization has urged for
actions to monitor and control e-cigarette use
(World Health Organization, 2014)", especially
preventing the initiation by youths and non-smokers.

We have conducted two studies on e-cigarettes use
in Hong Kong. In the previous 2013 survey, we
assessed the awareness, use and risk perception of
e-cigarettes. In the present 2014 survey, we added
new questions on purchase behaviours, reasons for
use, perception and opinions on e-cigarette.
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2. Methods

2.1 Study design and participants

Computer-assisted telephone interviews based on
an anonymous and structured questionnaire were
sub-contracted to a survey agent (Policy 21 Ltd.)
and conducted from May to September 2014, by
trained telephone interviewers. Participants aged
15 to 65 years speaking Cantonese or Putonghua
were recruited. They were divided into 3 smoking
status groups: (a) current smokers who, at the time
of the survey, smoked any tobacco product daily or
occasionally; (b) ex-smokers, who smoked
previously but did not smoke at the time of the
survey; and (c) never smokers, who had never
smoked in their entire life. Initial calls took place
between 2:00pm and 10:00pm on weekdays and
weekends in order to cover participants with
diversified working hours from different occupations.
Each randomly selected telephone number was
dialled for 5 to 10 times at different times and on
different days, before it was dropped as
“non-contact”. All participants provided oral consents
before the telephone interview started. They could
withdraw from the study at any time without
providing any reasons.

2.2 Sampling methods and participant selection

Participants were randomly selected through their
residential telephone numbers. Telephone numbers
were first drawn randomly from residential
telephone directories as seed numbers, from which
another set of numbers were generated by a
computer programme using the "plus/minus one/two"
method in order to capture unlisted numbers.
Duplicated numbers were filtered, and the
remaining numbers were mixed in a random order
to produce the final sampling frame. When
telephone contact was successfully established
with a target household, one eligible person was
selected from all eligible family members who were
at home at the time of interview, using the "next
birthday" procedure. Only one eligible person from
the household was interviewed even if more than
one eligible member in the same household might
be available at the time of interview.

Equal numbers of participants (n=800) in each
smoking status group were required for sub-group

analysis. Due to the relatively small proportion of
current- and ex-smokers (current daily smokers:
19.1% and 3.1% for males and females
respectively in 2012; ex-daily smokers: 10.4% and
1.5% for males and females respectively in 2012"),
current- and ex-smokers were oversampled. As
soon as the target number of never smokers
(n=800) was reached, interviewers stopped
recruiting never smokers and went on to recruit
current- and ex-smokers only until the target of 800
was reached for both.

2.3 Questionnaire development

The questionnaire was divided into two parts: part
(a) with core questions; and part (b) with random
questions. The core questions were used by all
participants, but some were specifically used by
never smokers, non-smokers (never and ex-smokers),
ex-smokers, ever smokers (ex- and current
smokers) and current smokers. The random
questions were used by random subsets of
respondents and again could be aimed at specific
smoking status sub-groups. Nine question sets with
mixed core and random questions were
pre-grouped into 2 sets for never smokers, 4 sets
for current smokers and 3 sets for ex-smokers.

Questions about e-cigarettes were random questions
for a random subsets of respondents from each
smoking status group. The questions measured the
awareness and use of e-cigarettes, knowledge and
opinions on e-cigarettes.

2.4 Weighting and statistical analyses

The whole sample was weighted to compensate for
the oversampling of ex- and current smokers using
the projected population in 2014 in Hong Kong® and
the most updated smoking prevalence in 2012".
Univariate analysis of variables of interest was
conducted by smoking status. The chi-square test
was used to test whether the difference by smoking
status was statistically significant if the variable was
categorical and univariate regression was used if
the variable was continuous. All the analyses were
based on complete cases, as missing data were
scarce (less than 3%). All analyses were done
using the weighted sample. The results from all
respondents were weighted as above for age,



sex and smoking status. The results within each
smoking status group were weighted by the age
and sex in that group. Statistical significance was
defined as p<0.05. Statistical analysis was
conducted using STATA (Version 13, TX: StataCorp LP).

3. Results

3.1 Characteristics of randomly-selected subsample

The questions about e-cigarettes were asked in a

subset of 809 randomly-selected respondents
including all 3 smoking status groups. Table 1 shows
the characteristics of the randomly-selected subsample.
Never smokers and current smokers were younger
than ex-smokers (p<0.001). Among never smokers,
45.1% were post-secondary graduates or above,
which were higher than ex- (31.1%) and current
smokers (22.0%) (p<0.001). Higher proportion of
current smokers (67.4%) was employed than never
(55.0%) and ex-smokers (63.7%) (p<0.001).

Table 1 Demographic characteristics of the random sample

T I Never smokers Ex-smokers Current smokers Total P valueS
n=357 n=269 n=183 n=809

Sex (%) <0.001
Male 40.0 834 75.9 43.8

Age (%) n=308 n=239 n=168 n=715 <0.001
15-29 26.9 3.6 17.2 255
30+ 731 96.4 82.8 74.5

Education level (%) n=347 n=265 n=177 n=789 <0.001
Primary or below 46 125 13.7 5.5
Secondary 50.2 56.4 64.3 51.3
Post-secondary or above 451 311 22.0 43.3

Employment status (%) n=347 n=262 n=176 n=785 <0.001
Employed 55.0 63.7 67.4 56.0
Students 151 25 7.0 14.2
Homemakers 20.7 6.8 124 19.7
Unemployed 3.7 6.3 4.9 3.9
Retired 56 20.7 8.3 6.3

§ p-value of Chi square test
p-value of linear regression and Wald test

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group; percentages for

total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

3.2 Awareness and use of e-cigarettes

Of all randomly selected respondents (n=809),
75.4% had heard of e-cigarettes with more in never
smokers (75.9%) than ex- (71.1%) and current
smokers (70.8%)(p=0.02)(Figure 1).

Of all randomly selected respondents (n=809), only
1.8% had used e-cigarettes. A significantly greater
proportion of current smokers (12.8%) than never
(1.0%) and ex-smokers (4.6%) had used e-cigarettes
(p<0.001) (Table 2). Younger respondents (aged
15-29) were more likely to have used e-cigarettes
(4.4%) than older respondents (aged 30 and above)
(1.0%)(p<0.001) (Figure 2) and it was the case
across all 3 smoking status groups. Particularly, in
never smokers those who had used e-cigarettes
were all aged 15-29.

Figure 1
Have you ever heard of e-cigarettes?
B Yes
= No
Don't Know/
Refuse to answer
100% =1 =
2§ 0§ B
%
i N N
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
Never smokers Ex-smokers Current smokers Total
(n=357) (n-269) (n=183) (n=809)

p=0.02 for the difference in smoking groups, tested by chi-square

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups
were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.
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selected respondents

Smoking status Use of
e-cigarette 95% ClI
%)
Never smokers (n=357) 1.0 04 26
Ex-smokers (n=269) 46 23 8.8
Current smokers (n=183) 12.8 84 19.0
Total (n=809) 1.8 11 3.0

p<0.001 for the difference by smoking status, tested by chi-square

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups
were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

Figure 2
E-cigarette use by age group and smoking status
B 15-29
W 30+
Total

25%
20%
15%
10%
5% 36 45 46

0 10 Bod
0% )

T T
Never smokers Ex-smokers Current smokers* Total***

*p=0.02 for the difference between age groups, tested by chi-square

***p<0.001 for the difference between age groups, tested by chi-square

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups
were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

3.3 Purchase of e-cigarettes

In those who had heard of e-cigarettes, very few
(1.8%) had bought them (Table 3). While 5.6% of
current smokers bought for self-use, 3.3% of ex-
and 0.6% of never smokers reported to have
bought e-cigarettes for self-use. They bought
e-cigarettes most commonly from outside Hong
Kong (e.g. China mainland, foreign countries)
(33.9%), followed by boutiques / stationeries / toy
stores (33.5%) and internet (24.6%).

In Hong Kong, e-cigarettes containing nicotine or
marketed as nicotine replacement therapy are
considered as pharmaceutical products under the
Pharmacy and Poisons Ordinance (Cap 138) and
must be registered before sale. None has been
registered at the moment. However, in those who
had bought e-cigarettes, 35.4% of respondents
reported that the e-cigarettes they bought contained
nicotine with an average of 2.2 mg nicotine whereas

39.7% of respondents did not know whether nicotine
was present. Only 24.9% of respondents reported
that the e-cigarettes they bought did not have any
nicotine (Figure 3).

Table 3 Purchase of e-cigarettes in
those who had heard of e-cigarettes by
smoking status

Never-smokers Ex-smokers Smokers Total

(n=268) (n=180) | (n=127) (n=575)
% % % %

::Isf:‘;; 06 33 56 | 10
Yes, as a

' 038 12 11 08
gift for others
No 97.4 95.7 913 | 970
Don’t know / 12 0.1 20 | 12

Refuse to answer

Participants were allowed to select more than 1 option

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups
were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

Figure 3

Whether the e-cigarettes bought contained nicotine? (%)

B Yes
S No
Don't Know/

Refuse to answer

Results were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking
group; results for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

3.4 Reasons to use e-cigarettes
In subjects who had used e-cigarettes regardless of
smoking status, the most commonly stated reason
that they used e-cigarettes was because their
friends used it (Table 4). In never smokers,
“e-cigarette is special, modern and novel’



was also mentioned as one of the reasons to use
e-cigarettes. Ex-smokers mentioned “e-cigarette can
help quit smoking” and “e-cigarette does less harm
to their health and people around them” as the
reasons to use e-cigarettes. Current smokers used
e-cigarettes also because they thought that
e-cigarette was special and modern.

A wide variety of e-cigarette flavours are offered in
the market. Mint/menthol (52.8%) and fruit (42.4%)
were the most common flavours among those who
had used e-cigarettes, followed by tobacco flavours
(9.2%) and candy or dessert flavours (8.0%). A
number (14.2%) of respondents reported there was
no information about the flavour of the e-cigarettes
they used (Figure 4).

Table 4 Reasons to use e-cigarettes

- Friends used it, so | would like to try (n=2)
Never smokers | - E-cigarette is special, modern (n=1) and
novel (n=1)
- E-cigarette can help quit smoking (n=5)
Ex-smokers | Friends used it, so | would like to try (n=6)
- E-cigarette does less harm to my health
(n=5) and people around me (n=5).
- E-cigarette is special and modern (n=6)

Current smokers
- Friends used it, so | would like to try (n=8)

Figure 4

Flavours of the e-cigarettes in those who had used it

Mint/menthol

Fruit (e.g., cherry,
blueberry, strawberry,
watermelon, coconut)

Tobacco or
related flavour

52.8%

Candy or
dessertflavours

Tea
Coffee

Alcohol/cocktail

Others

Noinformation
about flavour

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups
were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

3.5 Knowledge and opinions on e-cigarettes
About one-fifth (21.1%) of the randomly selected
respondents who had heard of e-cigarettes (n=575)
believed e-cigarettes could help smokers quit
smoking but more (42.3%) did not believe so
(Figure 5). Greater proportion of current (61.5%)
than never (40.8%) and ex-smokers (47.6%) did not
think e-cigarettes could help smokers quit (p<0.001).

In randomly selected smokers who had heard of
e-cigarettes (n=127), 82.1% did not think e-cigarettes
would replace conventional cigarettes (Table 5).

Figure 5

Opinion of respondents who had heard of e-cigarettes on
whether e-cigarettes can help smokers quit smoking (%)

Never smokers (n=268) Ex-smokers (n=180) B Yes

S No
Don't know/

Refuse to answer

Current smokers (n=127) Total (n=575)
- S

‘@
p=0.002 for the difference in smoking groups, tested by chi-square
Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups

were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.

Table 5 Whether e-cigarettes would replace
conventional cigarettes in current
smokers who had heard of it, by sex

Male (n=95)% | Female (n=32)% Total (n=127)%

Yes 6.9 0 >3
No 80.9 86.1 82.1
Don’t know / 122 14.0 12.6
Refuse to answer

Total 100 100 100

p=0.40, significance was tested by chi-square

Sample sizes (n) refer to the actual number of respondents; percentages for smoking groups
were weighted to 2014 Hong Kong population by age and sex for each smoking group;
percentages for total were further weighted to 2012 Hong Kong smoking prevalence.
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4.1 E-cigarettes in Hong Kong

Most respondents (75.4%) in the present survey
had heard of e-cigarettes but very few (1.8%)
reported having used e-cigarettes. The awareness
was lower than that in US adults (79.7% in 2013)°.
However, a high awareness in never smokers
(75.9%) was reported, which was higher than that in
the US (73% in 2012)* and the UK (37.5% in
2012)°. Also the awareness in current smokers
(71%) was higher than that in the UK (56% in 2011),
Canada (40% in 2011) and Australia (69% in
2013)°. For e-cigarette use, 12.8% of current
smokers and 4.6% of ex-smokers had used
e-cigarettes. These rates were much lower than
those reported by smokers in the UK (50.6% in
2014)", US (36.5% in 2013)°, Australia (24% in
2013)° and 27 EU countries (20.3% in 2012)°, but
were higher than smokers in Canada (4% in
2010-2011)°. Awareness of e-cigarettes in Hong
Kong has increased somewhat from 63% in the
2013 survey to 75% in the 2014 survey.

The trend of use remains unknown, but likely to be
increasing, which needs to be closely monitored.
Although the awareness and the use of e-cigarettes
in Hong Kong were lower than many western
countries, the prevalence of e-cigarette use may
increase quickly like the US® and the UK’, when
more aggressive marketing strategies are used. The
promotion and marketing strategies have become
more intense and glamorous to attract non-users.
E-cigarettes have become more available and
accessible, especially to the youth in Hong Kong.
Our survey found 1.0% never smokers used
e-cigarettes and they were predominantly young
people aged 15-29 with a prevalence of 3.6%. Our
local secondary school survey found about 1.1%
students had ever used e-cigarettes. Never
smoking youth may use e-cigarettes as a gateway
to start smoking leading to rebound in smoking
prevalence in Hong Kong.

The reasons to try e-cigarettes for the respondents
in the 2014 survey were “used by friends and
interest in trying”, “it is modern/fashionable” and
“can help quit smoking”, which were similar to the
findings from the US®. But only 17.5% of smokers

thought e-cigarettes could help smokers quit and
few smokers thought e-cigarettes could replace
conventional cigarettes. The evidence of e-cigarette
on smoking cessation is inconclusive. Some
preliminary findings on short term adverse health
effects of e-cigarettes on respiratory systems were
reported but long term effects were uncertain. Dual
use of e-cigarettes and conventional cigarettes may
create additional health risks which need to be
investigated in future studies.

Twice as many respondents did not believe
e-cigarettes could help quit smoking than those who
believed so, and about two-fifths were unsure. The
attractive packaging and design and the
glamourous marketing strategies may conceal the
harmful substances contained in and released by
e-cigarettes. Terms such as “safe and accredited”,
“‘environmental friendly” and “non-addictive” are
gimmicks often used by sellers. The respondents
may have wrong perceptions that e-cigarettes are
harmless, especially those nicotine-free. Public
awareness on the risks of e-cigarette use should be
increased.

In Hong Kong, health surveillance systems must
incorporate e-cigarette use patterns into the surveys
and monitor the sale of e-cigarettes to inform
tobacco control policies and interventions. Specific
and strict control policies on e-cigarettes are
urgently needed before they have become widely
used. To protect public health and prevent young
people from initiating e-cigarette and subsequent
conventional cigarette use, a total ban on
e-cigarettes, currently adopted by at least 13
jurisdictions, is recommended.

4.2 Limitations and strengths of the survey

This was a cross-sectional survey which collected
only self-reported data. The validity of data on
e-cigarette use was uncertain. The small sample
size for e-cigarette users did not allow multivariable
analysis of the correlates of e-cigarette use. All
information was collected by telephone survey,
which did not allow face to face interaction with the
interviewers. However, it also gave a degree of
anonymity and might collect more truthful data. The



validity of the data collected appeared high when
consistency between different questions was
checked. We recommend that the sample size of
future surveys should be increased to allow for
more precise estimates and more random
questions.

5. Conclusions

The rate of e-cigarette awareness increased from
63.1% in 2013 to 75.4% in 2014. Although the use
rate was only 1.8%, its correlation with younger
age, especially in never smokers, is of concern
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which will result in increasing use of e-cigarettes.
E-cigarette use was associated with current smoking
and relatively few current smokers thought e-cigarette
would help quitting, indicating that e-cigarette is
unlikely to increase quitting in Hong Kong.
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of e-cigarettes, especially the messages of
unproved safety and uncertain effect of e-cigarette
on smoking cessation. Interventions should target
particularly youths, young adults and current
smokers.
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